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finanetal-eondition—If we breach any of the undertakings or default on any of our obligations under our agreements with our
lenders, our outstanding indebtedness could become immediately due and payable, which would harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations and could require us to reduce or cease operations. If our indebtedness were to be
accelerated, there can be no assurance that our assets would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness. Our business and
operations may be further impacted by epidemics, outbreaks and other public health events. Epidemics, outbreaks or other
public health events that are outside of our control could significantly disrupt our operations and adversely affect our financial
condition. The global or national outbreak of an illness or other communicable disease, or any other public health crisis, such as
COVID- 19, may cause disruptions to our business and operations, which may include (i) shortages of employees, (ii)
unavailability of contractors or subcontractors, (iii) interruption of supplies from third parties upon which we rely, (iv)
recommendations of, or restrictions imposed by government and health authorities, including quarantines, to address an outbreak
and (v) restrictions that we and our contractors, subcontractors and our customers impose, including facility shutdowns, to
ensure the safety of employees. We depend upon key personnel and need additional personnel. Our success depends on the
continuing services of Wenzhao Lu, our Chairman of the Board, and David Jin, Meng Li and Luisa Ingargiola, our executive
officers. The loss of Mr. Lu, Dr. Jin, Ms. Li or Ms. Ingargiola could have a material and adverse effect on our business
operations. Additionally, the success of our operations will largely depend upon our ability to successfully attract and maintain
competent and qualified key management personnel. As with any company with limited resources, there can be no guaranty that
we will be able to attract such individuals or that the presence of such individuals will necessarily translate into profitability for
us. Our inability to attract and retain key personnel may materially and adversely affect our business operations. The supply of
qualified technical, professional, managerial and other personnel, including lab medical directors and lab operations managers,
is currently constrained; competition for qualified employees, even across different industries, is intense, including as
individuals leave the job market. We may lose, or fail to attract and retain, key management personnel, or qualified skilled
technical, professional or other employees. The same is true for patient- facing staff with specialized training required to
perform activities related to specimen collection. In the future, if competition for the services of these professionals increases,
we may not be able to continue to attract and retain individuals in its markets. Changes in key management, or the ability to
attract and retain qualified personnel, as a result of increased competition for talent, wage growth, or other market factors, could
lead to strategic and operational challenges and uncertainties, distractions of management from other key initiatives, and
inefficiencies and increased costs, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations,
and cash flows. Joint ventures, joint ownership arrangements and other projects pose unique challenges and we may not be able
to fully implement or realize synergies, expected returns or other anticipated benefits associated with such projects. We are, and
may be in the future, involved in strategic joint ventures and other joint ownership arrangements. We may not always be in
complete alignment with our joint venture or joint owner counterparties; we may have differing strategic or commercial
objectives and may be outvoted by our joint venture partners or we may disagree on governance matters with respect to the joint



venture entity or the jointly owned assets. As a result, when we enter into joint ventures or joint ownership arrangements, we
may be subject to a number of risks. In some joint ventures and joint ownership arrangements we may not be responsible for the
operation of projects and will rely on our joint venture or joint owner counterparties for such services. Joint ventures and joint
ownership arrangements may also require us to expend additional internal resources that could otherwise be directed to other
projects. If we are unable to successfully execute and manage our existing and any proposed joint venture and joint owner
arrangements, it could adversely impact our financial and operating results. We may be undertaking, or participating with
various counterparties in, a number of projects that involve forming joint ventures and acquiring laboratories that are accretive
to our commercial strategy. Many of these projects could involve numerous regulatory, environmental, commercial, economic,
political and legal uncertainties that are beyond our control, including the following: @ We may be unable to realize our
forecasted commercial, operational or administrative synergies in connection with our joint venture and joint ownership
arrangements yinetading-the-baboratory-Serviees MSO-Aequisttion—; and e Joint ventures and other joint ownership
arrangements may demand substantial internal resources and may divert resources and attention from other areas of our
business. As a result of these uncertainties, the anticipated benefits associated with our joint ventures and joint ownership
arrangements may not be achieved or could be delayed. In turn, this could negatively impact our cash flow and our ability to
make or increase cash distributions to our partners. We must effectively manage the growth of our operations, or our company
will suffer. To manage our growth, we believe we must continue to implement and improve our services and products. We may
not have adequately evaluated the costs and risks associated with our planned expansion, and our systems, procedures, and
controls may not be adequate to support our operations. In addition, our management may not be able to achieve the rapid
execution necessary to successfully offer our products and services and implement our business plan on a profitable basis. The
success of our future operating activities will also depend upon our ability to expand our support system to meet the demands of
our growing business. Any failure by our management to effectively anticipate, implement, and manage changes required to
sustain our growth would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Our
revenue and results of operations may suffer if we are unable to attract new tenants. We presently derive our revenue from
rental revenue from our income- producing real estate property in New Jersey. Our growth therefore depends on our ability to
attract new tenants. This depends on our ability to understand and anticipate market and pricing trends and our tenants’ needs.

Our failure to attract new tenants could materlally and adversely affect our operatlng results —Our-prospeets-wil-sufferf-we-are

affect our bu%lneqe Our services, Wthh may 1nclude recommendatlons and advice to organizations regardlng complex bu%lneqe
and operational processes and regulatory and compliance issues may give rise to liability claims by our clients or by third parties
who bring claims against our clients. Healthcare organizations often are the subject of regulatory scrutiny and litigation, and we
also may become the subject of such litigation based on our advice and services. Any such litigation, whether or not resulting in
a judgment against us, may adversely affect our reputation and could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations. We may not have adequate insurance coverage for claims against us. In accordance with our strategic
development policy, we may invest in companies for strategic reasons and may not realize a return on our investments. From
time to time, we may make investments in companies. These investments may be for strategic objectives to support our key
business initiatives but may also be standalone investments or acquisitions. Such investments or acquisitions could include
equity or debt instruments in private companies, many of which may not be marketable at the time of our initial investment.
These companies may range from early- stage companies that are often still defining their strategic direction to more mature
companies with established revenue streams and business models. The success of these companies may depend on product
development, market acceptance, operational efficiency, and other key business factors. The companies in which we invest may
fail because they may not be able to secure additional funding, obtain favorable investment terms for future financings, or take
advantage of liquidity events such as public offerings, mergers, and private sales. If any of these private companies fails, we
could lose all or part of our investment in that company. If we determine that impairment indicators exist and that there are
other- than- temporary declines in the fair value of the investments, we may be required to write down the investments to their
fair value and recognize the related write- down as an investment loss. For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , we had an
impairment of goodwill acquired from Lab Services MSO acquisition of approximately $ 8-0 . 2-3 million. In the future, we
could have additional impairment charges related to investments that we may make . Qur strategic transactions involve risks,
and we may not realize the expected benefits because of numerous uncertainties and risks. We regularly consider and
may enter into strategic transactions, including mergers, acquisitions, joint ventures, investments and other growth,
market and geographic expansion strategies, with the expectation that these transactions will result in increases in sales,
cost savings, synergies, and other various benefits. Our ability to deliver the expected benefits from any strategic
transaction is subject to numerous uncertainties and risks, including our ability to integrate personnel, labor models,
financial, IT and other systems successfully; disruption of our ongoing business and distraction of management; hiring
additional management and other critical personnel; and increasing the scope, geographic diversity, and complexity of
our operations. Effective internal controls are necessary to provide reliable and accurate financial reports, and the



integration of businesses may create complexity in our financial systems and internal controls and make them more
difficult to manage. Integration of businesses into our internal control system could cause us to fail to meet our financial
reporting obligations. Additionally, we may recognize material impairments in the future, including in connection with
assets we have acquired or divested in a strategic transaction or charges to earnings associated with any strategic
transaction, which may materially reduce our earnings. Our shareholders may react unfavorably to our strategic
transactions and strategic transactions may also be subject to regulatory uncertainty due to the changing enforcement
landscape. We may not realize the anticipated benefits from such transactions, we may be exposed to additional liabilities
of any acquired business or joint venture, and we may be exposed to litigation in connection with the strategic
transaction. Further, we may finance these strategic transactions by incurring additional debt, which could increase
leverage or impact our ability to access capital in the future . We face intense competition which could cause us to lose
market share. In the healthcare markets in which we operate, we will compete with large healthcare providers who have more
significant financial resources, established market positions, long- standing relationships, and who have more significant name
recognition, technical, marketing, sales, distribution, financial and other resources than we do. The resources available to our
competitors to develop new services and products and introduce them into the marketplace exceed the resources currently
available to us. This intense competitive environment may require us to make changes in our services, products, pricing,
licensing, distribution, or marketing to develop a market position. If we fail to comply with our obligations in the agreements
under which we license intellectual property rights from third parties or otherwise experience disruptions to our business
relationships with our licensors, we could lose intellectual property rights that are important to our business. We are party to a
research agreement with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (“ MIT ) for development of chimeric antigen receptor
(CAR) technology. Although we have halted all research and development, MIT has granted us options to non- exclusively

or exclusively license MIT inventions arising under this research agreement —We-may-need-to-negotiate-commeretatly
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prste-. Moreover ehsptﬁes—Dlsputes may arise regardlng intellectual property subJ ect to a licensing agreement 1nclud1ng °
the scope of rights granted under the license agreement and other interpretation- related issues; ® the extent to which our product
candidates, technology and processes infringe on intellectual property of the licensor that is not subject to the licensing
agreement; e the sublicensing of patent and other rights under our collaborative development relationships; ® our diligence
obligations under the license agreement and what activities satisfy those diligence obligations; e the inventorship and
ownership of inventions and know- how resulting from the joint creation or use of intellectual property by our licensors and us
and our partners; and e the priority of invention of patented technology. In addition, the agreements under which we currently
license intellectual property or technology from third parties are complex, and certain provisions in such agreements may be
susceptible to multiple interpretations. The resolution of any contract interpretation disagreement that may arise could narrow
what we believe to be the scope of our rights to the relevant intellectual property or technology, or increase what we believe to
be our financial or other obligations under the relevant agreement, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects. Moreover, if disputes over intellectual property that we have
licensed prevent or impair our ability to maintain our current licensing arrangements on commercially acceptable terms, we may
be unable to successfully develop and commercialize the affected product candidates, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial conditions, results of operations, and prospects. We may face uncertainty and difficulty in obtaining
and enforcing our patents and other proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that any patent applications we file or license
will be approved, or that challenges will not be instituted against the validity or enforceability of any patent licensed- in or
owned by us. Our pending and future patent applications may not result in patents being issued that protect our product
candidates, in whole or in part, or which effectively prevent others from commercializing competitive product candidates. Even
if our patent applications issue as patents, they may not issue in a form that will provide us with any meaningful protection,
prevent competitors from competing with us or otherwise provide us with any competitive advantage. Our competitors may be
able to circumvent our patents by developing similar or alternative product candidates in a non- infringing manner. The cost of
litigation to uphold the validity and prevent infringement of a patent is substantial. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that
others will not independently develop substantially equivalent technologies not covered by patents to which we have rights or
obtain access to our know- how. In addition, the laws of certain countries may not adequately protect our intellectual property.
Our competitors may possess or obtain patents on products or processes that are necessary or useful to the development, use, or
manufacture of our product candidates. There can also be no assurance that our proposed technology will not infringe upon
patents or proprietary rights owned by others, with the result that others may bring infringement claims against us and require us
to license such proprietary rights, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. Any such litigation, if
instituted, could have a material adverse effect, potentially including monetary penalties, diversion of management resources,
and injunction against continued manufacture, use, or sale of certain products or processes. We rely upon non- patented
proprietary know- how. There can be no assurance that we can adequately protect our rights in such non- patented proprietary
know- how, or that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or techniques or gain
access to our proprietary know- how. Any of the foregoing events could have a material adverse effect on us. In addition, if any
of our trade secrets, know- how or other proprietary information were to be disclosed, or misappropriated, the value of our trade
secrets, know- how and other proprietary rights would be significantly impaired and our business and competitive position
would suffer. In September 2011, the Leahy- Smith America Invents Act, or the Leahy- Smith Act, was signed into law. The
Leahy- Smith Act includes a number of significant changes to U. S. patent law. These include provisions that affect the way
patent applications will be prosecuted and may also affect patent litigation. In particular, under the Leahy- Smith Act, the United
States transitioned in March 2013 to a “ first to file ” system in which the first inventor to file a patent application will be entitled



to the patent. Third parties are allowed to submit prior art before the issuance of a patent by the U. S. Patent and Trademark
Office, or USPTO, and may become involved in opposition, derivation, post- grant and inter partes review, or interference
proceedings challenging our patent rights. An adverse determination in any such submission, proceeding or litigation could
reduce the scope of, or invalidate, our patent rights, which could adversely affect our competitive position. The USPTO has
developed new and untested regulations and procedures to govern the full implementation of the Leahy- Smith Act, and many of
the substantive changes to patent law associated with the Leahy- Smith Act, and in particular, the “ first- to- file ” provisions,
only became effective in March 2013. The Leahy- Smith Act has also introduced procedures that may make it easier for third
parties to challenge issued patents, as well as to intervene in the prosecution of patent applications. Finally, the Leahy- Smith
Act contains new statutory provisions that still require the USPTO to issue new regulations for their implementation, and it may
take the courts years to interpret the provisions of the new statute. Accordingly, it is not clear what, if any, impact the Leahy-
Smith Act will have on the operation of our business. The Leahy- Smith Act and its implementation could increase the
uncertainties and costs surrounding the prosecution of our patent applications and the enforcement or defense of our issued
patents. We may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights throughout the world. Filing, prosecuting and defending
patents on our product candidates in all countries throughout the world would be prohibitively expensive, and our intellectual
property rights in some countries outside the United States may be less extensive than those in the United States. In addition, the
laws of some foreign countries do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as federal and state laws in the
United States. Consequently, we may not be able to prevent third parties from practicing our inventions in all countries outside
the United States, or from selling or importing products made using our inventions in and into the United States or other
jurisdictions. Competitors may use our technologies in jurisdictions where we do not obtain patent protection to develop their
own products and may also export infringing products to territories where we have patent protection, but enforcement is not as
strong as that in the United States. These products may compete with our products and our patents or other intellectual property
rights may not be effective or sufficient to prevent them from competing. Many companies have encountered significant
problems in protecting and defending intellectual property rights in foreign jurisdictions. The legal systems of certain countries,
particularly certain developing countries, do not favor the enforcement of patents, trade secrets, and other intellectual property
protection, particularly those relating to biotechnology products, which could make it difficult for us to stop the infringement of
our patents or marketing of competing products in violation of our proprietary rights generally. Proceedings to enforce our patent
rights in foreign jurisdictions, whether or not successful, could result in substantial costs and divert our efforts and attention
from other aspects of our business, could put our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and our patent
applications at risk of not issuing and could provoke third parties to assert claims against us. We may not prevail in any lawsuits
that we initiate and the damages or other remedies awarded, if any, may not be commercially meaningful. Accordingly, our
efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights around the world may be inadequate to obtain a significant commercial
advantage from the intellectual property that we develop or license. Patent terms may be inadequate to protect our competitive
position on our product candidates for an adequate amount of time. Patents have a limited lifespan. In the United States, if all
maintenance fees are timely paid, the natural expiration of a patent is generally 20 years from its earliest U. S. non- provisional
filing date. Various extensions may be available, but the life of a patent, and the protection it affords, is limited. Even if patents
covering our product candidates are obtained, once the patent life has expired, we may be open to competition from competitive
products, including generics or biosimilars. Given the amount of time required for the development, testing and regulatory
review of new product candidates, patents protecting such candidates might expire before or shortly after such candidates are
commercialized. As a result, any patents we may obtain may not provide us with sufficient rights to exclude others from
commercializing products similar or identical to ours. Obtaining and maintaining patent protection depends on compliance with
various procedural, document submission, fee payment and other requirements imposed by governmental patent agencies, and
any patent protection we may obtain in the future could be reduced or eliminated for non- compliance with these requirements.
Periodic maintenance fees, renewal fees, annuity fees and various other governmental fees on patents and / or applications will
be due to be paid to the USPTO and various governmental patent agencies outside of the United States in several stages over the
lifetime of the patents and / or applications. The USPTO and various non- U. S. governmental patent agencies require
compliance with a number of procedural, documentary, fee payment and other similar provisions during the patent application
process. There are situations in which non- compliance can result in abandonment or lapse of the patent or patent application,
resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. In such an event, our competitors might be able
to enter the market and this circumstance would have a material adverse effect on our business. It is difficult and costly to
protect our proprietary rights, and we may not be able to ensure their protection. If we fail to protect or enforce our intellectual
property rights adequately or secure rights to patents of others, the value of our intellectual property rights would diminish. Our
commercial viability will depend in part on obtaining and maintaining patent protection and trade secret protection of our
product candidates, and the methods used to manufacture them, as well as successfully defending these patents against third-
party challenges. Our ability to stop third parties from making, using, selling, offering to sell, or importing our products is
dependent upon the extent to which we obtain rights under valid and enforceable patents or trade secrets that cover these
activities. The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical companies can be highly uncertain and involve
complex legal and factual questions for which important legal principles remain unresolved. No consistent policy regarding the
breadth of claims allowed in biopharmaceutical patents has emerged to date in the United States. The biopharmaceutical patent
situation outside the United States is even more uncertain. Changes in either the patent laws or in interpretations of patent laws
in the United States and other countries may diminish the value of our intellectual property. Accordingly, we cannot predict the
breadth of claims that may be allowed or enforced in the patents we own. Further, if any of our patents are deemed invalid and
unenforceable, it could impact our ability to commercialize or license our technology. The degree of future protection for our
proprietary rights is uncertain because legal means afford only limited protection and may not adequately protect our rights or



permit us to gain or keep our competitive advantage. For example: ® others may be able to make products that are similar to our
product candidates but that are not covered by the claims of any patents; ® we might not have been the first to make the
inventions covered by any issued patents or patent applications; ® we might not have been the first to file patent applications for
these inventions; e it is possible that any patent applications we own or license will not result in issued patents; ® any issued
patents may not provide us with any competitive advantages, or may be held invalid or unenforceable as a result of legal
challenges by third parties; ® we may not develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable or protectable under
trade secrets law; or @ the patents of others may have an adverse effect on our business. We also may rely on trade secrets to
protect our technology, especially where we do not believe patent protection is appropriate or obtainable. However, trade secrets
are difficult to protect. Although we use reasonable efforts to protect our trade secrets, our employees, consultants, contractors,
outside scientific collaborators, and other advisors may unintentionally or willfully disclose our information to competitors. In
addition, courts outside the United States are sometimes less willing to protect trade secrets. Moreover, our competitors may
independently develop equivalent knowledge, methods, and know- how. We may be subject to claims challenging the
inventorship of patents and other intellectual property. We or our licensors may be subject to claims that former employees,
collaborators or other third parties have an interest as an inventor or co- inventor in intellectual property we own or license. For
example, we or our licensors may have inventorship disputes arise from conflicting obligations of employees, consultants or
others who are involved in developing our product candidates. We may be subject to claims by third parties asserting that our
licensors, employees or we have misappropriated their intellectual property, or claiming ownership of what we regard as our
own intellectual property. Litigation may be necessary to defend against these and other claims challenging inventorship or our
or our licensors’ ownership of our owned or in- licensed patents, trade secrets or other intellectual property. If we or our
licensors fail in defending any such claims, in addition to paying monetary damages, we may lose valuable intellectual property
rights, such as exclusive ownership of, or right to use, intellectual property that is important to our product candidates. Even if
we are successful in defending against such claims, litigation could result in substantial costs and be a distraction to
management and other employees. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. If any of our trade secrets, know- how or other proprietary information is
disclosed, the value of our trade secrets, know- how and other proprietary rights would be significantly impaired and our
business and competitive position would suffer. Our viability also depends upon the skills, knowledge and experience of our
scientific and technical personnel, and our consultants and advisors. To help protect our proprietary know- how and our
inventions for which patents may be unobtainable or difficult to obtain, we rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality
agreements. To this end, we require all of our employees, consultants, advisors and contractors to enter into agreements which
prohibit unauthorized disclosure and use of confidential information and, where applicable, require disclosure and assignment to
us of the ideas, developments, discoveries and inventions important to our business. These agreements are often limited in
duration and may not provide adequate protection for our trade secrets, know- how or other proprietary information in the event
of any unauthorized use or disclosure or the lawful development by others of such information. There is no assurance that such
agreements will be honored by such parties or enforced in whole or part by the courts. We cannot be certain that others will not
gain access to these trade secrets or that our patents will provide adequate protection. Others may independently develop
substantially equivalent proprietary information and techniques or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets. In addition,
enforcing a claim that a third party illegally obtained and is using any of our trade secrets is expensive and time consuming, and
the outcome is unpredictable. If any of our trade secrets, know- how or other proprietary information is improperly disclosed,
the value of our trade secrets, know- how and other proprietary rights would be significantly impaired and our business and
competitive position would suffer. We may incur substantial costs as a result of litigation or other proceedings relating to patent
and other intellectual property rights and we may be unable to protect our rights to, or use of, our technology. If we choose to go
to court to stop a third party from using the inventions claimed in our patents, that individual or company has the right to ask the
court to rule that such patents are invalid and / or should not be enforced against that third party. These lawsuits are expensive
and would consume time and other resources, even if we were successful in discontinuing the infringement of our patents. In
addition, there is a risk that the court will decide that these patents are not valid and that we do not have the right to stop the
other party from using the inventions. There is also the risk that, even if the validity of these patents is upheld, the court will
refuse to stop the other party on the ground that such other party’ s activities do not infringe our rights to these patents. In
addition, the U. S. Supreme Court has in the past invalidated tests used by the USPTO in granting patents over the past 20 years.
As a consequence, issued patents may be found to contain invalid claims according to the newly revised standards. Some of our
own patents may be subject to challenge and subsequent invalidation in a variety of post- grant proceedings, particularly inter
partes review, before the USPTO or during litigation under the revised criteria, which make it more difficult to defend the
validity of claims in already issued patents. Furthermore, a third party may claim that we or our manufacturing or
commercialization partners are using inventions covered by the third party’ s patent rights and may go to court to stop us from
engaging in our normal operations and activities, including making or selling our product candidates. These lawsuits are costly
and could affect our results of operations and divert the attention of managerial and technical personnel. There is a risk that a
court could decide that we or our commercialization partners are infringing the third party’ s patents and order us or our partners
to stop the activities covered by the patents. In addition, there is a risk that a court could order us or our partners to pay the other
party damages for having violated the other party’ s patents. The biotechnology industry has produced a proliferation of patents,
and it is not always clear to industry participants, including us, which patents cover various types of products, manufacturing
processes or methods of use. The coverage of patents is subject to interpretation by the courts, and the interpretation is not
always uniform. If we are sued for patent infringement, we would need to demonstrate that our products, manufacturing
processes or methods of use either do not infringe the patent claims of the relevant patent and / or that the patent claims are
invalid, and we may not be able to do this. Proving invalidity, in particular, is difficult since it requires a showing of clear and



convincing evidence to overcome the presumption of validity enjoyed by issued patents. As some patent applications in the
United States may be maintained in secrecy until the patents are issued, because patent applications in the United States and
many foreign jurisdictions are typically not published until eighteen months after filing, and because publications in the
scientific literature often lag behind actual discoveries, we cannot be certain that others have not filed patent applications for
technology covered by our issued patents or our pending applications, or that we were the first to invent the technology. Our
competitors may have filed, and may in the future file, patent applications covering technology similar to ours. Any such patent
applications may have priority over our patent applications or patents, which could further require us to obtain rights to issued
patents covering such technologies. If another party has filed a United States patent application on inventions similar to ours, we
may have to participate in an interference proceeding declared by the USPTO to determine priority of invention in the United
States. The costs of these proceedings could be substantial, and it is possible that such efforts would be unsuccessful if,
unbeknownst to us, the other party had independently arrived at the same or similar invention prior to our own invention,
resulting in a loss of our U. S. patent position with respect to such inventions. Some of our competitors may be able to sustain
the costs of complex patent litigation more effectively than we can because they have substantially greater resources. In
addition, any uncertainties resulting from the initiation and continuation of any litigation or inter partes review proceedings
could have a material adverse effect on our ability to raise the funds necessary to continue our operations. Some jurisdictions in
which we operate have enacted legislation which allows members of the public to access information under statutes similar to
the U. S. Freedom of Information Act. Even though we believe our information would be excluded from the scope of such
statutes, there are no assurances that we can protect our confidential information from being disclosed under the provisions of
such laws. If any confidential or proprietary information is released to the public, such disclosures may negatively impact our
ability to protect our intellectual property rights. Breaches or compromises of our information security systems or our
information technology systems or infrastructure could result in exposure of private information, disruption of our business and
damage to our reputation, which could harm our business, results of operation and financial condition. We utilize information
security and information technology systems and websites that allow for the secure storage and transmission of proprietary or
private information regarding our clients, patients, employees, vendors and others, including individually identifiable health
information. A security breach of our network, hosted service providers, or vendor systems, may expose us to a risk of loss or
misuse of this information, litigation and potential liability. Hackers and data thieves are increasingly sophisticated and operate
large- scale and complex automated attacks, including on companies within the healthcare industry. Although we believe that
we take appropriate measures to safeguard sensitive information within our possession, we may not have the resources or
technical sophistication to anticipate or prevent rapidly- evolving types of cyber- attacks targeted at us, our clients, our patients,
or others who have entrusted us with information. Actual or anticipated attacks may cause us to incur costs, including costs to
deploy additional personnel and protection technologies, train employees, and engage third- party experts and consultants. We
invest in industry standard security technology to protect personal information. Advances in computer capabilities, new
technological discoveries, or other developments may result in the technology used by us to protect personal information or
other data being breached or compromised. To our knowledge, we have not experienced any material breach of our
cybersecurity systems. If our or our third- party service provider systems fail to operate effectively or are damaged, destroyed, or
shut down, or there are problems with transitioning to upgraded or replacement systems, or there are security breaches in these
systems, any of the aforementioned could occur as a result of natural disasters, software or equipment failures,
telecommunications failures, loss or theft of equipment, acts of terrorism, circumvention of security systems, or other cyber-
attacks, we could experience delays or decreases in revenue, and reduced efficiency of our operations. Additionally, any of these
events could lead to violations of privacy laws, loss of customers, or loss, misappropriation or corruption of confidential
information, trade secrets or data, which could expose us to potential litigation, regulatory actions, sanctions or other statutory
penalties, any or all of which could adversely affect our business, and cause us to incur significant losses and remediation costs.
We may be exposed to liabilities under the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and any determination that we violated the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act or Chinese anti- corruption law could have a material adverse effect on our business. We are subject to the
Foreign Corrupt Practice Act, or FCPA, and other laws that prohibit improper payments or offers of payments to foreign
governments and their officials and political parties by U. S. persons and issuers as defined by the statute, for the purpose of
obtaining or retaining business. We have operations and agreements with third parties where corruption may occur. It is our
policy to implement safeguards to prevent these practices by our employees. However, our existing safeguards and any future
improvements may prove to be less than effective, and the employees, consultants, sales agents or distributors of our company
may engage in conduct for which we might be held responsible. Violations of the FCPA or other anti- corruption laws may
result in severe criminal or civil sanctions, and we may be subject to other liabilities, which could negatively affect our business,
operating results and financial condition. In addition, the United States government may seek to hold our company liable for
successor liability FCPA violations committed by companies in which we invest or that we acquire. RiskFaetorsRetated-to-our

ao










reventes—Changes or disruption in services supplies, or transportation provided by thlrd pdmes have 1mpagted and could
continue to impact or adversely affect our business. We depend on third parties to provide supplies and services critical to our
laboratory-serviees-Keto Air business. We are heavily reliant on third- party ground and air travel for transport of elinteat-triat
aﬁd-dmonostlc testing suppllesaﬂd—speetmeﬁs—fese&feh—pfe&ueﬁ—&ndﬁeep}e— A s1gn1tlcant disruption to these travel systems,

v —Disruptions to the
contmued supply, or increases in costs, of these seﬁ‘tees—ploduuts . ,—er—&n-ima-l—pepﬂ-}&&eﬁs—may arise from export / import
restrictions or embargoes, political or economic instability, pressure from animal rights activists, adverse weather, natural
disasters, public health crises, transportation disruptions, cyber- attacks, or other causes, as well as from termination of
relationships with suppliers or vendors for their failure to follow our performance standards and requirements. Disruption of
supplv and serv 1ces hds impacted and Could Contmue to impact or ha\ ea mdtendl adv erse effect on our busmess —Geﬁt-rﬂued-aﬂd
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advefse}y—nﬁpaet—us— RlSk F actors Related to Ghmea-l—and—Commercmhzatlon Act1V1ty Guﬁbustness-Some of our medlcal
device products in the future may faees— face significant government regulatlon and there is no guarantee that our pfeduet

eandidates-medical devices will receive regulatory approval. The
antietpated-human-elintealt-trials;-and-antieipated-manufacturing and marketmg of our potentlal medlcal dev1ce products are
such as our breathalyzer system may be subject to extensive regulation by the FDA and other regulatory authorities in the
United States, as well as by regulatory authorities in other countries. In the United States, our product candidates are subject to
regulation as biological products or as combination biological products / medical devices under the Federal Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Act, the Public Health Service Act and other statutes, as outlined in the Code of Federal Regulations. Different
regulatory requirements may apply to our products depending on how they are categorized by the FDA under these laws. These
regulations can be subject to substantial and significant interpretation, addition, amendment or revision by the FDA and by the
legislative process. The FDA may determine that we will need to undertake clinical trials beyond those currently planned.
Furthermore, the FDA may determine that results of clinical trials do not support approval for the product. Similar
determinations may be encountered in foreign countries. The FDA will continue to monitor products in the market after
approval, if any, and may determine to withdraw its approval or otherwise seriously affect the marketing efforts for any such
product. The same possibilities exist for trials to be conducted outside of the United States that are subject to regulations
established by local authorities and local law. Any such determinations would delay or deny the introduction of our product
candidates to the market and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. €el
based-therapeuties-Certain medical devices arc subject to ongoing periodic unannounced inspection by the FDA, the Drug
Enforcement Agency, other federal agencies and corresponding state agencies to ensure strict compliance with good
manufacturing practices, and other government regulations and corresponding foreign standards. We do not have control over
third- party manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations and standards, nor can we guarantee that we will maintain
compliance with such regulations in regards— regard to our own manufacturing processes. Other risks include: e regulatory
authorities may require the addition of labeling statements, specific warnings, a contraindication, or field alerts to physicians and
pharmacies; ® regulatory authorities may withdraw their approval of the IND or the product or require us to take our approved
products off the market; ® we may be required to change the way the product is manufactured or administered and we may be
required to conduct additional clinical trials or change the labeling of our products; ® we may have limitations on how we
promote our products; and @ we may be subject to litigation or product liability claims. Even if our preduet-eandidates-medical
devices receive regulatory approval in the United States, we may never receive approval or commercialize our product
candidates outside of the United States. In order to market and commercialize any product candidate outside of the United
States, we must establish and comply with numerous and varying regulatory requirements of other countries regarding
manufacturing, safety and efficacy. Approval procedures vary among countries and can involve additional product testing and
additional administrative review periods. The time required to obtain approval in other countries might differ from that required
to obtain FDA approval. The regulatory approval process in other countries may include all of the risks detailed above regarding
FDA approval in the United States as well as other risks. Regulatory approval in one country does not ensure regulatory
approval in another, but a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one country may have a negative effect on the
regulatory approval process in others. Failure to obtain regulatory approval in other countries, or any delay or setback in
obtaining such approval, could have the same adverse effects detailed above regarding FDA approval in the United States. Such
effects include the risks that our product candidates may not be approved for all indications requested, which could limit the
uses of our product candidates and have an adverse effect on product sales and potential royalties, and that such approval may be
subject to limitations on the indicated uses for which the product may be marketed or require costly, post- marketing follow- up
studies. Even if our preduet-eandidates-medical devices receive regulatory approval, we may still face future development and
regulatory difficulties. Even if U. S. regulatory approval is obtained, the FDA may still impose significant restrictions on a
product’ s indicated uses or marketing, or impose ongoing requirements for potentially costly post- approval studies. If any of
our products were granted accelerated approval, FDA could require post- marketing confirmatory trials to verify and describe
the anticipated effect on irreversible morbidity or mortality or other clinical benefit. FDA may withdraw approval of a drug or
indication approved under the accelerated approval pathway if a trial required to verify the predicted clinical benefit of the
product fails to verify such benefit; other evidence demonstrates that the product is not shown to be safe or effective under the
conditions of use; the applicant fails to conduct any required post- approval trial of the drug with due diligence; or the applicant
disseminates false or misleading promotional materials relating to the product. In addition, the FDA currently requires as a
condition for accelerated approval the pre- approval of promotional materials, which could adversely impact the timing of the



commercial launch of the product. Given the number of recent high- profile adverse safety events with certain medical devices
drug-and-eeltrelated-produets-, the FDA may require, as a condition of approval, costly risk management programs, which may
include safety surveillance, restricted distribution and use, patient education, enhanced labeling, special packaging or labeling,
expedited reporting of certain adverse events, pre- approval of promotional materials, and restrictions on direct- to- consumer
advertising. Furthermore, heightened Congressional scrutiny on the adequacy of the FDA” s drug approval process and the
FDA’ s efforts to assure the safety of marketed cell based therapy has resulted in the proposal of new legislation addressing drug
safety issues. If enacted, any new legislation could result in delays or increased costs during the period of product development 5
elinteat-trials-, and regulatory review and approval, as well as increased costs to assure compliance with any new post- approval
regulatory requirements. Any of these restrictions or requirements could force us to conduct costly studies or increase the time
for us to become profitable. For example, any labeling approved for any of our product candidates may include a restriction on
the term of its use, or it may not include one or more of our intended indications. Our product candidates will also be subject to
ongoing FDA requirements for the labeling, packaging, storage, advertising, promotion, record- keeping, and submission of
safety and other post- market information on the cell based therapy. New issues may arise during a product lifecycle that did not
exist, or were unknown, at the time of product approval, such as adverse events of unanticipated severity or frequency, or
problems with the facility where the product is manufactured. Since approved products, manufacturers, and manufacturers’
facilities are subject to continuous review and periodic inspections, these new issues post- approval may result in voluntary
actions by us or may result in a regulatory agency imposing restrictions on that product or us, including requiring withdrawal of
the product from the market or for use in a clinical study. If our product candidates fail to comply with applicable regulatory
requirements, such as good manufacturing practices, a regulatory agency may: @ issue warning letters; ® require us to enter into
a consent decree, which can include imposition of various fines, reimbursements for inspection costs, required due dates for
specific actions, and penalties for noncompliance; ® impose other civil or criminal penalties; ® suspend regulatory approval; e
suspend any ongoing clinical trials; e refuse to approve pending applications or supplements to approved applications filed by
us; @ impose restrictions on operations, including costly new manufacturing requirements; or ® seize or detain products or
require a product recall. If we or current or future collaborators, manufacturers, or service providers fail to comply with
healthcare laws and regulations, we or they could be subject to enforcement actions and substantial penalties, which could affect
our ability to develop, market and sell our products and may harm our reputation. Although we de-netcurrently are only have
any-produets-on-the-marketmarketing Keto Air , once our medical devices therapeutie-eandidates-orelinteal-trials-are covered
by federal health care programs, we will be subject to additional healthcare statutory and regulatory requirements and
enforcement by the federal, state and foreign governments of the jurisdictions in which we conduct our business. Healthcare
providers, physicians and third party payors play a primary role in the recommendation and prescription of any therapentie
eandidatesmedical devices for which we obtain marketing approval. Our future arrangements with third party payors and
customers may expose us to broadly applicable fraud and abuse, transparency, and other healthcare laws and regulations that
may constrain the business or financial arrangements and relationships through which we market, sell and distribute our
therapeutic candidates for which we obtain marketing approval. Restrictions under applicable federal and state healthcare laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to, the following: e the U. S. federal Anti- Kickback Statute, which prohibits, among
other things, persons from soliciting, receiving, offering or providing remuneration, directly or indirectly, to induce either the
referral of an individual for a healthcare item or service, or the purchasing or ordering of an item or service, for which payment
may be made, in whole or in part, under a federal healthcare program such as Medicare or Medicaid; e federal civil and criminal
false claims laws and civil monetary penalty laws, such as the U. S. federal FCA, which imposes criminal and civil penalties,
including through civil whistleblower or qui tam actions, against, individuals or entities for knowingly presenting or causing to
be presented, to the federal government, claims for payment that are false or fraudulent or making a false statement to avoid,
decrease or conceal an obligation to pay money to the federal government. In addition, the government may assert that a claim
including items and services resulting from a violation of the federal Anti- Kickback Statute constitutes a false or fraudulent
claim for purposes of the FCA; @ HIPAA includes a fraud and abuse provision referred to as the HIPAA All- Payor Fraud Law,
which imposes criminal and civil liability for executing a scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit program, or knowingly and
willfully falsifying, concealing or covering up a material fact or making any materially false statement in connection with the
delivery of or payment for healthcare benefits, items or services. Similar to the federal Anti- Kickback Statute, a person or entity
does not need to have actual knowledge of the statute or specific intent to violate it in order to have committed a violation; @
HIPAA, as amended by HITECH, and its implementing regulations, which impose obligations on certain covered entity
healthcare providers, health plans, and healthcare clearinghouses as well as their business associates that perform certain
services involving the use or disclosure of individually identifiable health information, including mandatory contractual terms,
with respect to safeguarding, the privacy, security, and transmission of individually identifiable health information, and require
notification to affected individuals and regulatory authorities of certain breaches of security of individually identifiable health
information; e federal and state consumer protection and unfair competition laws, which broadly regulate marketplace activities
and activities that potentially harm consumers; and e the federal Physician Payment Sunshine Act and the implementing
regulations, also referred to as “ Open Payments, ” issued under the ACA, which require that manufacturers of pharmaceutical
and biological drugs reimbursable under Medicare, Medicaid, and Children’ s Health Insurance Programs report to the
Department of Health and Human Services all consulting fees, travel reimbursements, research grants, and other payments,
transfers of Value or glfts made to physmlans and teachmg hospltals Wlth hmlted exceptlons andThe aﬂd—o—aﬁa{egeufstafe-}aws




scope and enforcement of each of these laws is uncertain and subject to raprd change in the current enV1ronrnent of healthcare
reform, especially in light of the lack of applicable precedent and regulations. Federal and state enforcement bodies have
recently increased their scrutiny of interactions between healthcare companies and healthcare providers, which has led to a
number of investigations, prosecutions, convictions and settlements in the healthcare industry. Responding to investigations can
be time- and resource- consuming and can divert management’ s attention from the business. Any such investigation or
settlement could increase our costs or otherwise have an adverse effect on our business. Ensuring that our business arrangements
with third- parties comply with applicable healthcare laws and regulations could involve substantial costs. If our operations are
found to be in violation of any such requirements, we may be subject to penalties, including civil or criminal penalties, monetary
damages, the curtailment or restructuring of our operations, or exclusion from participation in government contracting,
healthcare reimbursement or other government programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, any of which could adversely affect
our financial results. Although effective compliance programs can mitigate the risk of investigation and prosecution for
violations of these laws, these risks cannot be entirely eliminated. Any action against us for an alleged or suspected violation
could cause us to incur significant legal expenses and could divert our management’ s attention from the operation of our
business, even if our defense is successful. In addition, achieving and sustaining compliance with applicable laws and
regulations may be costly to us in terms of money, time and resources. Any medical devices eet-based-therapies-we develop
may become subject to unfavorable pricing regulations, third party coverage and reimbursement practices or healthcare reform
initiatives, thereby harming our business. The regulations that govern marketing approvals, pricing, coverage and reimbursement
for new medical devices drigs-and-eel-based-theraptes-vary widely from country to country. Some countries require approval
of the sale price of a drag-device before it can be marketed. In many countries, the pricing review period begins after marketing
or product licensing approval is granted. In some foreign markets, prescription pharmaceutical pricing remains subject to
continuing governmental control even after initial approval is granted. Although we intend to monitor these regulations, our
programs are currently in earlier stages of development and we will not be able to assess the impact of price regulations for a
number of years. As a result, we might obtain regulatory approval for a product in a particular country, but then be subject to
price regulations that delay our commercial launch of the product and negatively impact the revenues we are able to generate
from the sale of the product in that country. Our ability to commercialize any products successfully also will depend in part on
the extent to which coverage and reimbursement for these products and related treatments will be available from government
health administration authorities, private health insurers and other organizations. However, there may be significant delays in
obtaining coverage for newly- approved eet-based-theraptes-medical devices. . Morcover, eligibility for coverage does not
necessarily signify that a cell based therapy will be reimbursed in all cases or at a rate that covers our costs, including research,
development, manufacture, sale and distribution costs. Also, interim payments for new cell based therapy if applicable, may be
insufficient to cover our costs and may not be made permanent. Thus, even if we succeed in bringing one or more products to
the market, these products may not be considered medically necessary or cost- effective, and the amount reimbursed for any
products may be insufficient to allow us to sell our products on a competitive basis. Because our programs are in earlier stages of
development, we are unable at this time to determine their cost effectiveness, or the likely level or method of reimbursement. In
addition, obtaining coverage and reimbursement approval of a product from a government or other third- party payor is a time-
consuming and costly process that could require us to provide to each payor supporting scientific, clinical and cost- effectiveness
data for the use of our product on a payor- by- payor basis, with no assurance that coverage and adequate reimbursement will be
obtained. A payor’ s decision to provide coverage for a product does not imply that an adequate reimbursement rate will be
approved. Further, one payor’ s determination to provide coverage for a product does not assure that other payors will also
provide coverage for the product. Adequate third- party reimbursement may not be available to enable us to maintain price
levels sufficient to realize an appropriate return on our investment in product development. If reimbursement is not available or
is available only at limited levels, we may not be able to successfully commercialize any product candidate that we successfully
develop. Increasingly, the third party payors who reimburse patients or healthcare providers, such as government and private
insurance plans, are seeking greater upfront discounts, additional rebates and other concessions to reduce the prices for
pharmaceutical products. If the price we are able to charge for any products we develop, or the reimbursement provided for
such products, is 1nadequate in hght of our development and other costs, our return on 1nvestment could be adversely affected.

product is reasonable and necessary for the d1agnos1s or treatment of the 1llness or injury for which the product is adnnnrstered
according to accepted standards of medical practice; ® the product is typically furnished incident to a physician’ s services; ®
the indication for which the product will be used is included or approved for inclusion in certain Medicare- designated
pharmaceutical compendia (when used for an off- label use); and e the product has been approved by the FDA. Average prices
for eet-theraptes-medical devices may be reduced by mandatory discounts or rebates required by government healthcare
programs or private payors and by any future relaxation of laws that presently restrict imports of medical devices drags-and-eelt
based-therapy-from countries where they may be sold at lower prices than in the U. S. Reimbursement rates under Medicare Part
B would depend in part on Whether the newly approved product Would be ellglble for a unlque billing code -Sel-f-—admrmstefed—




difficult for us to predict how Medicare coverage and reimbursement policies will be applied to our products in the future and
coverage and reimbursement under different federal healthcare programs are not always consistent. Medicare reimbursement
rates may also reflect budgetary constraints placed on the Medicare program. Third party payors often rely upon Medicare
coverage policies and payment limitations in setting their own reimbursement rates. These coverage policies and limitations
may rely, in part, on compendia listings for approved therapeutics. Our inability to promptly obtain relevant compendia listings,
coverage, and adequate reimbursement from both government- funded and private payors for products new-eel-based-theraptes
that we develop and for which we obtain regulatory approval could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, our
ability to raise capital needed to commercialize products and our financial condition. We expect that these and other healthcare
reform measures that may be adopted in the future, may result in more rigorous coverage criteria and lower reimbursement, and
in additional downward pressure on the price that we receive for any approved product. Any reduction in reimbursement from
Medicare or other government- funded programs may result in a similar reduction in payments from private payors. The
implementation of cost containment measures or other healthcare reforms may prevent us from being able to generate revenue,
attain profitability or commercialize our products eel-based-theraptes-, once marketing approval is obtained. We believe that
the efforts of governments and third party payors to contain or reduce the cost of healthcare and legislative and regulatory
proposals to broaden the availability of healthcare will continue to affect the business and financial condition of pharmaceutical
and biopharmaceutical companies. A number of legislative and regulatory changes in the healthcare system in the U. S. and
other major healthcare markets have been proposed, and such efforts have expanded substantially in recent years. These
developments could, directly or indirectly, affect our ability to sell our products, if approved, at a favorable price. For example,
in the United States, in 2010, the U. S. Congress passed the ACA, a sweeping law intended to broaden access to health
insurance, reduce or constrain the growth of health spending, enhance remedies against fraud and abuse, add new transparency
requirements for the healthcare and health insurance industries, impose new taxes and fees on the health industry and impose
additional policy reforms. Among the provisions of the ACA addressing coverage and reimbursement of pharmaceutical

products of 1mp0rtance to our potentlal therapeutlc candldates are the followrng O—mefeases—te-ph‘aﬂﬁaeeuﬂea{-m&ﬂ&faefufef

- Separately, pursuant to the health
reform legislation and related initiatives, the Centers for Medicare and Medrcald Services, or CMS, is working with various
healthcare providers to develop, refine, and implement Accountable Care Organizations, or ACOs, and other innovative models
of care for Medicare and Medicaid beneficiaries, including the Bundled Payments for Care Improvement Initiative, the
Comprehensive Primary Care Initiative, the Duals Demonstration, and other models. The continued development and expansion
of ACOs and other innovative models of care will have an uncertain impact on any future reimbursement we may receive for
approved therapeutics administered by these organizations. The healthcare industry is heavily regulated in the U. S. at the
federal, state, and local levels, and our failure to comply with applicable requirements may subject us to penalties and negatively
affect our financial condition. As a healthcare company, our operations yehnteal-trial-aetivittes-and interactions with healthcare
providers may be subject to extensive regulation in the U. S., particularly if we receive FDA approval for any of its products in
the future. For example, if we receive FDA approval for a product for which reimbursement is available under a federal
healthcare program (e. g., Medicare, Medicaid), it would be subject to a variety of federal laws and regulations, including those
that prohibit the filing of false or improper claims for payment by federal healthcare programs (e. g. the federal False Claims
Act), prohibit unlawful inducements for the referral of business reimbursable by federal healthcare programs (e. g. the federal
Anti- Kickback Statute), and require disclosure of certain payments or other transfers of value made to U. S.- licensed
physicians and teaching hospitals or Open Payments. We are not able to predict how third parties will interpret these laws and
apply applicable governmental guidance and may challenge our practices and activities under one or more of these laws. If our
past or present operations are found to be in violation of any of these laws, we could be subject to civil and criminal penalties,
which could hurt our business, our operations and financial condition. The federal Anti- Kickback Statute prohibits, among
other things, any person or entity, from knowingly and willfully offering, paying, soliciting or receiving any remuneration,
directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind, to induce or in return for purchasing, leasing, ordering or arranging
for the purchase, lease or order of any item or service reimbursable under Medicare, Medicaid or other federal healthcare
programs. The term remuneration has been interpreted broadly to include anything of value. The Anti- Kickback Statute has
been interpreted to apply to arrangements between pharmaceutical manufacturers on one hand and prescribers, purchasers, and
formulary managers on the other. There are a number of statutory exceptions and regulatory safe harbors protecting some
common activities from prosecution. The exceptions and safe harbors are drawn narrowly and practices that involve
remuneration that may be alleged to be intended to induce prescribing, purchasing or recommending may be subject to scrutiny
if they do not qualify for an exception or safe harbor. Failure to meet all of the requirements of a particular applicable statutory



exception or regulatory safe harbor does not make the conduct per se illegal under the Anti- Kickback Statute. Instead, the
legality of the arrangement will be evaluated on a case- by- case basis based on a cumulative review of all of its facts and
circumstances. Our practices may not in all cases meet all of the criteria for protection under a statutory exception or regulatory
safe harbor. Additionally, the intent standard under the Anti- Kickback Statute was amended by the ACA, to a stricter standard
such that a person or entity no longer needs to have actual knowledge of the statute or specific intent to violate it in order to have
committed a violation. In addition, the ACA codified case law that a claim including items or services resulting from a violation
of the federal Anti- Kickback Statute constitutes a false or fraudulent claim for purposes of the federal FCA. The civil monetary
penalties statute imposes penalties against any person or entity that, among other things, is determined to have presented or
caused to be presented a claim to a federal healthcare program that the person knows or should know is for an item or service
that was not provided as claimed or is false or fraudulent. Federal false claims and false statement laws, including the federal
FCA, prohibit, among other things, any person or entity from knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented, a false or
fraudulent claim for payment to, or approval by, the federal healthcare programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, or
knowingly making, using, or causing to be made or used a false record or statement material to a false or fraudulent claim to the
federal government. A claim includes “ any request or demand ” for money or property presented to the U. S. government. For
instance, historically, pharmaceutical and other healthcare companies have been prosecuted under these laws for allegedly
providing free product to customers with the expectation that the customers would bill federal programs for the product. Other
companies have been prosecuted for causing false claims to be submitted because of the companies’ marketing of the product
for unapproved, off- label, and thus generally non- reimbursable, uses. HIPAA prohibits, among other offenses, knowingly and
willfully executing a scheme to defraud any health care benefit program, including private payors, or falsifying, concealing or
covering up a material fact or making any materially false, fictitious or fraudulent statement in connection with the delivery of or
payment for items or services under a health care benefit program. To the extent that we act as a business associate to a
healthcare provider engaging in electronic transactions, we may also be subject to the privacy and security provisions of
HIPAA, as amended by HITECH, which restricts the use and disclosure of patient- identifiable health information, mandates the
adoption of standards relating to the privacy and security of patient- identifiable health information, and requires the reporting
of certain security breaches to healthcare provider customers with respect to such information. Additionally, many states have
enacted similar laws that may impose more stringent requirements on entities like ours. Failure to comply with applicable laws
and regulations could result in substantial penalties and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Many
states also have similar fraud and abuse statutes or regulations that apply to items and services reimbursed under Medicaid and
other state programs, or, in several states, apply regardless of the payor. Additionally, to the extent that our product is sold in a
foreign country, we may be subject to similar foreign laws. Our products, once approved, may be eligible for coverage under
Medicare and Medicaid, among other government healthcare programs. Accordingly, we may be subject to a number of
obligations based on their participation in these programs, such as a requirement to calculate and report certain price reporting
metrics to the government, such as average sales price (ASP) and best price. Penalties may apply in some cases when such
metrics are not submitted accurately and timely. Further, these prices for drags-medical devices may be reduced by mandatory
discounts or rebates required by government healthcare programs or private payors and by any future relaxation of laws that
presently restrict imports of medical devices drugs-and-biotogieal-produets-from countries where they may be sold at lower
prices than in the United States. It is difficult to predict how Medicare coverage and reimbursement policies will be applied to
our products in the future and coverage and reimbursement under different federal healthcare programs are not always
consistent. Medicare reimbursement rates may also reflect budgetary constraints placed on the Medicare program. In order to
distribute products commercially, we must comply with state laws that require the registration of manufacturers and wholesale
distributors of medical devices drug-and-biologteat-produets-in a state, including, in certain states, manufacturers and
distributors who ship products into the state even if such manufacturers or distributors have no place of business within the state.
Some states also impose requirements on manufacturers and distributors to establish the pedigree of product in the chain of
distribution, including some states that require manufacturers and others to adopt new technology capable of tracking and
tracing product as it moves through the distribution chain. Several states have enacted legislation requiring pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies to establish marketing compliance programs, file periodic reports with the state, make periodic public
disclosures on sales, marketing, pricing, clinical trials and other activities, and / or register their sales representatives, as well as
to prohibit pharmacies and other healthcare entities from providing certain physician prescribing data to pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies for use in sales and marketing, and to prohibit certain other sales and marketing practices. All of our
activities are potentially subject to federal and state consumer protection and unfair competition laws. If our operations are found
to be in violation of any of the federal and state healthcare laws described above or any other governmental regulations that
apply to us, we may be subject to penalties, including without limitation, civil, criminal and / or administrative penalties,
damages, fines, disgorgement, exclusion from participation in government programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid,
injunctions, private “ qui tam ” actions brought by individual whistleblowers in the name of the government, or refusal to allow
us to enter into government contracts, contractual damages, reputational harm, administrative burdens, diminished profits and
future earnings, and the curtailment or restructuring of our operations, any of which could adversely affect our ability to operate
our business and our results of operations. Our ability to obtain reimbursement or funding from the federal government may be
impacted by possible reductions in federal spending. U. S. federal government agencies currently face potentially significant
spending reductions. The Budget Control Act of 2011, or the BCA, established a Joint Select Committee on Deficit Reduction,
which was tasked with achieving a reduction in the federal debt level of at least $ 1. 2 trillion. That committee did not draft a
proposal by the BCA’ s deadline. As a result, automatic cuts, referred to as sequestration, in various federal programs were
scheduled to take place, beginning in January 2013, although the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 delayed the BCA’ s
automatic cuts until March 1, 2013. While the Medicare program’ s eligibility and scope of benefits are generally exempt from



these cuts, Medicare payments to providers and Part D health plans are not exempt. The BCA did, however, provide that the
Medicare cuts to providers and Part D health plans would not exceed two percent. President Obama issued the sequestration
order on March 1, 2013, and cuts went into effect on April 1, 2013. Additionally, the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015 extended
sequestration for Medicare through fiscal year 2027. The U. S. federal budget remains in flux, which could, among other things,
cut Medicare payments to providers. The Trump Administration cost reduction initiatives may impact Medicare and
Medicaid reimbursement levels. Medicare program is frequently mentioned as a target for spending cuts. The full impact on
our business of any future cuts in Medicare or other programs is uncertain. In addition, we cannot predict any impact President
Trump’ s administration and the U. S. Congress may have on the federal budget. If federal spending is reduced, anticipated
budgetary shortfalls may also impact the ability of relevant agencies, such as the FDA or the National Institutes of Health, to
continue to function at current levels. Amounts allocated to federal grants and contracts may be reduced or eliminated. These
reductions may also impact the ability of relevant agencies to timely review and approve dragreseareh-medical devises and
development, manufacturing, and marketing activities, which may delay our ability to develop, market and sell any products we
may develop. Risks Related to Our Securities Our officers, directors and principal stockholders own a significant percentage
of our stock and will be able to exert significant control over matters subject to stockholder approval. Our officers, directors and
5 % stockholders and their affiliates beneficially own a significant percentage of our outstanding common stock. As a result,
these stockholders have significant influence and may be able to determine all matters requiring stockholder approval. For
example, these stockholders may be able to control elections of directors, amendments of our organizational documents, or
approval of any merger, sale of assets, or other major corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership could delay or
prevent any acquisition of our company on terms that other stockholders may desire, and may adversely affect the market price
of our common stock. If we are unable to maintain listing of our securities on The Nasdaq Capital Market or another reputable
stock exchange, it may be more difficult for our stockholders to sell their securities. Nasdaq requires listing issuers to comply
with certain standards in order to remain listed on its exchange. If ;foranyreasen;-Nasdaq should delist our securities from
trading on its exchange for any reason and we are unable to obtain listing on another reputable national securities exchange, a
reduction in some or all of the following may occur, each of which could materially adversely affect our stockholders. A
dehitlng of our common stock is likely to reduce the hquldlty of our common stock and may 1nhlb1t or preclude our ability to
raise additional ﬁnancmg AP W ; g
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result in substantial losses for our stockholders. Our common stock is has—beeﬂ—hqted on the Naqdaq Capltal Market under the
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expect it to continue to be, Volatlle The stock market in general and the market for smaller healthcare companies in partlcular
have experienced extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. As a
result of this volatility, you may not be able to sell your shares of common stock at or above the price you paid for your shares
of common stock. The market price for our common stock may be influenced by many factors, including: e the success of
competitive products or technologies; ® developments related to our existing or any future collaborations; @ regulatory or legal
developments in the United States and other countries; ® developments or disputes concerning patent applications, issued
patents or other proprietary rights; ® the recruitment or departure of key personnel; ® actual or anticipated changes in estimates
as to financial results or recommendations by securities analysts; ® variations in our financial results or those of companies that
are perceived to be similar to us; ® changes in the structure of healthcare payment systems; ® market conditions in the
healthcare, pharmaceutical and biotechnology sectors; ® general economic, industry and market conditions; and e the other
factors described in this “ Risk Factors ” section. Future sales of our common stock or securities convertible or exchangeable for
our common stock may cause our stock price to decline. If our existing stockholders sell, or indicate an intention to sell,
substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the price of our common stock could decline. The perception in
the market that these sales may occur could also cause the price of our common stock to decline. In addition, as of December
31,2023-2024 ;-: e 853-52 , 383-479 shares of our common stock were issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options; @
645-182 , 527996 shares of our common stock were issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock warrants; e 986-60 , 000
shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of our outstanding Series A Preferred Stock; ® 194, 004 shares of
our common stock were issuable upon the conversion of our outstanding Series A-B Convertible Preferred Stock (the ““ Series A



B Preferred Stock ”’), which will become eligible for sale in the public market to the extent permitted by the provisions of
various vesting schedules, lock- up agreements and Rule 144 under the Securities Act ef1+933-as-amended-(the—SeeuritiesAet
- o 21, 946-452 , 653-282 shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of our outstanding Series B-C Preferred
Stock; @ 944227 , +H4-269 shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of our outstanding convertible notes. If the
shares we may issue from time to time upon the exercise of outstanding options and warrants and the conversion of our
outstanding Series A-C Preferred Stock and Series B-D Preferred Stock are sold and outstanding convertible notes are issues, or
if it is perceived that they will be sold, by the award recipients in the public market, the price of our common stock could
decline. You may experience dilution of your ownership interests because of the future issuance of additional shares of our
common or preferred stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for our common or preferred stock. As of
the date of this filing, we have issued an aggregate of (i) 9-3 , 886-500 shares of our newly designated Series A-C Preferred
Stock and (ii) H-5 , 000 shares of our newly designated Series B-D Preferred Stock. In the future, we may issue our authorized
but previously unissued equity securities, resulting in the dilution of the ownership interests of our stockholders. We are
authorized to issue an aggregate of 498-100 , 000, 000 shares of common stock and 10, 000, 000 shares of “ blank check ”
preferred stock. We may issue additional shares of our common stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable
for our common stock in connection with hiring or retaining employees, future acquisitions, future sales of our securities for
capital raising purposes, or for other business purposes. The future issuance of any such additional shares of our common stock
may create downward pressure on the trading price of our common stock. We expect we will need to raise additional capital in
the near future to meet our working capital needs, and there can be no assurance that we will not be required to issue additional
shares, warrants or other convertible securities in the future in conjunction with these capital raising efforts, including at a price
(or exercise prices) below the price you paid for your stock. The ability of our Board to issue additional stock may prevent or
make more difficult certain transactions, including a sale or merger. Our Board is authorized to issue up to 10, 000, 000 shares of
preferred stock with powers, rights and preferences designated by it. Shares of voting or convertible preferred stock could be
issued, or rights to purchase such shares could be issued, to create voting impediments or to frustrate persons seeking to effect a
takeover or otherwise gain control of us. The rights of holders of our common stock are subject to the rights of the holders of our
preferred stock, including our newly designated Series A-D Preferred Stock, Series D B-Preferred-Stoeks-Sertes-C-Convertible
Preferred Stock and any preferred stock that may be issued. The ability of the Board to issue such additional shares of preferred
stock, with rights and preferences it deems advisable, could discourage an attempt by a party to acquire control of us by tender
offer or other means. Such issuances could therefore deprive stockholders of benefits that could result from such an attempt,
such as the realization of a premium over the market price for their shares in a tender offer or the temporary increase in market
price that such an attempt could cause. Moreover, the issuance of such additional shares of preferred stock to persons friendly to
the Board could make it more difficult to remove incumbent managers and directors from office even if such change were to be
favorable to stockholders generally. We are incorporated in Delaware. Certain anti- takeover provisions of Delaware law and our
charter documents as currently in effect may make a change in control of us more difficult, even if a change in control would be
beneficial to the stockholders. Delaware law also prohibits corporations from engaging in a business combination with any
holders of 15 % or more of their capital stock until the holder has held the stock for three years unless, among other
possibilities, our Board approves the transaction. Our Board may use these provisions to prevent changes in the management
and control of us. Also, under applicable Delaware law, our Board may adopt additional anti- takeover measures in the future. If
securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about our business, or if they issue an adverse or misleading
opinion regarding our stock, our stock price and trading volume could decline. The trading market for our common stock will be
influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts publish about us or our business. We do not currently
have and may never obtain research coverage by securities and industry analysts. If no or few securities or industry analysts
commence coverage of us, the trading price for our stock would be negatively impacted. In the event we obtain securities or
industry analyst coverage, if any of the analysts who cover us issue an adverse or misleading opinion regarding us, our business
model, our intellectual property or our stock performance, or if our operating results fail to meet the expectations of analysts, our
stock price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of us or fail to publish reports on us regularly,
we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which in turn could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline. We do
not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock, and investors may lose the entire amount of their investment. We have
never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate such a declaration or payment for the
foreseeable future. We expect to use future earnings, if any, to fund business growth. Therefore, stockholders will not receive
any funds absent a sale of their shares of our common stock. We cannot assure stockholders of a positive return on their
investment when they sell their shares, nor can we assure that stockholders will not lose the entire amount of their investment.
Applicable regulatory requirements, including those contained in and issued under the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, may make
it difficult for us to retain or attract qualified officers and directors, which could adversely affect the management of our
business and our ability to obtain or retain listing of our common stock on a national securities exchange. We may be unable to
attract and retain those qualified officers, directors and members of board committees required to provide for effective
management because of the rules and regulations that govern publicly held companies, including, but not limited to,
certifications by principal executive officers. The enactment of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act has resulted in the issuance of a series
of related rules and regulations and the strengthening of existing rules and regulations by the SEC, as well as the adoption of
new and more stringent rules by national securities exchanges. The perceived increased personal risk associated with these
changes may deter qualified individuals from accepting roles as directors and executive officers. Further, some of these changes
heighten the requirements for board or committee membership, particularly with respect to an individual” s independence from
the corporation and level of experience in finance and accounting matters. We may have difficulty attracting and retaining
directors with the requisite qualifications. If we are unable to attract and retain qualified officers and directors, the management



of our business and our ability to obtain or retain listing of our shares of common stock on any national securities exchange
could be adversely affected. If we cannot satisfy the ;-ereentinue-continued to-satisfy;-theinitial-listing requirements and other
rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market, our securities may be delisted, which could negatively impact the price of our securities

and your ability to sell them. Our common stock is has-beer-listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ ALBT . ”
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5 =In order to maintain our listing on The Nasdaq Capital Market, we are required to comply with certain rules of th
applicable trading market, including those regarding minimum stockholders’ equity, minimum share price and certain corporate
governance requirements. We may not be able to continue to satisfy the listing requirements and other applicable rules of The
Nasdaq Capital Market. If we are unable to satisfy the criteria for maintaining our listing, our securities could be subject to
delisting. If our common stock is delisted from trading by the applicable trading market we could face significant consequences,
including. e a limited availability for market quotations for our securities; ® reduced liquidity with respect to our securities; ® a
determination that our common stock is a “ penny stock, ”” which will require brokers trading in our common stock to adhere to
more stringent rules and possibly result in a reduced level of trading activity in the secondary trading market for our common
stock; e limited amount of news and analyst coverage; and e a decreased ability to issue additional securities or obtain
additional financing in the future. We could be subject to securities class action litigation. In the past, securities class action
litigation has often been brought against a company following a decline in the market price of its securities. This risk is
especially relevant for us because companies in our industry have experienced significant stock price volatility in recent years. If
we face such litigation, it could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management’ s attention and resources, which could
harm our business. ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS None. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY Cybersecurity Risk
Management We, like other companies in our industry, face several cybersecurity risks in connection with our business. Our
business strategy, results of operations, and financial condition have not, to date, been affected by risks from cybersecurity
threats. During the reporting period, we have not experienced any material cyber incidents, nor have we experienced a series of
immaterial incidents, which would require disclosure. In the ordinary course of our business, we use, store and process a bare
minimum of data. To effectively prevent, detect, and respond to cybersecurity threats, we maintain a cyber risk management
program, which is comprised of data segregation, penetration testing, and training. The cyber risk management program falls
under the responsibility of a third party IT consultant, who has cross- functional expertise in IT management, cybersecurity, and
engineering with more than 30 years of experience (the *“ IT Consultant ), who reports directly to our Chief Financial Officer.
Under the guidance of the IT Consultant, we have minimized our data footprint to keep our cyber risk low. We have
implemented a cybersecurity risk management program that is designed to limit and mitigate risks from cybersecurity threats.
Our cybersecurity risk management program incorporates several components, including employee training, periodic penetration
tests, and multifactor authentications. Governance Under the ultimate direction of our CFO, with oversight from the Board, we
maintain a security governance structure to evaluate and address cyber risk. Our Board is responsible for the oversight of
cybersecurity risk management. The Board delegates oversight of the cybersecurity risk management program to the Audit
Committee. On a quarterly and as- needed basis, the CFO reports to the Audit Committee on our cybersecurity risk management
program, including any critical cybersecurity risks, ongoing cybersecurity initiatives and strategies, and applicable regulatory
requirements and industry standards. The CFO also provides updates to the Audit Committee of any cybersecurity incidents
(suspected or actual) and provides updates on the incidents as well as cybersecurity risk mitigation activities as appropriate.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES Our principal offices are located at 4400 Route 9 South, Freehold, NJ 07728. The office building is
owned by our subsidiary, Avalon RT 9 Properties, LLC, which is in business of owning and operating an income- producing real
property. Our property is well maintained, adequately meets our needs, and is being utilized for its intended purpose. We lease
additional office space for operations. Office location is not crucial to our operations, and we anticipate no difficulty in
extending these leases or obtaining comparable office space. We are obligated under various lease agreements providing for
office space that expire at various dates through the-year-December 31, 2025. Total rent expense under these lease agreements
was approximately $ 127, 000 and $ 129 -066-and-$34+, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-,
respectively. We believe that our current office space is adequate for our current and immediately foreseeable operating needs.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS From time to time, we are subject to ordinary routine litigation incidental to our normal
business operations. We are not currently a party to, and our property is not subject to, any material legal proceedings, except as
set forth below. On October 25, 2017, our subsidiary, Genexosome, entered into and closed a Stock Purchase Agreement with
Beijing Jieteng (Genexosome) Biotech Co., Ltd., a corporation incorporated in the People” s Republic of China on August 7,
2015 (“ Beijing Genexosome ’) which was dissolved in June 2022, and Yu Zhou, MD, PhD, the sole shareholder of Beijing
Genexosome, pursuant to which Genexosome acquired all of the issued and outstanding securities of Beijing Genexosome in
consideration of a cash payment in the amount of $ 450, 000, of which $ 100, 000 is still owed. Further, on October 25, 2017,
Genexosome entered into and closed an Asset Purchase Agreement with Dr. Zhou, pursuant to which the Company acquired all
assets, including all intellectual property and exosome separation systems, held by Dr. Zhou pertaining to the business of
researching, developing and commercializing exosome technologies. In consideration of the assets, Genexosome paid Dr. Zhou
$ 876, 087 in cash, transferred 506-3 , 886-333 shares of our common stock to Dr. Zhou and issued Dr. Zhou 400 shares of
common stock of Genexosome. Further, the Company had not been able to realize the financial projections provided by Dr.
Zhou at the time of the acquisition and has decided to impair the intangible asset associated with this acquisition to zero. Dr.
Zhou was terminated as Co- CEO of Genexosome on August 14, 2019. Further, on October 28, 2019, Research Institute at
Nationwide Children’ s Hospital (“ Research Institute ”) filed a Complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Ohio Eastern Division against Dr. Zhou, Li Chen, the Company and Genexosome with various claims against the
Company and Genexosome including misappropriation of trade secrets in violation of the Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016 and
violation of Ohio Uniform Trade Secrets Act. Research Institute is seeking monetary damages, injunctive relief, exemplary




damages, injunctive relief and other equitable relief. The Company intends to vigorously defend against this action and pursue
all available legal remedies. The criminal proceedings against Dr. Zhou and Li Chen have been concluded. The Company,
Genexosome and the Research Institute entered into a settlement agreement dated June 7, 2022 (the ““ Settlement Agreement ),
whereby the Company agreed to pay the Research Institute $ 450, 000 on each of the sixty- day, one year and two- year
anniversaries of the Settlement Date. In addition, the Company agreed to pay the Research Institute 30 % of the Company’ s
initial pre- tax profit of $ 3, 333, 333, 20 % of the Company’ s second pre- tax profit of $ 3, 333, 333 and 10 % of the Company’
s third pre- tax profit of $ 3, 333, 333. The parties provided a mutual release as well. ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
PART II ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES Market Information Our common stock is kas-beer-listed on The Nasdaq
Capital Market under the symbol “ ALBT . ” stneeNevember+6-On March 28 , 2622-2025 —Our-, the closing price of our
common stock was—l-tsfed—on The Nasdaq Capital Market was $ tlﬂder—t-hﬁs-ym-bel%ﬁ—vee%eﬂa—l’@ovemberﬁ 27 2648

5 . Holders of Record As of March 29-31 , 2024-2025 , there were
approximately 223-237 registered holders of record of our shares of common stock, based upon 1nf0rmat10n received from our
stock transfer agent. However, this number does not include beneficial owners whose shares were held of record by nominees or
broker dealers. ITEM 6. [ RESERVED ] ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results
of operations for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-20822-should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes to those consolidated financial statements that are included elsewhere in this report.
Certain information contained in the discussion and analysis set forth below includes forward- looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Special Note Regarding Forward- looking Statements All statements other than statements of historical
fact included in this Annual Report Form 10- K including, without limitation, statements under “ Management’ s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ” regarding our financial position, business strategy and the plans and
objectives of management for future operations, are forward- looking statements. When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K, words such as “ anticipate, ” *“ believe, ” ““ estimate, expect, intend ” and similar expressions, as they relate to us or our
management, identify forward- looking statements. Such forward- looking statements are based on the beliefs of management,
as well as assumptions made by, and information currently available to, our management. Actual results could differ materially
from those contemplated by the forward- looking statements as a result of a number of factors, including those set forth under
the risk factors and business sections in this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Overview We are a commercial - stage company
dedicated to developing and delivering innevativertransformative;-precision diagnesties— diagnostic consumer products and

ehinteaHaboratory-serviees-. We are currently marketing foeused-omrestablishingaleadingrole-in-the nnevationrof-Keto Air
breathalyzer device and plan to develop additional diagnostic testing;utiizing-proprictary-uses of the breathalyzer

technology te-deliverpreeise,geneties—drivenresults- In addltlon As—a—ﬁfst—step—mte—t-he—labef&tery—market— we own

commercial real estate that houses our headquarters eomp erest-in Freehold

Laberatory-ServieesMSO-, New Jersey l:LG(iEab—Serﬁees—M-SG—)—adﬂelrelesed—rrrFebﬁlaﬁ—E@% We have the following
areas of focus in 2024 and 2023 : Laboratory Acquisitions We kave-had embarked on a laboratory rollup strategy focused on

forming joint ventures and acquiring laboratories that are-were accretive to our commercial strategy. As a first step, in February

o-f—2023 we acqulred a40 % member%hlp interest in Lab Seerce@ MSO. Among O—I:&b—Seﬁ‘lees—P«A-SG—ts—feeused-en-deh-veﬂng

99 ¢ EENT3

sample—ts—reeetved—Lab SCI‘VICG% MSO pr0v1deq tox1cology and Wellness testlng serv1ces, a n&eﬁu—broad portfollo of
diagnostic extensive-chemistry-tests thatphystetans-eantuse, and a broad array of test services. During 2025, to preserve
cash, obtain-information-to-bettertreattheir—- the Company entered into discussions with pattents-and-maintatn-thetr-overal
welness—Lab Services MSO has-developed-apremierreputation-for eustomer-serviee-the potential redemption of our
investment and -fast—t—umaretmd—t—rmes—ron February 26 2025 we and Lab Services MSO entered 1nto a Redemptlon -ts—a-lse

fes&ng—durh&g—tea&eelegy—sefeemng—and Abandonment Agreement whereby geneﬁe—tesfmg—te—sereen—fo&addiefwe—propensﬁy—
Lab Services MSO redeemed {abe y Rg-proprictary
geneﬁe—drwen—resu-lts—O—I-n—the fhtrd—quaﬁeeef—ze%—m % equlty interest in Lab Services MSO held by us aequﬁed—Merhn

. whieh-i1s-a-medieal-equipmentretail-eompany-Accordingly, beginning in February 2025, we no longer

offer laboratory services . Research and Development We are focused on bringing forward intellectual property through joint
patent filings with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology ( “ MIT ” ). We completed a sponsored research and co-
development project with MIT led by Professor Shuguang Zhang as Principal Investigator. Using the unique QTY code protein
design platform, six water- soluble variant cytokine receptors have been successfully designed and tested to show binding
affinity to the respective cytokines. We currently are focused on bringing forward the intellectual property associated with this
program through joint patent submissions. Product Commercialization We have begun the commercialization and development
of a versatile breathalyzer system. We were granted exclusive distributorship rights for the KetoAir from Qi Diagnostics for the

following territories: North America, South America, the EU and the UK. We-had-a-pitotiaunch-and-exhibition-of the KetoAdr
rthis-year—sKetoComneonferenee-inrAustit;Fexas(Aprit24-23;:2623)-For our commercialization strategy, we intend to target




the diabetes and obesity markets. We are-evatuating-options-sell the product through the KetoAir website and social media.
We belleve the KetoAlr dev1ce has some competltlve advantages to other methods for measurmg ketosis

: 0 ves-. The KetoAir is a handheld
devrce that allows the user to detect acetone levels in exhaled breath. The acetone level is in concentration units (ppm, part- per-
million) such that the user will know his / her real- time ketosis status: inadequate ketosis (0- 3. 99 ppm), mild ketosis (4- 9. 99
ppm), optimal ketosis (10- 40 ppm), or alarming level (> 40 ppm). The KetoAir is registered with the United States FBA-Food
and Drug Administration as a Class [ medical device. The device is also paired with an © Al Nutritionist ”” software program
(via Bluetooth connection) which is downloadable from Google Play (for Android mobile phones, approved) and iPhone (the
app is currently being reviewed by Apple iOS AppStore). It helps users monitor and manage their ketogenic diet and related
programs. We believe the KetoAir can be an essential tool to help diabetic patients adhere to their therapeutic programs and
optimize their ketogenic dietary management. Other Areas In order to preserve cash and focus on our core laboratory rollup
strategy and product commercialization, we have currently suspended all research and development efforts related to cellular
therapy in order to redirect our funding efforts to our core business strategies outlined above. Going Concern We are a
commercial - stage company dedicated to developing and delivering innevativertransformative;precision diagresties—
diagnostic consumer products and-elinteat-laboratoryserviees We are currently marketing foeused-on-establishing-aleading
role-inthe innevatierref Keto Air breathalyzer dev1ce and plan to develop addltmnal dragnostrc testingutilizing proprietary
uses of the breathalyzer technology d Atory vt g

te-aﬁa-teﬁa-re—p&t-he-leg-y—aﬂd—t&m&te*ree-legy— In addrtron we own Commercral real estate that hou@e% our headquarterq in

Freehold, New Jersey —W y g
ServieesMSO-. These Conqolrdated ﬁnancral qtatementq have been prepared aqsumlng that we erl Contlnue as a going concern,
which contemplates, among other things, the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of
business. As reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, we had working capital deficit of approximately $
510, 942646 , 000 at December 31, 2023-2024 and had incurred recurring net losses and generated negative cash flow from
operating activities of approximately $ +6-7 , 767903 , 000 and $ 64 , 5685969 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 2023
2024 , respectively. We have a limited operating history and our continued growth is dependent upon the continuation of
generatlng rental revenue from its-our 1nc0me producrng real estate property in New Jersey and-ineome-fromrequity-method
otg v and obtaining additional financing to fund future
obhgatronq and pay llablllt18§ arising from ordinary course bu%rnes% operations. In addition, the current cash balance cannot be
projected to cover the-our operating expenses for the next twelve months from the release date of this report. These matters
raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Fhe-Our ability ef#s-to continue as a going concern is
dependent on our ability to raise additional capital, implement our business plan, and generate sufficient revenues. There are no
assurances that we will be successful in #s-our efforts to generate sufficient revenues, maintain sufficient cash balance or report
profitable operations or to continue as a going concern. We plan on raising capital through the sale of equity to implement #s
our business plan. However, there is no assurance these plans will be realized and that any additional financings will be
available to us on satisfactory terms and conditions, #-any-or at all . The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments related to the recoverability or classification of asset- carrying amounts or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that may result should we be unable to continue as a going concern. Critical Accounting Policies Use
of Estimates The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“ U. S. GAAP ”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions may have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Making estimates
requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect of a
condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial statements, which management considered in
formulating its estimate, could change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events. Accordingly, the actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. Significant estimates during the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2622-include the useful life of property-and-equipment,-investment in real estate ;and intangible assets, the
assumptions used in assessing impairment of long- term assets, the valuation of deferred tax assets and the associated valuation
allowances, the valuation of stock- based compensation, the assumptions used to determine fair value of warrants and embedded
conversion features of convertible note payable, and the fair value of the consideration given and assets acquired in the purchase
of our equity interest in Lab Services MSO. Investment in Unconsolidated Companies We use the equity method of accounting
for its-our tvestments- investment in, and earning or loss of, eempantes-company that it-dees-we do not control but over
which tt-dees-we do exert significant influence. We apply the equity method by initially recording these investments at cost,
as equity method investments, subsequently adjusted for equity in earnings and cash distributions. We consider whether
the fair valwes— value of our equity method irvestments- investment have-has declined below their-its carrying values— value
whenever adverse events— event or ehanges— change in eireumstanees— circumstance ndieate-indicates that recorded vataes—-
value may not be recoverable. If we consider any decline to be other than temporary (based on various factors, including
historical financial results and the overall health of the investee), then a write- down would be recorded to estimated fair value.
Impairment of equity method investment amounted to $ 259, 579 and $ 9, 651, 361 for the yearyears ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 , respectively . We classify distributions received from -See—Nete—7—feﬁdiseus‘sieﬁ—ef—equ1ty method
investments using the cumulative earnings approach. Distributions received are considered returns on the investment
and classified as cash inflows from operating activities. If, however, the investor’ s cumulative distributions received, less




distributions received in prior periods determined to be returns of investment, exceeds cumulative equity in earnings
recognized, the excess is considered a return of investment and is classified as cash inflows from investing activities . Real
Property Rental We have determined that the Financial Accounting Standards Board’ s (“ FASB ) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ ASC ”) 606 does not apply to rental contracts, which are within the scope of other revenue recognition
accounting standards. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight- line basis under the guidance of ASC
842. Lease payments under tenant leases are recognized on a straight- line basis over the term of the related leases. The
cumulative difference between lease revenue recognized under the qtralght line method and contractual lease paymentq are
included in rent receivable on the consolidated balance sheets —W § Frents; € §
rebates-orothereashredemptionroffers-to-its-eustomers-. Income Taxe@ We are govemed by the income tax laws of Chlna and
the United States. Income taxes are accounted for pursuant to ASC 740 “ Accounting for Income Taxes, ”” which is an asset and
liability approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. The charge for taxes is based on the results for the
period as adjusted for items, which are non- assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect
of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of assessable tax profit. In principle, deferred tax liabilities
are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated using
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the income statement, except when it is related to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is changed to equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they related to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and we intend to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. Recent Accounting Standards
For details of applicable new accounting standards, please, refer to Recent Accounting Standards in Note 3 of our
consolidated financial statements accompanying this report. Comparison of Results of Operations for the Years Ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-Real Property Rental Revenue For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , we had
real property rental revenue of $ 1, 255-333 , 684403 , as compared to $ 1, 262-255 , +69-681 for the year ended December 31,
20222023 , an increase of $ 53-77 , 542-722 , or 4-6 . 5-2 %. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in the
number of tenants occupying the building in the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 as compared to the year ended December
31,2022-2023 . We expect that our revenue from real property rent will remain at its current level with minimal increase in the
near future. Real Property Operating Expenses Real property operating expenses consist of property management fees, property
insurance, real estate taxes, depreciation, repairs and maintenance fees, utilities and other expenses related to our rental
properties. For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , our real property operating expenses amounted to $ 1, 847065 , 493
574 , as compared to $ 929-1 , 444-017, 493 for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 |, an increase of $ 88-48 , 52-081, or 9
4 .57 %. The increase was pnmarlly due—attrlbutable to an increase in electrlc pfepeﬁy—maﬂagemeﬂt—fees« fee of
approximately $ 45-40 , 000 ;&n y and an increase in other
miscellaneous items of approximately $ 9-8, 000. Real Ploperty Operanng Income Our real property operating income for the
year ended December 31, 2623-2024 was $ 238267 , 4188829 , representing a-an deerease-increase of $ 34-29 | 546-641, or 12.
74 %, as compared to § 272-238 | 728-188 for the year ended December 31, 20222023 . The deerease-increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in real property eperating-expenses-rental revenue as described above. We expect our real property
operating income will remain at its current level with minimal increase in the near future. Loss from Equity Method Investment
—— Lab Services MSO For the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , we had loss from our investment in Lab Services MSO of
$ 8-846 , 588 5647, which consists of our share of Lab Services MSO” s net income of $ +79 , 236923 , 394-and
amortization of identifiable intangible assets acquired from Lab Services MSO acquisition of $ 6+4+666 , 356-932, and
impairment of goodwill acquired from Lab Services MSO acquisition of $ 9-259 , 579 +56;-682-, which was primarily
attributable to Lab Services MSO’ s lower revenues and net incomes than anticipated and the decline in our stock price and
market capitalization. We-purehased-40-%-of For the year ended December 31, 2023, we had loss from our investment in
Lab Services MSO enFebruary-9,2023Inthe-third-quarter-of 2623-8 8 , 571, 647, which consists of our share of Lab Services
MSO ’ s net income of $ 1, 236, 391, and amortization of identifiable intangible assets acquired from MerhinTFeehnologtes;

{-ﬂe—wﬂﬂehﬂs—a—medtea{-eqmpmeﬂt—fefaﬂ-eenﬁaaﬁy—Lab Services MSO acqulsltlon has—a{se—epeﬂed-a—new—labef&tefy—‘vlefﬁas

fh&t—effefs—aﬁﬂde-faﬁge—om 611 high—qu&hﬁhtes&ﬁg— 356 tne{ud-mg—dﬁtg—tes&ﬁg— geﬂeﬁe—tesfmg—ufmafy—tes&ﬁg—and
impairment of goodwill acquired COVAD-—19-PCRtesting—We-expeet-toreeetve-ieonte-from eurinvestmentin-Lab Services

MSO iracquisition of $ 9, 196, 682, which was primarily attributable to Lab Services MSO’ s lower revenues and net
incomes than anticipated and the near-futare-decline in our stock price and market capitalization . Other Operating
Expenses For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, other operating expenses consisted of the following:
Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Advertising and marketing expenses $ 4237 , 671 6667245 1, 325666 , 343-721
Professional fees 1, 822, 105 3, 076, 477 2;-989;-652-Compensation and related benefits 1, 431, 328 1, 768, 449 +
Miscellaneous taxes 233 , 863-488 57 , +88-290 Rescarch and development - 109, 618 734328 Eitigationrsettlement—5350;
860-Directors and officers’ liability insurance premium 212, 898 349, 745 444757 Travel and entertainment 109, 244 166, 921
+63;243-Rent and related utilities 62, 294 64, 149 77-Impairment of laboratory equipment 111 , 352-033- Other general and
administrative 248-128 , +44-236-912 160 , 820-854 $ 4,348,973 $ 7, 420, 224 $9,-0865:-623-e For the year ended December
31,2023-2024 , advertising and marketing expenses inereased-decreased by $ 3441 , 468429, 050, or 25-85 . 8-7 %, as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . The tnerease-decrease was primarily due to tnereased-decreased




advertising activities in the year ended December 31, 2024 15tbih th o-tmpre &
reeognttionand-awareness-. We expect that our advertising and mcuketmé expenses Wlll decrease in the near future as we
conserve cash. ® Professional fees primarily consisted of accounting fees, audit fees, legal service fees, consulting fees, investor
relations service charges , valuation service fees and other fees. For the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , professional fees
tnereased-decreased by $ +66-1 , 825-254, 372 , or 540 . 78 %, as compared to the year ended December 31, 26222023 , which
was primarily attributable to an-a inerease-decrease in consulting fees of approximately $ 334352, 000, mamly due to the
trerease-decrease in use of consulting service providers related to our acquisition of Lab Services MSO an-a inerease-decrease
in audit fees of approximately $ 242-174 , 000, due to the irereased-decreased audit services related to our acquisition of Lab
Services MSO, a aﬂd-aﬁ—rnerease—decrease in accounting fees of approximately $ 425-431 , 000 , mainly due to the irereased
decreased dccountlng services related to our acqulsmon of Lab Serwces MSO, e-ffset—by—a—deere&se—rﬂ-rm%ester—re}aﬂeﬁs—seﬁﬂee
y A 3 v ders;-a decrease in legal
service fees of approxunately $ 56-8—385 000 mamly due to the decreased 1egal services reldted to our acquisition of Lab
Services MSO, and a decrease in other miscellaneous items of approximately $ 24-47, 000, offset by an increase in valuation
fee for our equity method investment on Lab Services MSO of $ 135, 000. We expect that our professional fees are-will
likely to-remain at their current level with minimal deerease-increase in the near future. ® For the year ended December 31,
2023-2024 , compensation and related benefits decreased by $ 94-337 , 739-121 , or 519 . 1 %, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 20222023 . The decrease was primarily attributable to the decreased compensation for two of our twe-executive
officers , David as-further-deseribedin-Jin and Meng Li ftemtH-of thisteport-. We expect that our compensation and related
benefits will eontine-te-remain relatively steady, with minimal deerease-increase , in the near future. ® For the year ended
December 31, 2024, miscellaneous taxes increased by $§ 176, 198, or 307. 6 %, as compared to the year ended December
31, 2023 . The increase was primarily attributable to increased Delaware state franchise tax. We expect that our
miscellaneous taxes will decrease in the near future. ® For the year ended December 31, 2024 , rescarch and development
expenses decreased by $ 62—1—109 —7—1—9—618 or -85—100 0 % as compmed to the yedr ended December 31 , 20222023 . In The
6 epm ets+-the year ended

December 3 1, %92—3—2024 —We-, we did not incur any act1v1ty w1th expeet—respect t0 t-hﬁt—eu-lkresecuch and development
projects expe&ses—w&l—ee&fmue—te—deere&se%ﬂ&e—ne&&f&tufe—as we redireetredirected our funding efforts to our core business
strategies discussed above. @ For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , hitigation-settlement-directors’ and officers’
liability insurance premium decreased by b 136 847 or 39 1 —359—999—0{—1-99—9—% as compared to the year ended

-Beeeﬂaber—}l—?_’-GQ—Z— The decrease was mdmly due to #s-our sw1tchmo to a dlﬁerent insurance prowder resultmg ina low er
premium. ® For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , travel and entertainment expense inereased-decreased by $ 3-57 . 768
677 , or 234 . 3-6 %, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . eFor-The decrease was mainly due to
decreased business travel activities in the year ended December 31, 2024 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2023 . @ For the year ended December 31, 2024 , rent and related utilities expenses decreased by $ 43-1 ,263-855 , or+72 . +
9 %, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . The-deerease-o In December 2024, we assessed our laboratory
equipment for any impairment and concluded that there were indicators of impairment was— as attributable-to-deereased
rentalratein-of December 31, 2024 and we calculated that the estimated undiscounted cash flows were less than the
carrying amount of the laboratory equipment. Based on our analysis, we recognized an impairment loss of $ 111, 033 for
the year ended December 31, 2024, which reduced the value of laboratory equipment to zero. We did not record any
impairment charge for the year ended December 31, 2023. e Other general and administrative expenses mainly consisted of
NASDAQ listing fee, office supplies, miseeHaneens-taxes;-and other miscellaneous items. For the year ended December 31,
2023-2024 , other general and administrative expenses decreased by $ +2-31 , 676-942 , or 5-19 . 5-9 %, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2622-2023 |, refleeting-which was mainly attributable to a decrease in office supplies of approximately
$ 12, 000, and a decrease in other miscellaneous items of approximately $ 20, 000 due to our efforts at stricter controls on
corporate expeneditares— expenditure . Loss from Operations As a result of the foregoing, for the year ended December 31,
2623-2024 , loss from operations amounted to $ +5-4 , #53-927 , 683-732 ., as compared to $ 815 , 792-753 , 895-683 for the
year ended December 31, 26222023 , aﬁ—representmg a inerease-decrease of $ 610, 966-825 , —7’-8-8—951 or 79-68 . 27 %.
Other (Expense) Income Other (expense) income mainly includes third party and related party interest expense, eenversion
ndueement-expense-debt modlﬁcatlon charge -}ess—ffeﬁa—change in falr value of derlvatlve llablllty, 1mpa1rment of equlty
method investment on —Ep 8 a y 7

gain on debts extln}culshment dnd other mlscelhneous (—expense )—meefne— Othe1 expense, net, totaled 3> 95-3—2 , 327975, 662
for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , as compared to $ 3-953 , 327 137-952-for the year ended December 3 1,2622
2023 , a-an deerease-increase Of$ 2,484-022 , 625-335 , or 69-212 . 6-1 %, which was primarily attributable to a-an deerease
increase in third party interest expense of approximately $ 2-1 , 4#9-077 . 000, mainly driven by the deerease-increase in
amortization of debt discount and debt issuance eest-costs of approximately $ 867 2767, 000 and whieh-was-effsetby-the
increased interest expense of approximately $ 588210, 000 from third party debts irthe-year-ended-Deeember31-, 2623-an
1ncrease in interest expense — related party of appr0x1mately $9, 000 an 1ncrease in debt modification charge of

extm;culshment of approxunately 3> 683, 000 and an increase in other expense of approx1mately $ 56, 000, offset by a-an
deerease-increase in gain from change in fair value of derivative liability of approximately $ 442-186 , 000, a and-antnerease

decrease in impairment of equity method investment —on Epicon of approximately $ 455 —GGG-due—te—E-pteeﬁ—s-seﬂes-ef



, 000. We did not have any income taxes expen@e for the years ended December

31,2024 and 2023 and2622-since we incurred losses in these periods. Net Loss As a result of the factors described above, our
net loss was $ +6-7 , 767903 , 646-394 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , as compared to $ H-16 , 936-707 , 847
010 for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . atra irerease-decrease of $ 4-8 , 776-803 , +63-616, or 46-52 . 6-7 %. Net
Loss Attributable to Avalon GloboCare Corp. Common Sharcholders The net loss attributable to our common shareholders was
$+6-7 , 767903 , 646-394, or $ +8 . 59-44 per share (basic and diluted) , for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , as
compared to $ H-16 ,936-707 , 847-010, or $ +-23 . 28-80 per share (basic and diluted) , for the year ended December 31, 2622
2023 , anra inerease-decrease of $ 4-8 , 776-803 , +63-616, or 40-52 . 6-7 %. Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment Our
reporting currency is the U. S. dollar. The functional currency of our parent company, AHS, Avalon RT 9, and-Avalon Lab ,
and Q & A Distribution is the U. S. dollar and the functional currency of Avalon Shanghai is the Chinese Renminbi (“ RMB
). The financial statement-statements of our subsidiary whose functional currency is the RMB are translated to U. S. dollars
using period end rate of exchange for assets and liabilities, average rate of exchange for revenues, costs, and expenses and cash
flows, and at historical exchange rate for equity. Net gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions are included
in the results of operations. As a result of foreign currency translations, which are a non- cash adjustment, we reported a foreign
currency translation loss of $ 273 and $ 18, 590 and-$-47-8H-for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-
respectively. This non- cash loss had the effect of increasing our reported comprehensive loss in each respective period .
Comprehensive Loss As a result of our foreign currency translation adjustment, we had comprehensive loss of § 7, 903, 667 and
$ 16, 725, 600 and-$H5-978;H8-for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. Liquidity and
Capital Resources We have a limited operating history and our continued growth is dependent upon the continuation of
generating rental revenue from our income- producing real estate property in New Jersey and-ineome-fromeguity-method
inrvestment-through-ourequity-iterestinbab-Serviees MSO-, as well as obtaining additional financing to fund future obligations
and pay liabilities arising from ordinary course business operations. In addition, the current cash balance cannot be projected to
cover the-our operating expenses for the next twelve months from the release date of this report. These matters raise substantial
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Fre-Our ability efus-to continue as a going concern is dependent on our
ability to raise additional capital, implement #s-our business plan, and generate sufficient revenues. There are no assurances that
we will be successful in #s-our efforts to generate sufficient revenues, maintain sufficient cash balance or report profitable
operations or to continue as a going concern. As described below, we have raised additional capital through the sale of equity
and debt and eur-we plans— plan enraistng-to raise additional capital in the future through the sale of equity or debt to
implement #s-our business plan. However, there is no assurance these plans will be realized and that any additional financings
will be available to us on satisfactory terms and conditions, if at all. Liquidity is the ability of a company to generate funds to
support its current and future operations, satisfy its obligations as they come due and otherwise operate on an ongoing basis. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022- we had a cash balance of approximately $ 2, 856, 000 and $ 285 -090-and-$1-991+,
000, respectively. These funds are kept in financial institutions located as follows: Country: December 31, 2623-2024 December
31,20622-2023 United States $ 2, 844,522 99. 6 % $ 280, 197 98. 2 % $+China 11 , 787 0 866;,083-96- 74 % China5, 203 1.
8 95184-827-93-% Total cash $ 2852 , 466-856, 309 100. 0 % $ +285 , 400 999,—9—1-9—100. 0 % The following table sets forth a
summary of changes in our working capital deficit from December 31, 28622-2023 to December 31, 2023-2024 : December 31,
Changes in 2024 2023 2622-Amount Percentage Working capital deficit: Total current assets $ 3, 236, 498 $ 850, 867 §$ 2, 373
385, 631 280 526-$(522,65964-. 4 2% Total current liabilities 13, 882, 555 6, 762, 686 7,119, 869 105. 3 ;-579,-805-3;
+82,-884-88-9-% Working capital deficit $ ( 10, 646, 057) $ (5, 911, 819) $ (+5206;279-54, 765-734 , 540-238 ) 396-80 . |
% Our working capital deficit increased by $ 4, 765-734 , 546-238 to $ 10, 646, 057 at December 31, 2024 from $ 5, 911, 819
at December 31, 2023 ffeﬁa—$—1%96%—7—9—&t—Beeember—3H922— The increase in working capital deficit was prlmanly
attributable to a decrease in eash-rent receivable of approximately $ 117 45766-, 000 driven by collection efforts in the year
ended December 31, 2024 , an increase in accrued pfefeweﬁal—fees—hablhtles and other payables of &ppfe*tmatel-y—$ +3+161

, 000 ;anrmainly due to the increase in accrued pay
franchlse tax in the year ended December 31 , 660-2024 , an increase in accrued liabilities and 0the1 payables — related parties
of approximately $ -1-96—526 000 mamly due to our equlty method 1nvestment payable paid by a related party on our
behalf . a significant anine : g an-increase in advance from
pending sale of noncontlolhng 1ntere§t — related par ty of app10x1mately $ 486—2 622 OOO dﬂ-veﬁ—by—resultmg from advance
received in connection with the membership interest purchase agreement s-rg-ﬂed—entered into in November 2023 in the year
ended December 31, 2024 , an increase in derivative liability of approximately $ 103, 000, an increase in note payable, net,
of approximately $ S, 715, 000, which was attributable to the reclassification of note payable from non- current to
current, and an increase in convertible note payable, net, of approximately $ 189, 000, offset by n increase in cash of
approximately $ 2, 571, 000, a decrease in accrued professional fees of approximately $ 1, 193, 000 resulting from
payments made to our professional service providers in the year ended December 31, 2024, a decrease in operating lease
obligation of approximately $ 119, 000, and a decrease in equity method investment payable of approximately $ 667, 000

resulting from payment the-purehase-of § 100 40-%-ofLab-Services MSO-inenrredinFebruary2623-, 000 made to investee an
and payment mefease—m—eenvemb}e—nete—payab{e—net—of approxunately $ 567 -1—925— 000 made resulting-fromthe-tssuanee-of

§ e - by amrinerease-irprepate
an deefease-related party on our behalf in acertedreseareh
prent-fees F$6 et o-the extingtnishment-ofacerved-tiability-year ended December
31 2024 Because the exchange rate conversion is different for the consolidated balance sheets and the consolidated statements
of cash flows, the changes in assets and liabilities reflected on the consolidated statements of cash flows are not necessarily




identical with the comparable changes reflected on the consolidated balance sheets. Cash Flows for the Year Ended December
31, 20623-2024 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2622-2023 The following table summarizes the key components of
our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Net
cash used in operating activities $ ( 4,969, 205) $ (6, 504, 718 ¥$F-037224-) Net cash used in investing activities ( 100, 000)
(22, 159 H95-053;476-) Net cash provided by financing activities 7, 638, 667 4, 825, 337 +#-263;7-989-Effect of exchange rate
on cash 1, 447 (3, 970) +6;-677-Net increase (decrease) terease-in cash $ 2,570,909 $ (1, 705, 510) Net cash flow used in
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2024 was $ 4, 969, 205, which primarily reflected our consolidated
net loss of approximately $ 7, 903, 000, and the non- cash item adjustment, consisting of change in fair market value of
derivative liability of approximately $ 374, 000, and the changes in operating assets and liabilities, primarily consisting of
a decrease in accrued liabilities and other payables of approximately S 1, +83-165 , 372-000 resulting from payments
made to our vendors in the year ended December 31, 2024, and a decrease in operating lease obligation of approximately
$ 123, 000, offset by a decrease in rent receivable of approximately $ 131, 000 driven by our collection efforts, and the
non- cash items adjustment, primarily consisting of depreciation of approximately $ 178, 000, amortization of operating
lease right- of- use asset of approximately $ 123, 000, stock- based compensation and service expense of approximately $
522, 000, loss from equity method investments of approximately $ 847, 000 which was mainly attributable to the
amortization of identifiable intangible assets acquired from Lab Services MSO acquisition of approximately $ 667, 000
and the impairment of goodwill acquired from Lab Services MSO acquisition of approximately $ 260, 000, resulting
from Lab Services MSO’ s lower revenues and net incomes than anticipated and the decline in our stock price and
market capitalization, distribution of earnings from equity method investment of approximately $ 612, 000, amortization
of debt issuance costs and debt discount of approximately $ 1, 411, 000, impairment of laboratory equipment of
approximately $ 111, 000, and debt modification charge of approximately $ 689, 000. Net cash flow used in operating
activities for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $ 6, 504, 718, which primarily reflected our consolidated net loss of
approximately $ 16, 707, 000, and the changes in operating assets and liabilities, primarily consisting of a decrease in operating
lease obligation of approximately $ 113, 000, and the non- cash items adjustment, consisting of change in fair market value of
derivative liability of approximately $ 188, 000, and gain on debts extinguishment of approximately $ 683, 000, offset by
depreciation of approximately $ 212, 000, amortization of operating lease right- of- use asset of approximately $ 118, 000,
stock- based compensation and service expense of approximately $ 1, 180, 000, loss from equity method investments of
approximately $ 8, 590, 000 mainly due to the impairment of goodwill acquired from Lab Services MSO acquisition resulting
from Lab Services MSO’ s lower revenues and net incomes than anticipated and the decline in our stock price and market
capitalization, impairment of equity method investment- Epicon of approximately $ 455, 000 due to Epicon’ s series of operating
losses and the joint venture partner unable to obtain funds to commence operations, and amortization of debt issuance costs and
debt discount of approximately $ 544, 000 resulting from our outstanding convertible debt nete-payable-and note payable, and
the changes in operating assets and liabilities, primarily consisting of an increase in accrued liabilities and other payables —
reldted pdmes of dpploxnndtely §$ 106, ()()() driven by the mcreased accrued mterest for reldted pdlty Net—eash—ﬂew—used—rn

P o Q 0 o Lo drzatian 1o
ﬂ&e—eeﬁvefsteﬁ-pﬂee—We expect our cash used in operating aetl\ ities to increase in the nex t12 months due to the following:
the development and commercialization of new products —e-an-inerease-n-professional-staff-and-serviees-; and e an increase in
public relations and / or sales promotions for existing and / or new brands as we expand within existing markets or enter new
markets. Net cash flow used in investing activities was $ 22-100 , +59-000 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , as
compared to § 9-22 , 159 953;470-for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . During the year ended December 31, 2024,
we paid $ 100, 000 for the acquisition of a 40 % interest in Lab Services MSO . During the year ended December 31, 2023,

we mdde payment for purchase of propeIty and equlpment of approxnnately ‘{> 22 —GGG—Buﬂﬂg—t-he—ye&r—eﬂded—Beeefﬂ-ber—Zv-l—

-Sewrees—M—SG—I:I:Ge—Pa-ppfe*rmafe}y%—%GG— 000 Net cash ﬂovx prov 1ded by fmancmg activities was ‘{> 47 , 825638 , 3—3—7’-
667 for the year ended Decembe1 31, %92—3—2024 , as compared to § -1—7—4 263-825 | 9—8-9—337 for the yedr ended December 31,

GGG—aﬂd-net proeeeds from the issuance of convertlble debt—debts and warrants of approxnnately ‘{> 2—3 2—3-8—085 000 (net of
original issue discount of approximately $ +35-177 , 000 and cash paid for convertible note issuance costs of approxnnately $

327283 , 000), and— an advance net-proeeeds-{rom issuanee-the pendmg sale of 'bﬁ'HOOﬁ—pfeﬂﬂS‘Sﬁ‘y—ﬂﬂfe-a noncontrollmg
interest in a subsidiary of approximately $ 936-2, 122 , 000 {n A 3 sstan

approximately-$-64- 000);-and-net proceeds from eqmty offering of dpploxnndtely $ 6—1—6—2 719 000 (net of cash pdld for
Commlssmn and other offering costs of approxnnately $49-138 , 000) —&ﬂd-adifaﬁee—fffmsa-}e—ef—ﬂeﬂeeﬁ&el-}mg—rrﬁemst—m




conv utlb e preferred stock debt—and—w&rraﬂfs—ol &ppfe*rma-te}y—S —7—1—9—500 000 —&ﬂd-net—pfeeeeds—freﬂa—tsstt&ﬁee-e-ﬁba-l-}eeﬁ

o b d 00,-660-and ledylnLlllS
made for loan payable — related party of $ 4-1-9—400 000, and made for convertlble debts of appr0x1mately $ 3, 388, 000.
During the year ended December 31, 2023, we received proceeds from related party borrowings of $ 850, 000, and net
proceeds from issuance of convertible debt and warrants of approximately $ 2, 238, 000 (net of original issue discount of
$ 135, 000 and cash paid for convertible note issuance costs of approximately $ 327, 000), and net proceeds from issuance
of balloon promissory note of approximately $ 936, 000 (net of cash paid for promissory note issuance costs of
approximately $ 64, 000), and net proceeds from equity offering of approximately $ 616, 000 (net of cash paid for
commission and other offering costs of approximately $ 19, 000), and advance from pending sale of noncontrolling
interest in subsidiary of approximately $ 486, 000, offset by repayments made for convertible debt of $ 300 , 000. The
following trends are reasonably likely to result in a material decrease in our liquidity over the near to long term: ® an increase in
working capital requirements to finance our current business; ® the use of capital for acquisitions and the development of
business opportunities; and @ the cost of being a public company. August 2019 Credit Facility In the third quarter of 2019, we
had-seenred-entered into a $ 20 million credit facility ( the * Line of Credit ) provided by our Chairman of the Board and a
significant (and our largest) stockholder , Wenzhao Lu. The unseeured-Line of eredit-Credit allowed us to request loans
thereunder and to use the proceeds of such loans for working capital and operating expense purposes until the facility

matured bears-interest-at-a-rate-of S-Yrand-providesfor-maturity-on drawnloans36-months-after funding—As-of-December 31,
2023-2024 we-used-approximately-$-6-. At- $mitlien-ofthe - Market Offering ereditfaeility-and-have-approximately-$13-—2
mﬁm&remamrﬂgﬂw&r}ab}e-&ﬂder—fhe—bme-eredrhﬁ—?%ln June 2023, we entered into a sales agreement (the *“ Sales

Agreement ) with Roth Capital Partners, LLC (“ Roth ) under which we may offer and sell from time to time shares of our
common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $ 3. 5 million. From July 1, 2023 to Mareh29-August 16 , 2024, we
Rethhas-sold an aggregate of 456-312 , 627285 shares of our common stock at an average price of $ +11 . 39-19 per share to
investors —We-pursuant to the Sales Agreement, and received net cash proceeds of § 6+6-3 , 259-388, 251 , net of cash paid
for Roth sa}es—ageﬂt— s eommisston-commissions and otl her fees of % +9—1—32—Ba-Heeereﬁg&ge—Ne’fe—}ﬂ—May—29%3—we—




eeeﬁfs—uﬂéei“t-he—@efe-ber—%@%—Net& Mdl(,h "()"-1 ( onv uublc Nou Fllldl](,ll]L’ ln Mdl(,h "()"-1 we entered into a scuuny
purchase agreement with a lender (the “ March 2024 Lender ) and closed on the issuance of a 13. 0 % senior secured
convertible promissory note in the principal amount of § 700, 000 (the “ March 2024 Convertible Note ), as well as the
issuance of #85-7 , 000 shares of common stock as a commitment fee and warrants for the purchase of up to 252-16 , 464-827
shares of our common stock. June 2024 Convertible Note Financing In June 2024, we entered into a security purchase
agreement with a lender (the “ June 2024 Lender ) and closed on the issuance of a 13. 0 % senior secured convertible
promissory note in the principal amount of $ 2, 845, 000 (the “ June 2024 Convertible Note ), as well as the issuance of
26, 800 shares of common stock as a commitment fee and warrants for the purchase of up to 146, 667 shares of our
common stock. We and our subsidiaries also entered into security agreements in connection with issuance of the Mareh-June
2024 Convertible Note, creating a security interest in certain property of the Company and its subsidiaries to secure the prompt
payment, performance and discharge in full of all of our obligations under the Mareh-June 2024 Convertible Note . Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock Sold Pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreement On December 19, 2024, the Company
entered into that certain securities purchase agreement (the “ Securities Purchase Agreement ), with an accredited
investor, York Sun Investment Holding Limited, a British Virgin Islands company (the “ Investor ), pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue and sell to the Investor, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Securities Purchase
Agreement, up to 7, 000 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock for up to an aggregate of $ 7, 000, 000 (the “
Purchase Price ), which is equal to $ 1, 000 per share. The first closing occurred on December 24, 2024, with respect to
the Investor’ s purchase of 3, 500 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for $ 3, 500, 000. Each
share of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into common stock of the Company (the “ Conversion
Shares ) at a conversion per share equal to $ 2. 41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the later of (i) the date of
the shareholder approval of the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market (the
“ Shareholder Approval ) and (ii) the one year anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of the Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock. The Company shall not be required to issue any Conversion Shares until the Shareholder
Approval is obtained by the Company. The Investor shall also have a right of first refusal during the period beginning
on the date of the Securities Purchase Agreement and continuing until such shareholder approval is obtained, on all
issuances of convertible preferred stock of the Company, excluding agreements that are in place prior to the date of the
Securities Purchase Agreement and issuances of new classes of convertible preferred stock in exchange for existing
classes of convertible preferred stock. Additionally, the Investor has the right, pursuant to the Securities Purchase
Agreement to appoint one member to, or to replace one member of, the Company’ s board of directors, subject to all
applicable Nasdaq rules. The Investor’ s purchase of the remaining 3, 500 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred
Stock under the Securities Purchase Agreement in exchange for an additional $ 3, 500, 000 is required to occur within
120 calendar days of the date of the Securities Purchase Agreement, subject to the satisfaction of customary closing
conditions . We estimate that , based on current plans and assumptions, that-our available cash will be insufficient to satisfy our
cash requirements under our present operating expectations through cash flow provided by operations ;-and-eash-avattable-under
ourATM-andHending-faetities-and sales of equity. Other than funds received as described above and cash reseuree-resources
generating-generated from our operations, we presently have no other significant alternative source of working capital. We have
used these funds to fund our operating expenses, pay our obligations and grow our company. We will need to raise significant



additional capital to fund our operations and to provide working capital for our ongoing operations and obligations. Therefore,
our future operation is dependent on our ability to secure additional financing. Financing transactions may include the issuance
of equity or debt securities, obtaining credit facilities, or other financing mechanisms. However, the trading price of our common
stock and a downturn in the U. S. equity and debt markets could make it more difficult to obtain financing through the issuance
of equity or debt securities. Even if we are able to raise the funds required, it is possible that we could incur unexpected costs
and expenses or experience unexpected cash requirements that would force us to seek alternative financing. Furthermore, if we
issue additional equity or debt securities, stockholders may experience additional dilution or the new equity securities may have
rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing holders of our common stock. The inability to obtain additional
capital may restrict our ability to grow and may reduce our ability to continue to conduct business operations. If we are unable
to obtain additional financing, we will be requlred to cease our operatrons To date we have not consrdered this alternative, nor
do we view it as a hkely occurrence. be heet-Ad e P
arrangements—Horeign Currency Exchange Rate Risk We -I-n—Nevember—eHGQ%—we—deeﬁed—te—eease—ceased all operations in
China in 2022, with the exception of a small administrative office ;Avalon-Shanghat. We did not during the year ended
December 31, 2024, and do not expect in nor-de-we-plan-that-there-—- the wil-be-further-foreseeable future, to generate any
additional revenue generated-from PRC operations tr-the-fereseeable-future- Thus, exchange rate fluctuations between the
RMB and the ¥S-U. S. dollar do not , and are not expected to, have a material effect on us. For the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 ard2022-, we had an unrealized foreign currency translation loss of approximately $ 300 49;-666-and $ 48-18 ,
066-600 , respectively, because of changes in the exchange rate. Inflation The effect of inflation on our revente-revenues and
operating results was not significant for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 . Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK As a smaller reporting company, as defined in Rule 12b- 2 of the
Exchange Act, we are not required to provide the information required by this Item. ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA The financial statements begin on page F- 1. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND
DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ITEM 9A.
CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We maintain disclosure controls and
procedures that are designed to ensure that material information required to be disclosed in our periodic reports filed under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms
and to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer (“ CEO ”) and Chief Financial Officer (“ CFO ) as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the CEQ prineipat
exeeutive-offieer-and the CFO prinetpat-finanetal-offteer-, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13 (a)- 15 (e) under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Our management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide
only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-
benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. During evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures as of December
31,2023-2024 , conducted as part of our annual audit and preparation of our annual financial statements, our management,
including our CEO and CFO, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operations of our disclosure
controls and procedures and concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2024
due to the reasons set forth below. Management’ s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Management is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the frnan01al statements included in thrs report The financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with U. S. GAAP aeeeuntingprineiples-genera A A ates-of Amertes
and reflect management’ s judgment and estimates concerning effects of events and transactlons that are accounted for or
disclosed. Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to our ability to record, process,
summarize and report reliable data. Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any
internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of internal
control. Accordingly, even effective internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement presentation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting may vary over time. Management regularly assesses our internal control over financial reporting and did so most
recently for our financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 . This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal
control over financial reporting described in the Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission (2013) . Based on this assessment, management has concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2623-2024 , due to the lack of segregation of
duties resulting from our small size and inability to perform an effective test of the operating effectiveness of the controls,
including the oversight of our financial statement close process. As a result of our Lab Services MSO transaction in February
2023, we retained additional accountlng staff and hlred a Controller that Werks—worked part time for Lab Seerces MSO and
part- time for the Company —We 0 0 0 g 6 d
addition, the Company has transitioned all emall servers to the United States to enhance this aspect of 1nterna1 controls. In hght
of the material weaknesses described above, we performed additional analyses and procedures in order to conclude that our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 included in this Annual Report on Form 10- K
were fairly stated in accordance with §5-U. S. GAAP. Accordingly, management believes that despite the material weakness
identified in our internal control over financial reporting, our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2623-2024 are fairly stated, in all material respects, in accordance with &S-U. S. GAAP. Changes in Internal Control over
Financial Reporting Other than those described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as




such term is defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act, during the quarter ended December 31, 2623-2024 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting Attestation Report
of the Registered Public Accounting Firm This Annual Report on Form 10- K does not include an attestation report by our
independent registered public accounting firm, regarding internal control over financial reporting. As a smaller reporting
company, our internal control over financial reporting was not subject to audit by our independent registered public accounting
ﬁrm pursuant to rules of the SEC that permit us to pr0V1de only management S report ITEM 9B. OTHER INF ORMATION (a)

quarter ended December 31, %92—3—2024 none of our directors or executive officers adopted or terminated a Rule 10b5- 1 trading
plan or a non- Rule 10b5- 1 tradlng arrangement (as defined in Item 408 (c) of Regulation S- K). ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE
REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS. Not applicable. PART III ITEM 10.
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Directors and Executive Officers Below are
the names of , and certain information regarding , our executive officers and directors . as-efthe-date-hereef-Name Age Position
Wenzhao Lu Chairman of the Board of Directors David Jin, MD, PhD Chief Executive Officer, President and Director Meng Li
Chief Operating Officer and Secretary Luisa Ingargiola Chief Financial Officer Steven A. Sanders Director Lourdes Felix
Director Wilbert J. Tauzin lI Director Wllham B. Stllley, III Director Tevi Troy -BifeeterGfﬁeefs—DlrectorDlrectors are elected
annually by-th : Ty-emplovitenta sreentes apntat-meeting—, to hold such office until a an
offteer>s-successor has been duly appomted and quahﬁed unless an efﬁeer—dlrector sooner dies, resigns or is removed by-.
Officers serve at the discretion of the Board , subject to the terms of any employment agreement . The principal occupation
and business experience during at least the past five years for our executive officers and directors is as follows: Wenzhao Lu,
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Wenzhao Lu has served as our Chairman of the Board since October 10, 2016. He is a
seasoned healthcare entrepreneur with extensive operational knowledge and experience in the HS-&-U. S. and Asia. He has
served as Chairman of the board of directors of the Daopei Medical Group yer(* DPMG *) , strree-from 2010 to December 5
2021. Under his leadership, DPMG eperates-operated three top- ranked private hospitals (located in Beijing and Hebei),
specialty hematology laboratories, and a hematology research institute, with more than 100 partnering and collaborating
hospitals in China. DPMG was founded by Professor Daopei Lu, a renowned hematologist pioneering in hematopoietic stem cell
transplant and a member of the Academy of Engineering in China. Mr. Lu received a Bachelor of Arts from Temple University
Tyler School of Arts in 1988 and subsequently worked as senior Art Director at Ogilvy & Mather Advertising Company. Prior
to joining DPMG, in 2009, Mr. Lu served as Chief Operating Officer of BioTime Asia Limited, a subsidiary of BioTime, Inc.
(NYSE American: BTX). Mr. Lu is qualified to serve as a director because of his extensive operational knowledge of, and
executive level management experience in, the healthcare industry. David Jin, Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
Dr. David Jin, MD, PhD, has served as our Chief Executive Officer, President and as a member of our Board since September
14,2016. From 2009 to 2017, Dr. Jin served as the Chief Medical Officer of BioTime, Inc. (NYSE American: BTX), a clinical
stage regenerative medicine company with a focus on pluripotent stem cell technology. Dr. Jin also acts as a senior translational
clinician- scientist at the Howard Hughes Medical Institute and the Ansary Stem Cell Center at Weill Cornell Medical College
of Cornell University. Prior to his current endeavors, Dr. Jin was Chief Consultant / Advisor for various biotech /
pharmaceutical companies regarding hematology, oncology, immunotherapy and stem cell- based technology development. Dr.
Jin has been Principle Investigator in more than 15 pre- clinical and clinical trials, as well as an author / co- author of over 80
peer- reviewed scientific abstracts, articles, reviews, and book chapters. Dr. Jin studied medicine at SUNY Downstate College
of Medicine in Brooklyn, New York. He received his clinical training and subsequent faculty tenure at the New York-
Presbyterian Hospital (the teaching hospital for both Cornell and Columbia Universities) in the areas of internal medicine,
hematology, and clinical oncology. Dr. Jin was honored as Top Chief Medical Officer by ExecRank in 2012, as well as
recognized by Leading Physicians of the World in 2015. Dr. Jin is qualified to serve as a director because of his role with us,
and his extensive operational knowledge of, and executive level management experience in, the healthcare industry. Meng Li,
Chief Operating Officer and Secretary Ms. Meng Li has served as our Chief Operating Officer ;-and Secretary since October 10,
2016 and served as a member of the Board from October 10, 2016 to July 9, 2018 and from April 5, 2019 through December 30,
2022. Ms. Li has over 15 years of executive experience in international marketing, branding, communications, and media
investment consultancy. Ms. Li served as Managing Director at Maxus / GroupM (a WPP Group company) where she was
responsible for business P & L and corporate management from 2006 to 2015. Prior to joining Maxus / Group M, Ms. Li worked
for Zenith Media (a Publicis Group company) from 2000 to 2006 as Senior Manager. Ms. Li received a Bachelor of Arts in
International Economic Law from Dalian Maritime University in China. Luisa Ingargiola, Chief Financial Officer Luisa
Ingargiola has served as our Chief Financial Officer since February 21, 2017. Ms. Ingargiola has significant experience serving
as Chief Financial Officer or Audit Chair for multiple Nasdaq and New York Stock Exchange companies. She currently serves
as Director and Audit Chair for several public companies , including ElectraMeccanica (NASDAQ: SOLO), Dragonfly Energy
(DFLI) and Vision Marine (VMAR). From 2007 through 2016, Ms. Ingargiola served as the Chief Financial Officer and then a
member of the board of directors at MagneGas Corporation (Nasdaq: MNGA). Prior to 2007, Ms. Ingargiola held various roles
as Budget Director and Investment Analyst in several private companies. Ms. Ingargiola graduated in 1989 from Boston
University with a Bachelor’ s degree in Business Administration and a concentration in Finance. In 1996, she received her MBA
in Health Administration from the University of South Florida. Ms. Ingargiola is qualified to serve as a Chief Financial Officer
because of her extensive knowledge corporate governance, regulatory requirements, executive leadership and knowledge of, and
experience in, financing and M & A transactions. Steven A. Sanders, Director Steven A. Sanders has served as a member of the
Board since July 30, 2018. Since January 2017, Mr. Sanders has been Of Counsel to the law firm of Ortoli Rosenstadt LLP.
From July 2007 until January 2017, Mr. Sanders was a Senior Partner at Ortoli Rosenstadt LLP. From January 1, 2004 until




June 30, 2007, he was Of Counsel to the law firm of Rubin, Bailin, Ortoli, LLP. From January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2003, he
was Counsel at the law firm of Spitzer & Feldman PC. Mr. Sanders also serves as a member of the beards— board of directors
of Helijet International, Inc. and served as a member of the board of directors of Electrameccanica Vehicles Corp.
(NASDAQ: SOLO). Additionally, since October 2013, he has been a member of the board of directors at the American
Academy of Dramatic Arts, and, since February 2015, has been a member of the board of directors of the Bay Street Theater.
Mr. Sanders received his JD from Cornell University and his BBA from The City College of New York. Mr. Sanders is
qualified to serve as a director because of his corporate, securities and international law experience, including working with
companies in the life sciences industry. Lourdes Felix, Director Lourdes Felix has served as a member of the Board since
January 9, 2023. Ms. Felix is an entrepreneur and corporate finance executive with 30 years of combined experience in capital
markets, public accounting and in the private sector. She presently serves as Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
and a member of the board of directors of BioCorRx Inc ., a company focused on addiction treatment solutions and related
disorders. She has been with BioCorRx Ime. since October 2012. Ms. Felix is one of the founders and President of BioCorRx
Pharmaceuticals Inc., a majority owned subsidiary of BioCorRx Inc. Prior to joining BioCorRx Ine. , her experience was in the
private sector and public accounting. Ms. Felix has expertise in finance, accounting, company- wide operations, budgeting, and
internal control principles , including U. S. GAAP, SEC, and SOX €emplanee-compliance . She has thorough knowledge of
federal and state regulations and has successfully managed and produced SEC regulatory filings. She also has extensive
experience in developing and managing financial operations. Ms. Felix holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from
the University of Phoenix. She continued her education and is an MBA candidate at D’ Amore- McKim School of Business,
Northeastern University. Ms. Felix is qualified to serve as a director because of her extensive investment and executive level
management experience. Wilbert J. Tauzin II, Director Wilbert J. Tauzin II has served as a member of the Board since
November 1, 2017. From December 2010 until March 1, 2014, Congressman Tauzin served as a Special Legislative Counsel at
Alston & Bird LLP. From December 2004 to June 2010, Congressman Tauzin was President and Chief Executive Officer of
Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America, a trade group that serves as one of the pharmaceutical industry’ s top
lobbying groups. He served 12. 5 terms in the U. S. House of Representatives, representing Louisiana’ s 3rd Congressional
District. From January 2001 through February 2004, Congressman Tauzin served as Chairman of the House Committee on
Energy and Commerce. He also served as a senior member of the House Resources Committee and Deputy Majority Whip.
Prior to serving as a member of Congress, Congressman Tauzin was a member of the Louisiana State Legislature, where he
served as Chairman of the House Natural Resources Committee and Chief Administration Floor Leader. He served as Lead
Independent Director of LHC Group, a publicly traded provider of quality home health care, from 2005 to 2021 and retains the
role of Lead Independent Emeritus today. The Congressman also served on the board of directors of Entergy, a Fortune 500
company. In addition, the Congressman chartered a Louisiana State Savings and Loan Association and Chaired its first board of
directors. He received a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Nicholls State University and a Juris Doctor degree from Louisiana State
University. Congressman Tauzin is qualified to serve as a director because of his extensive knowledge of the pharmaceutical
industry and his experience as a director of several publicly traded and privately held companies. William B. Stilley, III,
Director William B. Stilley has served as a member of the Board since July 5, 2018. Mr. Stilley has been the Chief Executive
Officer of Adovate, LLC since January 2023. Previously, he was Chief Executive Officer of Purnovate, Inc., a subsidiary of
Adial Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Adial) from January 2021 until May 2023, and was Chief Executive Officer of Adial from
December 2010 until August 2022, and was a member of Adial’ s board of directors from December 2010 until September 2023.
From August 2008 until December 2010, he was the Vice President, Business Development and Strategic Projects at Clinical
Data, Inc. Mr. Stilley was the COO and CFO of Adenosine Therapeutics, LLC until the assets of Adenosine Therapeutics were
acquired by Clinical Data, Inc. in August 2008. Mr. Stilley has advised both public and private companies on financing and M &
A transactions, has been the interim CFO of a public company, the interim Chief Business Officer and then Advisor for
Diffusion Pharmaceuticals from September 2015 through March 2018, the audit chair for public companies, and the COO and
CFO of a number of private companies. Before entering the business community, Mr. Stilley served as Captain in the U. S.
Marine Corps. Mr. Stilley has an MBA with honors from the Darden School of Business and a B. S. in Commerce / Marketing
from the Mclntire School of Commerce at the University of Virginia. He currently serves on the Advisory Board of Virginia
BIO, the statewide biotechnology organization and has guest feetures-lectured as-at the Darden School of Business and the
University School of Engineering. Mr. Stilley is qualified to serve as a director because of his extensive knowledge of the
biotechnology industry, significant executive leadership and operational experience, and knowledge of, and experience in,
financing and M & A transactions. Tevi Troy, Director Tevi Troy has served as a member of the Board since June 4, 2018. Mr.
Troy is a former Deputy Secretary of the U. S. Department of Health and Human Services. Dr. Troy is a Senior Fellow at the
Bipartisan Policy Center in Washington. He was the founder and CEO of the American Health Policy Institute and a Senior
Fellow at Hudson Institute. On August 3, 2007, Dr. Troy was unanimously confirmed by the U. S. Senate as the Deputy
Secretary of HHS. As Deputy Secretary, Dr. Troy was the chief operating officer of the largest civilian department in the federal
government, with a budget of $ 716 billion and over 67, 000 employees. Dr. Troy has extensive White House experience, having
served in several high- level positions over a five- year period, culminating in his service as Deputy Assistant and then Acting
Assistant to the President for Domestic Policy. Dr. Troy has held high- level positions on Capitol Hill as well. From 1998 to
2000, Dr. Troy served as the Policy Director for Senator John Ashcroft. From 1996 to 1998, Dr. Troy was Senior Domestic
Policy Adviser and later Domestic Policy Director for the House Policy Committee, chaired by Christopher Cox. In addition to
his senior level government work and health care expertise, Dr. Troy is also a best- selling presidential historian and the author
of five books, including, most recently, “ Fight House: Rivalries in the White House from Truman to Trump, ” which the Wall
Street Journal listed as one of the top political books of 2020. Dr. Troy’ s many other affiliations include: contributing editor for
Washingtonian magazine; member of the publication committee of National Affairs; member of the Board of Fellows of the



Jewish Policy Center; a Senior Fellow at the Potomac Institute; and a member of the Bipartisan Commission on Biodefense. Dr.
Troy has a B. S. in Industrial and Labor Relations from Cornell University and an M. A , and Ph. D. in American Civilization
from the University of Texas at Austin. Dr. Troy is qualiﬁed to serve as a director because of his extensive knowledge of the
healthcare mdustry and hlS s1gmﬁcant leadershrp experlence Board Composrtlon Our Board is currently composed of seven
d1rectors Our diree e : g

are-divers comptanee-with-sueh s—tnra p-eur-priority
in selectlon of board members is identification of members who w111 further the mterests of our stockholders through his or her
established record of professional accomplishment, the ability to contribute positively to the collaborative culture among board
members, knowledge of our business and understanding of the competitive landscape. A majority of the authorized number of
directors constitutes a quorum of the Board for the transaction of business. However, any action required or permitted to be
taken by the Board may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board individually or collectively consent in writing
to the action. Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight The positions of our Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer are separated. Separating these positions allows our Chief Executive Officer to focus on our day- to- day
business, while allowing the Chairman of the Board to lead our Board in its fundamental role of providing advice to and
independent oversight of management. Our Board recognizes the time, effort and energy that the Chief Executive Officer must
devote to his position in the current business environment, as well as the commitment required to serve as our Chairman,
particularly as our Board’ s oversight responsibilities continue to grow. Our Board also believes that this structure ensures a
greater role for the independent directors in the oversight of our Company and active participation of the independent directors
in setting agendas and establishing priorities and procedures for the work of our Board. Our Board believes its administration of
its risk oversight function has not affected its leadership structure. Although our bylaws do not require our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer positions to be separate, our Board believes that having separate positions is the appropriate leadership
structure for us at this time and demonstrates our commitment to good corporate governance. Risk is inherent with every
business, and how well a business manages risk can ultimately determine its success. We face a number of risks, including those
described under the section entitled “ Risk Factors ™ of this report. Our Board is actively involved in oversight of risks that could
affect us. This oversight is conducted primarily by our full Board, which has responsibility for general oversight of risks. Our
Board satisfies this responsibility through full reports by each committee chair regarding the committee’ s considerations and
actions, as well as through regular reports directly from officers responsible for oversight of particular risks within our
Company. Our Board believes that full and open communication between management and the Board is essential for effective
risk management and oversight. Board of Director Meetings The primary responsibility of the Board is to provide oversight,
strategic guidance, counseling, and direction to our management team. Our Board meets on a regular basis and additionally as
required. Our Board met three-five times in 2623-2024 . Each of the directors attended at least 75 % of the aggregate of (i) the
total number of meetings of our Board (held during the period for which such directors served on the Board) and (ii) the total
number of meetings of all committees of our Board on which the director served (during the periods for which the director
served on such committee or committees). We do not have a formal policy requiring members of the Board to attend our annual
meetings —Ourtastannuatmeeting-of stockholders was-held-en-Oetober12,2023-. ©ne-Three of our directors servingat-the
time-attended last year’ s annual meeting. Director Independence Our common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market.
Under the rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market, independent directors must comprise a majority of our Board. In addition, the
rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market require that all the members of such committees be independent. Members of our Audit
Committee, as defined below, must also satisfy the independence criteria set forth in Rule 10A- 3 under the Exchange Act.
Compensation committee members must also satisfy the independence criteria established by The Nasdaq Capital Market in
accordance with Rule 10C- 1 under the Exchange Act. Under the rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market, a director will only
qualify as an “ independent director ” if, among other qualifications, in the opinion of that company’ s board of directors, that
person does not have a relationship that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the
responsibilities of a director. The Board has reviewed its composition, the composition of its committees and the independence
of each director. Based upon information requested from and provided by each director concerning his or her background,
employment and affiliations, including family relationships, the Board has determined that Steven A. Sanders, Lourdes Felix,
William B. Stilley, III and Tevi Troy do not, respectively, have a relationship that would interfere with the exercise of
independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director and that each of these directors is ““ independent ” as that
term is defined under the Rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market and the SEC. In making this determination, our Board considered
the relationships that each non- employee director has with our Company and all other facts and circumstances our Board
deemed relevant in determining their independence. We intend to comply with the other independence requirements for
committees within the time periods specified above. Family Relationships There are no family relationships among our directors
or executive officers. Board Committees The Board has established an audit committee, a compensation committee and a
nominating and corporate governance committee. Our Board may establish other committees to facilitate the management of our
business. The composition and functions of each committee named above are defined and described below. Members serve on
these committees until their resignation or until otherwise determined by our Board. Audit Committee. We have a separately
designated standing audit committee of the Board (the “ Audit Committee ), established in accordance with Section 3 (a) (58)
(A) of the Exchange Act. The Audit Committee consists of William Stilley, Steven Sanders and Tevi Troy, with Mr. Stilley
serving as the Chair of the Audit Committee. The Board has determined that each director currently serving on our Audit
Committee is an “ independent director ” as defined by Nasdaq applicable to members of an audit committee and Rule 10A- 3
(b) (i) under the Exchange Act. In addition, Mr. Stilley is an “ audit committee financial expert ” as defined in Item 407 (d) (5)
of Regulation S- K and demonstrates “ financial sophistication ” as defined by Nasdaq Rules. The Audit Committee is appointed
by the Board to assist with monitoring (i) the integrity of our financial statements, (ii) our compliance with legal and regulatory



requirements, and (iii) the independence and performance of our internal and external auditors. The principal functions and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include: ® reviewing our annual audited financial statements with management and our
independent auditors, including major issues regarding accounting and auditing principles and practices and financial reporting
that could significantly affect our financial statements; ® reviewing our quarterly financial statements with management and our
independent auditor prior to the filing of our Quarterly Reports on Form 10- Q, including the results of the independent auditors’
reviews of the quarterly financial statements; ® recommending to the Board the appointment of, and continued evaluation of the
performance of, our independent auditor; @ approving and conducting a review of all related party transactions for potential
conflict of interest situations on an ongoing basis; ® approving the fees to be paid to our independent auditor for audit services
and approving the retention of our independent auditor for non- audit services and all fees for such services; ® reviewing
periodic reports from our independent auditor regarding our auditor’ s independence, including discussion of such reports with
the auditor; e reviewing the adequacy of our overall control environment, including internal financial controls and disclosure
controls and procedures; and e reviewing with our management and legal counsel legal matters that may have a material impact
on our financial statements or our compliance policies and any material reports or inquiries received from regulators or
governmental agencies. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the Audit Committee met four times. The Audit
Committee is governed by a written charter, as adopted by the Board. A copy of the Audit Committee Charter is posted under
the “ Investors  tab under “ Corporate Governance ” on our website, which is located at www. avalon- globocare. com.
Compensation Committee. The compensation committee of the Board (the “ Compensation Committee ) consists of Lourdes
Felix, Steven Sanders and Tevi Troy, with Ms. Felix serving as the Chair of the Compensation Committee. The Board has
determined that each member of the Compensation Committee is considered (i) an “ independent director ” as defined by
Nasdaq Rules applicable to members of a compensation committee; (ii) a “ non- employee director ” as defined in Rule 16b- 3
promulgated under the Exchange Act; and (iii) an “ outside director ” as that term is defined in Section 162 (m) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Code ). The Compensation Committee is responsible for establishing the
compensation of our senior management, including salaries, bonuses, termination arrangements, and other executive officer
benefits as well as director compensation. The Compensation Committee also administers our equity incentive plans. The
Compensation Committee works with the Chairman of the Board and our Chief Executive Officer and reviews and approves
compensation decisions regarding senior management, including compensation levels and equity incentive awards. The
Compensation Committee also approves employment and compensation agreements with our key personnel and directors. The
Compensation Committee has the power and authority to conduct or authorize studies, retain independent consultants,
accountants or others, and obtain unrestricted access to management, our internal auditors, human resources and accounting
employees and all information relevant to its responsibilities. The principal functions and responsibilities of the Compensation
Committee include: @ reviewing and approving the Company’ s compensation guidelines and structure; ® reviewing and
approving, on an annual basis, the corporate goals and objectives with respect to compensation for the Chief Executive Officer;
e reviewing and approving, on an annual basis, the evaluation process and compensation structure for the Company’ s other
officers, including salary, bonus, incentive and equity compensation; ® periodically reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board regarding the compensation of non- management directors; and e developing the executive compensation philosophy
and reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval all compensation policies and compensation programs for the
executive team. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the Compensation Committee did-netmeet- met two
times . The Compensation Committee is governed by a written charter, as adopted by our Board. A copy of the Compensation
Committee Charter is posted under the “ Investors ” tab under “ Corporate Governance ” on our website, which is located at
www. avalon- globocare. com. Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee consists of Steven Sanders, William Stilley and Tevi Troy, with Mr. Sanders serving as the Chair of our Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee. Our Board has determined that each member of the Nominating and Governance
Committee is an “ independent director ” as defined by Nasdaq Rules. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is
generally responsible for recommending to our full Board certain policies, procedures, and practices designed to ensure that our
corporate governance policies, procedures, and practices continue to assist the Board and our management in effectively and
efficiently promoting the best interests of our stockholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is also
responsible for selecting and recommending for approval by our Board and our stockholders a slate of director nominees for
election at each of our annual meetings of stockholders, and otherwise for determining the board committee members and
chairpersons, subject to ratification by our Board, as well as recommending to the Board director nominees to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board or its committees that may occur or be created from time to time, all in accordance with our bylaws
and applicable law. In identifying independent candidates, with significant senior- level professional experience, to be nominated
as potential members of our Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee solicits candidates from the Board,
senior management and others, and may engage a search firm in the process. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee reviews and narrows the list of candidates and interviews potential nominees. The final candidate is also introduced
and interviewed by the Board and the lead director if one has been appointed. In general, in considering whether to recommend
any particular candidate for inclusion in our Board’ s slate of recommended director nominees, the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee will apply the criteria set forth in our corporate governance guidelines. These criteria include the
candidate’ s integrity, business acumen, commitment to understanding our business and industry, experience, conflicts of
interest and the ability to act in the interests of our stockholders. Further, specific consideration is given to, among other things,
diversity of background and experience that a candidate would bring to our Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee does not assign specific weights to particular criteria and no particular criterion is a prerequisite for each prospective
nominee. We believe that the backgrounds and qualifications of our directors, considered as a group, should provide a composite
mix of experience, knowledge and abilities that will allow our Board to fulfill its responsibilities. Stockholders may recommend



individuals to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for consideration as potential director candidates by
submitting the names, together with appropriate biographical information and background materials to our Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers recommendations from
stockholders if submitted in a timely manner in accordance with the procedures set forth in our bylaws and will apply the same
criteria to all persons being considered. The principal functions and responsibilities of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee include: @ developing and maintaining our corporate governance policy guidelines; ® developing and
maintaining our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; @ overseeing the interpretation and enforcement of our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial and Accounting Officers; ® evaluating the
performance of our Board, its committees, and committee chairpersons and our directors; and e selecting and recommending a
slate of director nominees for election at each of our annual meetings of the stockholders and recommending to the Board
director nominees to fill vacancies or new positions on the Board or its committees that may occur from time to time. During the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met one time. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is governed by a written charter approved by our Board. A copy of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter is posted under the *“ Investors ” tab under “ Corporate Governance ”
on our website, which is located at www. avalon- globocare. com. Stockholder neminationns-Nominations for direetorships
Directorships Stockholders may recommend individuals to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for
consideration as potential director candidates by submitting their names and background to the Secretary of the Company at the
address set forth below under “ Stockholder Communications ” in accordance with the provisions set forth in our bylaws. All
such recommendations will be forwarded to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, which will review and only
consider such recommendations if appropriate biographical and other information is provided, including, but not limited to, the
items listed below, on a timely basis. ® the name and address of record of the security holder;® a representation that the security
holder is a record holder of the Company’ s securities,or if the security holder is not a record holder,evidence of ownership in
accordance with Rule 14a- 8 (b) (2) of the Exchange Act;® the name,age,business and residential address,educational
background,current principal occupation or employment,and principal occupation or employment for the preceding five (5) full
fiscal years of the proposed director candidate;® a description of the qualifications and background of the proposed director
candidate and a representation that the proposed director candidate meets applicable independence requirements;® a description
of any arrangements or understandings between the security holder and the proposed director candidate;and e the consent of the
proposed director candidate to be named in the proxy statement relating to the Company’ s annual meeting of stockholders and
to serve as a director if elected at such annual meeting. All security holder recommendations for director candidates must be
received by the Company in the timeframe (s) set forth under the heading *“ Stockholder Proposals ” below. @ the name and
address of record...... if elected at such annual meeting. Assuming that appropriate information is timely provided for candidates
recommended by stockholders, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate those candidates by
following substantially the same process, and applying substantially the same criteria, as for candidates submitted by members
of the Board or other persons, as described above and as set forth in its written charter. Compensation Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation None of our executive officers currently serves, or in the past year has served, as a member of the board of
directors or compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers on our board of directors or
compensation committee. Code of Ethics We have adopted a written Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our
employees, officers and directors. A copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted under the *“ Investors ™ tab
under “ Corporate Governance ” in our website, which is located at www. avalon- globocare. com. We intend to disclose future
amendments to certain provisions of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, or waivers of such provisions applicable to any
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar
functions, and our directors, on our website identified above or in filings with the SEC. Anti-—Hedging Insider trading
arrangements and policies. We have adopted an insider trading Peliey-policy Under-that governs the purchase, sale, and /
or the-other ’feﬂﬁs-transactlons of our securltles by our dlrectors, ofﬁcers and employees A copy of our 1n51der tradmg
pohcy is ﬁled ve-p oy olted es

h-as zero-Exhibit 19 1to
th1s Annual Report on Form 10 K for cOSteo 0 d : : hem— the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024. In addition, with regard to ereleus tradlng in mueh—ef—the—va%ue—e#our own securities, it is our policy
to comply with their-- the s’eeelehe}d-mgs—eften—m—federal securltles laws and the apphcable exchange -fer—llstmg

requlrements in all respects or-pa

v sks-an W W leltatlon of theet-Gfs— Dlrector Llablhty and lndemmﬁcatlon
The Delaware General Corporatlon Law authorizes corporations to limit or eliminate, subject to certain conditions, the personal
liability of directors to corporations and their stockholders for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties. Our
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “ Certificate of Incorporation ) limits the liability of our directors to the
fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. In addition, we have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our
directors and officers whereby we have agreed to indemnify those directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by law,
including indemnification against expenses and liabilities incurred in legal proceedings to which the director or officer was, or is
threatened to be made, a party by reason of the fact that such director or officer is or was a director, officer, employee or agent
of the Company, provided that such director or officer acted in good faith and in a manner that the director or officer reasonably
believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Company. We have director and officer liability insurance to cover
liabilities our directors and officers may incur in connection with their services to us, including matters arising under the
Securities Act. Our Certificate of Incorporation and bylaws also provide that we will indemnify our directors and officers who,
by reason of the fact that he or she is one of our officers or directors, is involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,




criminal, administrative or investigative related to their board role with us. There is no pending litigation or proceeding
involving any of our directors, officers, employees or agents in which indemnification will be required or permitted. We are not
aware of any threatened litigation or proceeding that may result in a claim for such indemnification. Delinquent Section 16 (a)
Reports Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors and executive, officers, and persons who are beneficial
owners of more than 10 % of a registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership
with the SEC. These persons are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16 (a) forms they file.
Based solely upon our review of copies of Forms 3, 4 and 5 furnished to us, we believe that all of our directors, executive
officers and 10 % any-etherappheable-stockholders t1me1y ﬁled all reports requrred by Sectron 16 (a) of the Exchange Act
durlng the ﬁscal year ended December 31, %92—3—2024 ee h
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Compensatron We are currently a‘ smaller reportrng company

> as such term is deﬂned in the rules promulgated under the
Secuntles Act 7 We have opted to comply w1th the scaled down disclosure rules applicable to smaller reporting
companies Wthh require certain compensation disclosure for (i) our principal executive officer, (ii) our two most highly
compensated executive officers, other than the principal executive officer, whose total compensation for 2623-2024 exceeded $
100, 000 and who were serving as executive officers as of December 31, 2023-2024 , and (iii) up to two additional individuals
for whom disclosure would have been provided pursuant to the foregoing clause (ii) but for the fact that the individual was not
serving as an executive officer as of December 31, 2623-2024 . We refer to these individuals as “ named executive officers. ”
Our named executive officers for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 were +Dr. David Jin, Luisa Ingargiola and Meng
Li. Certain information regarding their 2024 compensation is included below. 2024 Summary Compensation TableName
and principal position Year Salary Stock awards Option Awards Nonequity incentive plan compensation Nonqualified deferred
compensation earnings All other compensation Total ($) ($) ($) ($) ($) ($) ($) Dr. David Jin 2024 180, 000----- 180, 000 CEO
2023 330, 000----- 330 ;-006-EEO0-2622-366,-006——366-, 000 Luisa Ingargiola 2623-2024 350, 000----- 350, 000 CFO 2622
2023 350, 000----- 350, 000 Meng Li2024 205, 471----- 205, 471 COO 2023 280, 244----- 280, 244 €06-2622-346,660-—
346;,-666-Employment Agreements On December 1, 2016, the Company entered into an Executive Employment Agreement
with David Jin, the Company’ s CEO and President. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Jin was employed as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, which agreement had a term initially through November 30, 2017 unless earlier terminated
pursuant to the terms of the agreement. On February 20, 2020, the Company entered into a Letter Agreement with Dr. Jin
pursuant to which the term of Dr. Jin’ s Executive Employment Agreement was extended an additional three years. During the
term of the agreement, Dr. Jin is entitled to a base salary and will be eligible for a discretionary performance bonus, equity
awards and to participate in employee benefits plans as the Company may institute from time to time at the discretion of the
Board. On January 3, 2019, the Company entered into a Letter Agreement with Dr. Jin, pursuant to which his annual base salary
set forth in his employment agreement was increased to $ 360, 000, effective January 1, 2019. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr.
Jin may be terminated for “ cause ” as defined and Mr. Jin may resign for *“ good reason  as defined. In the event Mr. Jin is
terminated without cause or resigns for good reason, the Company will be required to pay Mr. Jin all accrued salary and
bonuses, reimbursement for all business expenses and Mr. Jin’ s salary for one year. In the event Mr. Jin is terminated with
cause, resigns without good reason, dies or is disabled, the Company will be required to pay Mr. Jin all accrued salary and
bonuses and reimbursement for all business expenses. Under the agreement Mr. Jin is subject to confidentiality, non- compete
and non- solicitation restrictions. This agreement has not been extended, however Dr. Jin is continuing his employment with the
Company at will and otherwise under the same terms and conditions, except that Dr. Jin agreed to a salary reduction as set forth
in the table above for the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 as part of the Company’ s cost reduction measures. On
February 21, 2017, Ms. Ingargiola and the Company entered into an Executive Retention Agreement effective February 9, 2017,
pursuant to which Ms. Ingargiola agreed to serve as Chief Financial Officer in consideration of an annual salary. On January 3,
2019, the Company entered into a Letter Agreement with Ms. Ingargiola, pursuant to which her annual base salary set forth in
her employment agreement was increased to $ 350, 000 effective January 1, 2019. The employment of Ms. Ingargiola is at will
and may be terminated at any time, with or without formal cause. Pursuant to the terms of Executive Retention Agreement with
Ms. Ingargiola, the Company has agreed to provide specified severance and bonus amounts and to accelerate the vesting on her
equity awards upon termination upon a change of control or an involuntary termination, as each term is defined in the
agreements. In the event of a termination upon a change of control, Ms. Ingargiola is entitled to receive an amount equal to 12
months of her base salary and the target bonus then in effect for the executive officer for the year in which such termination
occurs, such bonus payment to be pro- rated to reflect the full number of months the executive remained in the Company’ s
employ. In addition, the vesting on any stock option held by the executive officer will be accelerated in full. At the election of
the executive officer, the Company will also continue to provide health related employee insurance coverage for twelve months,
at the Company’ s expense. In the event of an involuntary termination, Ms. Ingargiola is entitled to receive an amount equal to
six months of her base salary and the target bonus then in effect for the executive officer for the six months in which such
termination occurs, such bonus payment to be pro- rated to reflect the full number of months the executive remained in the
Company’ s employ. Such payment will be increased to 12 months upon the one- year anniversary of the retention agreement.




In addition, the vesting on any stock option held by the executive officer will be accelerated in full. At the election of the
executive officer, the Company will also continue to provide health related employee insurance coverage for twelve months, at
the Company’ s expense. On January 11, 2017, Avalon Shanghai entered into an Executive Employment Agreement with Meng
Li, the Company’ s COO and Secretary. Pursuant to the agreement, Ms. Li was employed as Chief Operating Officer and
President of Avalon Shanghai initially through November 30, 2019, unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of the
agreement. On February 20, 2020, the Company entered into a Letter Agreement with Meng Li pursuant to which the term of
Ms. Li’ s Executive Employment Agreement entered between the Company’ s subsidiary and Ms. Li dated January 11, 2017
was extended an additional three years. During the term of the agreement, Ms. Li is entitled to a base salary and will be eligible
for a discretionary performance bonus, equity awards and to participate in employee benefits plans as the Avalon Shanghai may
institute from time to time at the discretion of its Board of Directors. On January 3, 2019, the Company entered into a Letter
Agreement with Ms. Li, pursuant to which her annual base salary set forth in her employment agreement was increased to $ 340,
000 effective January 1, 2019, except that Ms. Li agreed to a salary reduction as set forth in the table above for the year-years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 as part of the Company’ s cost reduction measures. Pursuant to the agreement, Ms. Li may
be terminated for “ cause ” as defined and Ms. Li may resign for ““ good reason ” as defined. In the event Ms. Li is terminated
without cause or resigns for good reason, Avalon Shanghai will be required to pay Ms. Li all accrued salary and bonuses,
reimbursement for all business expenses and Ms. Li’ s salary for one year. In the event Ms. Li is terminated with cause, resigns
without good reason, dies or is disabled, Avalon Shanghai will be required to pay Ms. Li all accrued salary and bonuses and
reimbursement for all business expenses. Under the agreement Ms. Li is subject to confidentiality, non- compete and non-
solicitation restrictions. Option Exercises and Stock Vested There were no options exercised by our executive officers or stock
vested to our executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Outstanding Equity Awards at 2024 Fiscal
Year End The following table sets forth 1nformat10n Wlth reqpect to the outitandmg equlty awards of our pfmei—pa-l—named
executive officers at andp nanets : d W A e ofthe
Company-asof December 31, %92—3—2024 Outqtandlng Equ1ty Awards Optlon Awards Stock Awards N ame and-prineipat
pesitton-Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#) ( Exercisable {#) Number of securities underlying unexercised
options (#) ( Unexercisable {#) Equity incentive plan awards: Number of securities underlying unexercised unearned options
(#) Options exercise price ($) Option expiration Date Number of shares or units of stock that have not vested (#) Market value of
shares or units of stock that have not vested ($) Equity incentive plan awards: Number of unearned shares, units or other rights
that have not vested (#) Equity incentive plan awards: Market or payout value of unearned shares, units or other rights that have
not vested ($) David Jin 2, 667- 2, 667 228 2 / 18 / 2030---- Luisa Ingargiela-13 , 333 200,-000-- 200-13 , 333 75000562 /8 /
2027---- Ingargiola €FO-46;:-066—406:-00015--2 , 667- 2, 667 228 2 / 18 / 2030---- Meng Li 2 PavidFin+5-, 000- +5-2 , 000
228 20—-61++2-+2624—CEO-46;:-000-46,-00015-—2-2 / 18 / 2030---- MengEtPolicies and Practices Related to the Grant of
Certain Equity Awards Close in Time to the Release of Material Nonpublic Information We do not have any formal
policy that requires us to grant , +5-or avoid granting , stock options at particular times 6601560020~ 6-+/2-/
Consistent with its annual compensation cycle, if options are to be granted, the Compensation Committee generally seeks
to grant annual stock option awards after its Annual Report on Form 10- K has been filed. The timing of any stock
option grants in connection with new hires, promotions, or other non- routine grants is tied to the event giving rise to the
award (such as an employee’ s commencement of employment or promotion effective date). As a result, in all cases, the
timing of grants of stock options occurs independent of the release of any material nonpublic information, and we do not
time the disclosure of material nonpublic information for the purpose of affecting the value of executive compensation.
No stock options were issued to executive officers in 2024 during any period beginning four business days before the
filing of a periodic report or current report disclosing material non - —€66-36;,-666-36;,-06660-15-public information and
ending one business day after the filing or furnishing of such report with the SEC . 22-+48-+2630-—No Pension Benefits
We do The-Company-dees-not maintain any plan that provides for payments or other benefits to its executive officers at,
following or in connection with retirement and including, without limitation, any tax- qualified defined benefit plans or
supplemental executive retirement plans. No Nonqualified Deferred Compensation We do Fhe-Cempany-does-not maintain any
defined contribution or other plan that provides for the deferral of compensation on a basis that is not tax- qualified. 2024
Director Compensation The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation earned or paid to certain of our
non- employee directors during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023-2024 : Name Fees Earned or Paid in Cash $ Stock
Awards $ Option Awards $ Non- equity Incentive Plan Compensation $ Change in Pension Value and Non- Qualified Deferred
Compensation Earnings $ All Other Compensation $ Total $ WibertFauzin-—38;-652—38;-052-Wenzhao Lu 100, 000-----
100, 000 PawidFp———Lourdes Felix ( 1) 70, 000- 2 368-, 488-697 - 23;268—- 72 —H-, #56-697 Steven A. Sanders ( 2) 70,
000- 2, 697--- 72, 697 William B. Stilley, III ( 3) 70, 000- 33-2 , 665-697 --- +03-72 , 665-697 Wilbert J. Tauzin II (4) 25, 000-
4, 697--- 29, 697 Tevi Troy ( 5) 60, 000- 2, 697--- 62, 697 (1) Ms. Felix’ s 2024 compensation consisted of cash of $ 70, 000
and 533 stock options vested and valued at $ 2, 697. (2) Mr. Sanders’ s 2024 compensation consisted of cash of $ 70, 000
and 533 options vested and valued at $ 2, 697. (3) Mr. Stllley s 2024 compensatlon cons1sted of cash of § 70 000 and 533
options vested and valued at $ 2, 697. (4 )6
Tauzin’ s 2623-2024 compensation consisted of%e-cash 0f$ 25, OOO and 1, 333 optlons Vested and valued at $ -3-8—4 052-697 .
(2—5 ) Ms-Mr . -Feh-)eTroy s 2623-2024 compeniatlon con%lsted of cash 0f$ 68—60 488-000 and 533 7—893—s’feeleopt10n§
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RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS Equity Compensation Plan Information Amended and Restated 2020 Stock Incentive



Plan On August 29, 2023, the Board adopted the Avalon GloboCare Corp. Amended and Restated 2020 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “ Amended and Restated 2020 Plan ™), subject to stockholder approval, which was received on December 19, 2023. The
Amended and Restated 2020 Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options that are intended to qualify under Section 422
of the Code (“ ISOs ), nonstatutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit
awards, performance- based stock awards and performance- based cash awards. ISOs may be granted only to employees. All
other awards may be granted to employees, including officers, and to the Company’ s non- employee directors, consultants and
other advisors. A total of 2-133 , 333 666;-860-shares of our common stock were initially available under the Amended and
Restated 2020 Plan. In addition, the number of shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under the Amended and
Restated 2020 Plan automatically increases on January 1 of each year, beginning on January 1, 2024, by 1 % of the total number
of shares of our common stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year, or a lesser number of shares
determined by our Board. On January 1, 2024 and 2025 , the number of shares of our common stock reserved for issuance
under the Amended and Restated 2020 Plan was increased by 7, 333 an-and 14 aggregate-of 169, 995-425 shares , respectively
. As of March 29-31 , 2024-2025 | a total of 2-142 , 424 +89;-995-shares of our common stock are-were available for issuance
under the Amended and Restated 2020 Plan, including shares that are the subject of outstanding awards as of such date.
Clawback / Recoupment. Awards granted under the Amended and Restated 2020 Plan are wilt-be-subject to the requirement that
the awards be forfeited or amounts repaid to the Company after they have been distributed to the participant (i) to the extent set
forth in an award agreement or (ii) to the extent covered by any clawback or recapture policy adopted by the Company from
time to time (including the Clawback Policy adopted by the Board on November 16, 2023), or any applicable laws that impose
mandatory forfeiture or recoupment, under circumstances set forth in such applicable laws. Amendment, Termination. Our
Board may at any time amend, suspend or terminate the Amended and Restated 2020 Plan for the purpose of satisfying the
requirements of the Code, or other applicable law or regulation or for any other legal purpose, provided that, without the consent
of our stockholders, the Board may not (i) increase the number of shares of our common stock available under the Amended and
Restated 2020 Plan, (ii) change the group of individuals eligible to receive awards, or (iii) extend the term of the Amended and
Restated 2020 Plan. 2020 Incentive Stock Plan On June 12, 2020, the Board adopted the Avalon GloboCare Corp. 2020
Incentive Stock Plan (the “ 2020 Plan ™), subject to stockholder approval, which was received on August 4, 2020. The general
purpose of the 2020 Plan is to provide a means whereby eligible directors, officers, employees or consultants to the Company
develop a sense of proprietorship and personal involvement in our development and financial success, and to encourage them to
devote their best efforts to our business, thereby advancing our interests and the interests of our stockholders. We believe that
the 2020 Plan advances the Company’ s interests by enhancing our ability to (i) attract, retain and reward employees, officers,
directors and consultants who are in a position to make significant contributions to our success; (ii) encourage our employees,
officers, directors and consultants to take into account our long- term interests through ownership of our shares of our common
stock; and (iii) to provide incentives for such persons to exert maximum efforts for our success. The Board has reserved $66-33 ,
866-333 shares of our common stock for issuance under the 2020 Plan, subject to customary adjustments for stock splits, stock
dividends or similar transactions. Under the 2020 Plan, awards may be made in the form of options to purchase shares of our
common stock, as well as restricted shares of our common stock and restricted stock units payable in shares of our common
stock. Options may be granted which are intended to qualify as ISOs under Section 422 of the Code or which are not intended to
qualify as ISOs thereunder. However, ISOs may only be granted to employees. If any option granted under the 2020 Plan
terminates without having been exercised in full or if any award is forfeited, or if shares otherwise issuable are withheld to
satisfy tax withholding obligations, the number of shares of our common stock as to which such option or award was forfeited or
withheld will be available for future grants under the 2020 Plan. The 2020 Plan is not a qualified deferred compensation plan
under Section 401 (a) of the Code and is not subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.
2019 Incentive Stock Plan On June 7, 2019, the Board adopted the Avalon GloboCare Corp. 2019 Incentive Stock Plan (the
2019 Plan ), subject to stockholder approval, which was received on August 6, 2019. There are 566-33 , 886-333 shares of our
common stock reserved for issuance under the 2019 Plan, subject to customary adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends or
similar transactions. As of March 29-31 , 2024-2025 , 93-6 , 200-213 shares remained available for issuance under the 2019 Plan.
The following table provides information with respect to our 2019 Plan, 2020 Plan, and Amended and Restated 2020 Plan under
which equity compensation was authorized as of December 31, 2623-2024 : Plan category Number of securities to be issued
upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights (a) Weighted average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants
and rights (b) Number of securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans the26+9-Plan-and
2026-Pan-(excluding securities reflected in column (a)) (c) Equity compensation plan approved by security holders Amended
and Restated 2020 Plan 12, 667 (4-1 ) $ 3. 46 (2) 142, 424 2020 Plan 392-33 , 463-221 (43 ) $ 454 . 94-53 (2) 112 2%
5972019 Plan 40627 , 860-120 (3-4 ) $ 48275 . 36-44 (2) 93-6 , 2066-213 Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders —————=$-- Total 779-73 , 203-008 $ +2-153 . 362206-74 148 , 797-749 (1) Includes 324-1 , 893-867 shares of our
common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options and 4710 , 686-800 shares of our common stock issuable pursuant
to outstanding restricted stock units. (2) The weighted average exercise price does not take into account the shares issuable
pursuant to outstanding restricted stock units, which have no exercise price. (3) Includes 462-30 , 666-047 shares of our common
stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options and 4-3 , §86-174 shares of our common stock issuable pursuant to
outstanding restricted stock units. (4) Includes 26 Ne-issuanees-have-beenrmade-as-of Deeember3+-, 2023-under-the-Amended
800 shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options and Restated2020-Ptan-320 shares of our
common stock issuable pursuant to outstanding restricted stock units . Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or
investment power with respect to securities. In accordance with SEC rules, shares of our common stock which may be acquired
upon exercise of stock options or warrants which are currently exercisable or which become exercisable within 60 days of the




date of the applicable table below are deemed beneficially owned by the holders of such options and warrants and are deemed
outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the
purpose of computing the percentage of ownership of any other person. Subject to community property laws, where applicable,
the persons or entities named in the tables below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our
common stock indicated as beneficially owned by them. The following table sets forth certain information, as of March 28-31 ,
2624-2025 with respect to the beneficial ownership of the outstanding common stock by : e {H-anyhelderofmore-thanfrve(S
Y5ypereent(ieach-Each of our named executive ofﬁcers and dlrectors ° Our aﬂd—fmﬁ—eﬁdlrectors and executive ofﬁcers as
a group ; and e Holders of more than —Fhe e y
Exeept-% of our common stockExcept as 0therw1se 1ndlcated each of the stockholders hsted below has sole voting and
investment power over the shares beneficially owned. Name of Beneficial Owner (1) Common Stock Beneficially Owned
Percentage of Common Stock (2) Wenzhao Lu * (3) 3-238 , 928 14 583;-788-32-. 3-5 % David Jin, MD, PhD * (4) 4205 , 667
11 58560614~ 2-7 % Meng Li * (5) 545-436 , 606-4-334 21 . 9-2 9% Luisa Ingargiola * (6) 246-416 , 000 220 . 1 % Steven A.
Sanders * (7) 34-102 , 666-*+*665 5.9 % Wllbert J. Tauzin 11 * (8) 65-105 , 666-*+*570 6. 0 % Wllham B. Stilley III * (9) 34
102 , 66622665 5.9 % Tevi Troy * (10) 34102 , 606-2%-665 5. 9 % Lourdes Felix * (11) 9-101 , 863-+%-053 5. 8 % All
officers and directors as a group (9 persons) 6; 430594551 , 811, 547 58. 7 % Shareholder owning 5 % or more:
FSUNSHINEFRADINGPTFELTD-Vision Capital NY Inc. (12) 697100 , 6+6-000 6. 2-1 % * Officer and / or director of our
Company-company —**Fessthanr+-0-%—(1) Except as otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner is ¢ /o
Avalon GloboCare Corp., 4400 Route 9 South, Suite 3100, Freehold, New Jersey 07728. (2) Applicable percentage ownership is
based on H-1 , +84-651 , 534-667 shares of our common stock outstanding as of March 29-31 , 2024-2025 , together with
securities exercisable or convertible into shares of our common stock within 60 days of March 29-31 , 2824-2025 for each
stockholder. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or
investment power with respect to securities. Shares of common stock that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
of March 28-31 , 2824-2025 are deemed to be beneficially owned by the person holding such securities for the purpose of
computing the percentage of ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person. (3) Wenzhao Lu holds 3-238 , 928 583;-788-shares of our common stock. (4) David
Jin holds (1) 103 +5545-, 000 shares of our common stock and (ii) 102, 667 vested options to acquire 102, 667 shares of our
common stock. (5) Meng Li holds (i) 34, 334 shares of our common stock and (ii) 46-402 , 000 vested options to acquire 46
402 , 000 shares of our common stock. ( 5-6 ) Mengttholds(H-5+5-Represents 416, 000 vested options to acquire 416 , 000
shares of our common stock and-. (#7 ) 36-Represents 102 , 866-665 vested options to acquire 36-102 , 866-665 shares of our
common stock. ( 6-8 ) Represents246-Wilbert J. Tauzin IT holds (i) 1, 037 GGG—VeSted—epﬁens—te-aeqtﬂfe%—%G—shares of
our common stock —and (/i ) Representsstoek-104, 533 vested optiorroptions to acquire 34-104 , 666-533 shares of our
common stock . (9) Represents 102 , 665 32-606-efwhich-have-been-vested and—Z—GGG—ef—veﬁlﬂehﬁ&H—be—vested—wrﬂa-m—ée-&ws:
(-89—Repfeseﬂts—steeleepﬁen—optlons to acqulre 102 65—665 —999—shares of our common stock (10) Represents 102 , 665 64;
: W es 60-aay A ption-options to acquire

%4—102 999—665 shares of our common stock (11) Represents 101 053 32—999—ef—w-hteh—have—beeﬁ—vested and-2-000-of

h 3 opttot optlons to acqulre -34—101 999—053 shares of our common

stock—}%— (12) V1s1on Capltal NY Inc holds 100, OOO efwhieh A
69—&&73761—13—1%epfesents-steeieepﬁefﬁe-aeqtufe—9—893—shares of our common stock V1s1on Capltal NY Inc s address is 7%

600 Pine Hollow Road # 16- 5B days—(12)
F—SUN—SHH*J—E—’PMBH@G—P%E—HPB—he%ds—@é%— East Norw1ch 646—sh&fes—ef—emeeemfnen-steeieaﬁd-€na—l—2-3— NY 11732 964
es ptions-to-ae e 64-shares . ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRAN SACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE Other than compensation arrangements for our named executive
officers and directors, we describe below each transaction or series of similar transactions, since January 1, 2822-2023 to which
we were a party or will be a party, in which: @ the amounts involved exceeded or will exceed the lesser of (i) $ 120, 000 or (ii) 1
% of the average total assets of the Company at year end for the last two completed fiscal years; and e any of our directors,
executive officers, promoters or holders of more than 5 % of our capital stock, or any member of the immediate family of the
foregoing persons, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest. Compensation arrangements for our named executive
officers and directors are described in the section entitled “ Executive Compensation. ”” Rental Revenue from Related Party and
Rent Receivable — Related Party The Company leases part-space of its commercial real property located in New Jersey to D. P.
Capital Investments LLC, a-eempany-which is controlled by Wenzhao Lu, the Company’ s largest-shareholder-and-chairman of
the Board of Directors . The term of the related party lease agreement is five years commencing on May 1, 2021 and will expire
on April 30, 2026. For both the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the related party rental revenue amounted
to $ 50, 400 and has been included in real property rental revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, the related party rent receivable totaled $ 0 and $ 124,
500 a-nd—$—74—1-99— respectlvely, Wthh has been 1ncluded in rent receivable on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets 5
d e ed vable-. Services Provided by Related Party From
time to time, Wllbert Tauzin, a director of the Company, and his son prov1de consultlng services to the Company. As
compensation for professional services provided, the Company recognized consulting expenses of § 63, 644 and $ 86, 528 and
$144,064-for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively, which have been included in professional
fees on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss . As of both December 31, 2024 and
2023, the accrued and unpaid services charge related to this director’ s son amounted to $ 15, 000, which have been
included in accrued professional fees on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets . Accrued Liabilities and Other
Payables — Related Parties In 2017, the Company acquired Beijing Genexosome for a cash payment of $ 450, 000. As of both




December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the unpaid acquisition consideration of $ 100, 000, was payable to Dr. Yu Zhou, &
former director and former co- chief executive officer and 40 % owner of Genexosome, and has been included in accrued
liabilities and other payables — related parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Puring-the-pertod-from-From
time to time June2023-through-Deeember2623-, Lab Services MSO paid shared expense on behalf of the Company. As-In
addition, Lab Services MSO made a payment of $ 566, 667 for equity method investment payable on behalf of the
Company in the year ended December 31, 2024. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the balance due to Lab Services MSO
amounted to $ 632,916 and $ 72, 746 , respectively , which has been included in accrued liabilities and other payables —
related parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-20622-, $ 0 and $ 33,
712 and-$-0-of accrued and unpaid interest related to borrowings from Wenzhao Lu, the Company’ s fargest-sharchelderand
Chatrman-chairman of the Board of Directors , respectively, have been included in accrued liabilities and other payables —
related parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Borrowings from Related Party Eine-ef-€redi+-On August 29,
2019, the Company entered into a Line of Credit Agreement (the “ Line of Credit Agreement ) providing the Company with a $
20 million line of credit (the *“ Line of Credit ) from Wenzhao-Mr. Lu {the=Tender>)-, the largest-shareholder-and-Company’
s €hatrman-chairman of the Board of Directors . The Line of Credit aHews-allowed the Company to request loans thereunder
and to use the proceeds of such loans for working capital and operating expense purposes until the facility satares-matured on
December 31, 2024. The loans are unsecured and are not convertible into equity of the Company. Loans drawn under the Line
of Credit bear interest at an annual rate of 5 % and each individual loan is payable three years from the date of issuance. The
Company has a right to draw down on the Eine-line of €redit-credit and suwehrightisnot at the discretion of Mr. Lu, the related
party Fenderlender . The Company may, at its option, prepay any borrowings under the Line of Credit, in whole or in part at
any time prior to maturity, without premium or penalty. The Line of Credit Agreement includes customary events of default. If
any such event of default occurs, thetender-Mr. Lu may declare all outstanding loans under the Line of Credit to be due and
payable immediately. In the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022-, activity recorded for the Line of Credit is
summarized in the following table: Outstandmg prmcrpal under the Lme of Credrt atJ anuary 1, %92%2023 $ 2—759—2-62—Draw
down from Line of Credit +66-850 , e dit-in-shates
262)-Outstanding principal under the Line of Credlt at December 31 %92—2—2023 -—Bfa-w—dewn—SSO 000 Repayment of Llne of
Credit (400, 000) Reclassification of Line of Credit to advance from Eine-efCredit-856-related party (450, 000 )
Outstanding principal under the Line of Credit at December 31, 2023-2024 § - $50;-806-For the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023 and2022-, the interest expense related to related party berrowings— borrowing amounted to $ 42,445 and $ 33, 712
and-$79,-898-, respectively, and has been reflected as interest expense — related party on the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, the related accrued and unpaid
interest for the-Line of Credit was $ 0 and $ 33, 712 and-$-0-, respectively, and has been included in accrued liabilities and other

payable% — related partre% on the accompanymg Conqohdated balance %heets —As-of Deeember312023the-Company-used

-Seﬂes—A—Pfefefred—SfeeleSe-ld—feﬁGﬂs-lﬁ- Memberihlp Intereqt Purchaqe Agreement On November 17 2023 th e Company
entered into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement (the ““ Purchase Agreement ) with Wenzhae-Mr. Lu {the—Purehaser

2y the targest-sharcholder-and-Company’ s Chairman-chairman of the Board of Directors . pursuant to which (i) the
Purehaser-Mr. Lu will acquire from the Company 30 % of the total outstanding membership interests of Avalon RT 9, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company , for a cash purchase price of $ 3, 000, 000 (the ““ Acquisition ), and (ii) for a period of
twelve months following the closing of the Acquisition, the-Purelaser-Mr. Lu shall have the option to purchase from the
Company up to an additional 70 % of the outstanding membership interests of Avalon RT 9 for a purchase price of up to $ 7,
000, 000 (the “ Option ™), subject to the terms and conditions of a membership interest purchase agreement to be negotiated and
entered 1nt0 between the Purchaser and the Company at such time that the Purchaser desires to exercise the Option. The

i ompany received $ 3, 108, 106 and $ 485, 714 from Wenzhao Lu as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023 respectlvely Wthh was recorded as advance from pending sale of noncontrolling interest —
related party on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets . The Acquisition is expected to be closed in the fourth
quarter of 2025 . Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transactions Our Board has adopted a policy that our executive
officers, directors, nominees for election as a director, beneficial owners of more than 5 % of any class of our common stock,
any members of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons and any firms, corporations or other entities in which any
of the foregoing persons is employed or is a partner or principal or in a similar position or in which such person has a 5 % or
greater beneficial ownership interest, are not permitted to enter into a transaction with us without the prior consent of our Board
acting through the Audit Committee or, in certain circumstances, the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Any request for us to
enter into a transaction with a related party, in which the amount involved exceeds $ 100, 000 and such related party would have
a direct or indirect interest must first be presented to our Audit Committee, or in certain circumstances the Chairman of our
Audit Committee, for review, consideration and approval. In approving or rejecting any such proposal, our Audit Committee, or
the Chairman of our Audit Committee, is to consider the material facts of the transaction, including, but not limited to, whether
the transaction is on terms no less favorable than terms generally available to an unaffiliated third party under the same or
similar circumstances, the extent of the benefits to us, the availability of other sources of comparable products or services and



the extent of the related party’ s interest in the transaction. ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
MarewmrEER-M & K CPAS PLLC served as our independent auditors for the yeats— year ended December 31, 2024.
Marcum LLP (“ Marcum ”) served as our independent auditors for the year ended December 31, 2023 and2622-.
Aggregate fees billed to the Company for professional services rendered by M & K CPAS PLLC and Marcum LLP during the
last two years were as follows: Fee Category 2024 2023 2822-Audit Fees (1) Marcum $ 287, 244 $ 292, 005 $196-M & K 137
, 473-000- Audit —Related Fees $+(2) Marcum- 198, 158 $M & K- - Tax Fees $(3) Marcum - $- M & K- - All Other Fees (4)
Marcum-- M & K-- Totals Marcum 287, 244 490, 163 M & K $ —137, 000 $- (1) FetalFees-$490,163-$196;473-Consists
of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements, review of our
Annual Report on Form 10- K, and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on
Form 10- Q, and services that are normally provided by our independent auditors in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or engagements, including registration statements. (2) Consists of fees billed for assurance and related services that are
reasonably related to the performance of the audit and or review of our consolidated financial statements and are not reported
under “ Audit Fees ”, such as audits and reviews in connection with the acquisition of Lab Services MSO. (3) Consists of fees
billed for profe@@ronal services for tax comphance tax advice and tax plannrng (4) Consr%t% of fee% for products and services
other than the services reported above —Fhere e g Ovid
Approval Policy and Procedures The current pohcy of the drrector% "lctrng as the Audrt Commrttee is to approve the
appointment of the principal auditing firm and any permissible audit- related services. The audit and audit related fees include
fees for the annual audit of the financial statements and review of financial statements included in Quarterly Reports on Form
10- Q. Fees charged by the auditor were approved by the Board with engagement letters signed by the Audit Committee
Chairman. The Audit Committee is responsible for the pre- approval of audit and permitted non- audit services to be performed
by the Company’ s independent auditor. The Audit Committee will, on an annual basis, consider and, if appropriate, approve the
provision of audit and non- audit services by the auditor. Thereafter, the Audit Committee will, as necessary, consider and, if
appropriate, approve the provision of additional audit and non- audit services by the auditor which are not encompassed by the
Audit Committee’ s annual pre- approval and are not prohibited by law. The Audit Committee has delegated to the Chair of the
Audit Committee the authority to pre- approve, on a case- by- case basis, non- audit services to be performed by the auditor. The
Audit Committee has approved all audit and permitted non- audit services performed by the auditor for the year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 . PART IV ITEM 15. EXHIBITSExhibit Number Description 1. 1 Open Market Sale AgreementSM,
dated as of December 13, 2019, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Jefferies LLC. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 1. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 13, 2019) . 2.
1 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated November 7, 2022, by and among the Registrant, Laboratory Services MSO,
LLC, SCBC Holdings LLC, Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., The Zoe Family Trust, Bryan Cox and Sarah Cox (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2. 1 of the Registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed on November 8, 2022). 2. 2 Amended and
Restated Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated February 9, 2023 by and among the Registrant, Laboratory Services
MSO, LLC, SCBC Holdings LLC, Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., the Zoe Family Trust, Bryan Cox and Sarah Cox
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2. 1 of the Registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed on February 13, 2023). 2. 3
Agreement —Amended-and Plan Restated-Certifteate-of Ineorporation-ofthe Registrant-Merger, dated March 7, 2025, by
and among Avalon GloboCare Corp., Nexus MergerSub Limited and YOOV Group Holding Limited (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3-2 . 1 efto the registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed on March 10, 2025). 3. 1 Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Current Report
on Form 8- K/ A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2018) . 3. 2 Certificate of Amendment to the
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, of Avalon GloboCare Corp. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3. 1 of the Registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed on January 4, 2023). 3. 3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of
the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K / A filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 26, 2018) . 3. 4 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Registrant” s Current Report on Form 8- K filed
on November 8, 2022) . 3. 5 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock (1ncorp0rated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 of the Regr%trant s Current Report on Form 8- K filed on February
13,2023) 4 34+Fe otrAgreemen 0 : 0
AeereditedHnvestors-6 Certlficate of amendment dated October 23 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit4-3 . 1 efto
the registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 29, 2024). 3. 7 Certificate of Designations of
Preferences and Rights of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company, as filed on December 13, 2024, with the
Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State of Delaware (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 3 to the
registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on December 19, 2024). 3. 8 Certificate of Designations of
Preferences and Rights of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company, as filed on January 6, 2025, with the
Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State of Delaware (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the
registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on January 10, 2025). 3. 9 Certificate of Elimination
relating to the Series A Preferred Stock, filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on March 7, 2025 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3. 1 to the registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on March 10, 2025). 3. 10
Certificate of Elimination relating to the Series B Preferred Stock, filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
March 7, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 to the registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the
SEC on March 10, 2025). 3. 11 Amendment No. 1 to the Avalon Bylaws, as adopted and approved by the Avalon Board
on March 7, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 3 to the registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with
the SEC on March 10, 2025). 4. 1 Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the




December 2016 Accredited Investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 21, 2016) . 4. 2 1 Stock Option issued to Luisa Ingargiola dated
February 21, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 21, 2017) . 4. 3 Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp.
and the March 2017 Accredited Investor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2017) . 4. 4 Share Subscription Agreement between Avalon
GloboCare Corp., Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing DOING Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. and
Daron Liang (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 2017) . 4. 5 Warranty Agreement by and between Lu Wenzhao and Beijing DOING
Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd., dated February 27, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 3 of the Current Report on
Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2017) . 4. 6 Form of Subscription Agreement
between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the October 2017 Accredited Investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017) . 4. 7 Form of Warrant
to Boustead Securities, LLC in connection with the private placements (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 8 of the
Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2018) . 4. 8 Form of
Warrant (April 2019) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 26, 2019) . 4. 9 * Description of Securities Registered under Section 12 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 4. 10 Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wenzhao “ Daniel ”
Lu dated August 5, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2022). 4. 11 Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare
Corp. and Emma Li Xu Qingbo dated August 5, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 2 of the Current Report on Form
8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2022). 10. 1 Share Exchange Agreement dated as of
October 19, 2016 by and among Avalon Healthcare System, Inc., the shareholders of Avalon Healthcare System, Inc. and
Avalon GloboCare Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October 19, 2016) . 10. 2 1 Executive Employment Agreement, effective December 1,
2016, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report
on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 2, 2016) . 10. 3 Agreement of Sale by and
between Freehold Craig Road Partnership and Avalon GloboCare Corp., dated December 22, 2016 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23, 2016) .
10. 4 T Executive Employment Agreement by and between Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Ltd. and Meng Li, dated
January 11, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on January 11,2017). 10. 5 { Executive Retention Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp.
and Luisa Ingargiola, dated February 21, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 21, 2017) . 10. 6 1 Indemnification Agreement by and between
Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Luisa Ingargiola, dated February 21, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 21, 2017). 10. 7 § Director
Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Steven P. Sukel dated April 28, 2017 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 28, 2017) . 10. 8
+ Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Yancen Lu dated April 28, 2017 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 28, 2017) . 10.
9 Consultation Service Contract between Daopei Investment Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and Avalon HealthCare System
Inc. dated April 1, 2016 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 8 of Amendment No. 1 to the
Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 7, 2017) . 10. 10 Consultation
Service Contract between Hebei Yanda Ludaopei Hospital Co., Ltd and Avalon HealthCare System Inc. dated April 1, 2016
(English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 9 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-
1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 7, 2017). 10. 11 Consultation Service Contract between Nanshan
Memorial Stem Cell Biotechnology Co., Ltd. and Avalon HealthCare System Inc. dated April 1, 2016 (English translation)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 10 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 7,2017) . 10. 12 Loan Agreement between Lotus Capital Overseas Limited and
Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. dated April 19, 2017 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 12 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2017) .
10. 13 Securities Purchase Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Genexosome Technologies Inc. dated October 25,
2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 26, 2017) . 10. 14 Asset Purchase Agreement between Genexosome Technologies Inc. and Yu Zhou
dated October 25, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017) . 10. 15 Stock Purchase Agreement between Genexosome Technologies Inc.,
Beijing Jieteng (Genexosome) Biotech Co. Ltd. and Yu Zhou dated October 25, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.
3 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017) . 10. 16 f
Executive Retention Agreement between Genexosome Technologies Inc. and Yu Zhou dated October 25, 2017 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 4 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October
26,2017).10. 17 Invention Assignment, Confidentiality, Non- Compete and Non- Solicit Agreement between Genexosome
Technologies Inc. and Yu Zhou dated October 25, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 of the Current Report on
Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017) . 10. 18 T Director Agreement by and



between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wilbert J. Tauzin II dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1
of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017) . 10. 19
Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Tauzin Consultants, LLC dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017)
. 10. 20 1 Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4,
2018) . 10. 21 T Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Meng Li dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4,
2018) . 10. 22 Advisory Service Contract between Ludaopei Hematology Research Institute Co., Ltd. and Avalon (Shanghai)
Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. dated April 1, 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to that Form S- 1
Registration Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 19, 2018) . 10. 23 Form of Subscription
Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the April 2018 Accredited Investors (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 18, 2018) . 10. 24
Supplementary Agreement Related to Share Subscription by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp., Avalon (Shanghai)
Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing DOING Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. and Daron Liang dated April 23, 2018
(English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K / A filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2018) . 10. 25 Loan Extension Agreement between Lotus Capital Overseas Limited and
Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. dated May 3, 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 18 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 11, 2018) .
10. 26 T Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Tevi Troy dated June 4, 2018 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 6,
2018) . 10. 27 Joint Venture Agreement by and between Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu
Unicorn Biological Technology Co., Ltd. dated May 29, 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 1 of
the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 6, 2018) . 10. 28 { Director
Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and William Stilley, III dated July 5, 2018 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 10, 2018) . 10. 29
+ Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Steven A. Sanders dated July 30, 2018 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 31,
2018) . 10. 30 Loan Extension Agreement between Lotus Capital Overseas Limited and Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare
Technology Co., Ltd. dated August 3, 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 30 of the Registration
Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2018) . 10. 31 Strategic
Partnership Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Weill Cornell Medical College of Cornell University dated
August 6, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 31 of the Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2018) . 10. 32 Equity Joint Venture Agreement by and between Avactis
Biosciences, Inc., a wholly- owned subsidiary of Avalon GloboCare Corp., and Arbele Limited for the establishment of AVAR
(China) BioTherapeutics Ltd. dated October 23, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form
8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 29, 2018) . 10. 33 Letter Agreement by and between
Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated January 3, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report
on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 4, 2019) . 10. 34 Letter Agreement by and
between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Luisa Ingargiola dated January 3, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 4, 2019) . 10. 35 Letter Agreement
by and between Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co. Ltd. and Meng Li dated January 3, 2019 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 3 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 4,
2019) . 10. 36 Promissory Note issued to Daniel Lu dated Mach 18, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 22, 2019) . 10. 37 1 Director
Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Meng Li dated April 5, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.
1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2019) . 10. 38 { Director
Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Yue “ Charles ” Li dated April 5, 2019 (incorporated by reference to
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SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized. AVALON GLOBOCARE
CORP. Dated: Apri5-March 31 , 2624-2025 By: / s / David K. Jin Name: David K. Jin Title: Chief Executive Officer ;-and
President and-Direeter( Principal Executive Officer) Dated: Aprit-5-March 31 , 2024-2025 By: / s / Luisa Ingargiola Name:
Luisa Ingargiola Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints David K. Jin and Luisa Ingargiola, and each of them individually, his or her true and lawful attorney- in- fact,
with full power of substitution and re- substitution for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all
capacities to sign any and all amendments to the Annual Report on Form 10- K and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying
and confirming all that said attorney- in- fact or his substitute may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof. [n
accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on ApriH5-March 31 , 2624
2025 , on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated. Signature Title /s / David K. Jin Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director David K. Jin (Principal Executive Officer) /s / Luisa Ingargiola Chief Financial Officer Luisa Ingargiola
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) /s / Wenzhao Lu Chairman of the Board of Directors Wenzhao Lu #s-+Mengtt
Chief-Operating-Offieer-and-SeeretaryMeng i/ s / Steven A. Sanders Director Steven A. Sanders /s / Lourdes Felix Director
Lourdes Felix /s / Wilbert J. Tauzin II Director Wilbert J. Tauzin II / s / William B. Stilley III Director William B. Stilley II1 /s /
Tevi Troy Director Tevi Troy AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTENTS Page Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB No.
2738) F- 2 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB No. 688) F-2-3 Consolidated Financial
Statements: Consolidated Balance Sheets- As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-F- 6-4 Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss- For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-F- 75 Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Equity- For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-F- 8-6 Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows — For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-F- 9-7 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
F-+48-8 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Sharehelders-and-Board of
Directors and Stockholders of Avalon GloboCare Corp. Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Avalon GloboCare Corp. (the “~Company =) as of December 31, 2023-2024 and
2622-, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in equity , and cash flows for eaeh
ofthe twe-years— year trthe-pertod-ended December 31, 2623-2024 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the <
financial statements 2-) . We have audited the reverse stock split presentation for year- end December 31, 2023. We have
audited note 20 in regards to the presentation of segment information for the year- ended December 31, 2023 . In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December
31, 2023-2024 and2622-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for eaeh-efthe two-years— year tnthe-pertodended
December 31, 2023-2024 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . The
financial statements of Avalon GloboCare Corp., as of December 31, 2023, were audited by other auditors whose report
dated April 15, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. The accompanying financial
statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the
financial statements, the Company has yet to achieve profitable operations, has negative cash flows from operating



activities, and is dependent upon future issuances of equity or other financings to fund ongoing operations all of which
raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’ s plans regarding these matters
are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the
outcome of this uncertainty. Basis for Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on our audit. We
are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB)
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audit included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters The critical audit matter
communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures
that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex
judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing separate
opinions on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. As discussed in the notes to the
financial statements, the Company has an equity method investment in an unconsolidated subsidiary. Auditing
management’ s valuation of the carrying value of the investment involves significant judgements and estimates to
determine the proper value. To evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation of the investment, we evaluated
management’ s significant judgments and estimates to determine that the investment is properly valued. /s /M & K
CPAS, PLLC We have served as the Company’ s auditor since 2024. The Woodlands, TX REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of We
have audited, before the effects of the adjustments to retrospectively apply the reverse stock split described in Note 3,
and before the effects of the retrospective adjustment for the adoption of ASU 2023- 07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280):
Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (“ ASU 2023- 07 ”) discussed in Note 3 and Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Avalon GloboCare Corp. (the “ Company ) as of
December 31, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in equity and
cash flows the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ financial statements
). In our opinion, the financial statements, before the effects of the adjustments to retrospectively apply the reverse
stock split described in Note 3, and before the effects of the retrospective adjustment for the adoption of ASU 2023- 07,
Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (“ ASU 2023- 07 ) discussed in Note
3 and Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2023, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We were not engaged
to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the retrospective reverse stock split described in Note 3, or retrospective
adjustment for the adoption of ASU 2023- 07 discussed in Note 3 and Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance about whether such retrospective
adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. Those retrospective adjustments were audited by other
auditors . Explanatory Paragraph — Going Concern The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that
the Company will continue as a going concern. As more fully described in Note 2, the Company has a significant working
capital deficiency, has incurred significant losses and needs to raise additional funds to meet its obligations and sustain its
operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company +” s ability to continue as a going concern. Management
L’ s plans in regard te-tao these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Basis-for-Opinton-These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company &’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company +” s financial statements based on our
audits— audit . We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (£ PCAOB ) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We
conducted our audits— audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits— audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. As part of our audits— audit we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company -’ s internal control
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We ha\e serv ed as the Company’ s dleltOl stnee—from 7019 to 2024 New York NY Apr11 5 2()24 F—é—(()NSOLlDATED
BALANCE SHEETS December 31, 2024 2023 2022-ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS: Cash § 2, 856, 309 $ 285, 400 $1;-996;
B40-Rent receivable 80, 829 197, 473 434-626-Prepaid expense and other current assets 299, 360 367, 994 247-998-Total
Current Assets 3, 236, 498 850, 867 2;-373;-526-NON- CURRENT ASSETS: Operating lease right- of- use assets, net 4 709
128, 250 +6;885-Property and equipment, net 12, 912 38, 083 +38;294-Investment in real estate, net 7,022,7217, 191, 404 %
366;,-68FEquity method investments, net 10, 636, 544 12, 095, 020
Other non- current assets 71, 794 278, 912 384;-383-Total Non- current Assets 17,748, 680 19, 731, 669 -1—7—3—7’-8—3—7—9—T0tal
Assets $ 20, 985, 178 $ 20, 582, 536 $49,751,965-LIABILITIES AND EQUITY CURRENT LIABILITIES: Accrued
professional fees $ 4611 , 462 864,100-5 1, 673-804 , 414100 Accrued research and development fees 153, 772 208, 772 838;
B06+Accrued payroll liability and compensation 501, 258 588 722223, 722 Accrued litigation settlement 373, 450 5660450,
000 Accrued liabilities and other payables 434, 117 272, 915 283;-234-Accrued liabilities and other payables- related parties
732,916 206, 458 +66;-666-Operating lease obligation 10, 709 129, 396 H5437FAdvance from pending sale of noncontrolling
interest- related party 3, 108, 106 485, 714 —Equity method investment payable - 666, 667 =Derivative liability 127, 545 24, 796
Note payable, net 5, 715, 447 - Convertible note payable, net 2, 113, 773 1, 925, 146 =Total Current Liabilities 13, 882, 555 6,
762, 686 3:579;-885-NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES: Operating lease obligation- noncurrent portion - 4, 855 —Aeerued
-l-rt-tgat-teﬁ—set-t-}emeﬂt—Note payable, net - noncurrent portion- 456;-066-Nete-payable;net5, 596, 219 45634521 oan payable-
related party - 850, 000 —=Total Non- current Liabilities - 6, 451, 074 5;-043;452-Total Liabilities 13, 882, 555 13, 213, 760 &;
592,—95—7’—(701mnitments and Contingencies (Note 268-21 ) EQUITY: Preferred stock, $ 0. 0001 par value; 10, 000, 000 shares
authorized; Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, 9, 000 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022-1 iquidation preference $ 9 million at December 31, 2623-2024 9, 000, 000 9, 000, 000 Series B Convertible Preferred



Stock, 11, 000 and-0-shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022;respeettvely-Liquidation
preference $ 11 million at December 31, 2623-2024 11, 000, 000 11, 000, 000 Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, 3, 500
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 Liquidation preference $ 3. 5 million at December 31, 2024 3, 500 ,
000- Common stock, $ 0. 0001 par value; 498-100 , 000, 000 shares authorized; H-1 , 85+445 | 534-979 shares issued and +6-1
,999-442 | 534-512 shares outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 ; +6-736 , 769 64+3;-576-shares issued and 9-733 | 302 96+
5F6-shares outstanding at December 31, 2622-2023 145 74 +1651+-605-Additional paid- in capital 72, 023, 525 67, $85-886 ,
082 951-65;949,923- ess: common stock held in treasury, at cost; 52-3 , 888-467 shares at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022-(522, 500) (522, 500) Accumulated deficit ( 87, 673, 125) ( 79, 769, 731 363;662;72+) Statutory reserve 6, 578 6, 578
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ( 232, 000) ( 231, 727 H243;-13F) Total Avalon GloboCare Corp. stockholders’ equity
7,102, 623 7, 368, 776 H53458;-948-Noncontrolling interest-- Total Equity 7, 102, 623 7, 368, 776 H5;458;948-Total Liabilities
and Equity $ 20, 985, 178 $ 20, 582, 536 $149,754;,-985-Sce accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements =
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS For the Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022-REAL PROPERTY RENTAL REVENUE § 1, 255-333 , 68+403 $ 1, 202255 , +69-681 REAL
PROPERTY OPERATING EXPENSES 1, 065,574 1, 017, 493 REAL PROPERTY 929;-44+-OPERATING INCOME 267,
829 238, 188 2927281 OSS FROM EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENT- LAB SERVICES MSO ( 846, 588) (8, 571, 647) -
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES: Advertising and marketing expenses 237, 671 1, 666, 721 5325;313-Professional fees 1,
822 105 3,076,477 2—999—652—C0mpensat10n and related benefits 1, 431, 328 1, 768 449 +-863;188Researeh-and

Ve et P 6 ther general and administrative expenses 798-857 ,
959-8-86—869 908 -1-42—577 Totdl Other Opemtlng Expenses 4, 348 973 7,420, 224 9:-665:-623-1. OSS FROM OPERATIONS (
4,927, 732) (15, 753, 683 H8F92:-895-) OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME Interest expense- amortization of debt discount and
debt issuance eest-costs (1, 411, 042) (544, 010 H35316;-684-) Interest expense- other ( 983, 486) (773, 780 HI85-75+H)
Interest expense- related party ( 42, 445) (33, 712) Debt modification charge ( 838, 79-794 ;-89%-) Geﬁvefsteﬁ—rﬂéueeﬂ&eﬂt-
expense- (344-Change in fair value of derlvatlve llablllty 374 %64)—I:ess—ffeﬁa—365 188, 374 Impalrment of equlty method
investment- Epicon : v ertvativeta ; y
method-investment— E—ptee-n—(454 679) -—CJ'nn on debts extmoulshment - 682 979 —Other (—expense )—meefne( 74 3%4)%%3— 759
260) (18, 499) Total Other Expense, net ( 2, 975, 662) (953, 327 H353+374952) LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (7,903,
394) (16,707, 010 HH5936,847) INCOME TAXES-- NET LOSS $ (7,903,394) $ (16, 707, 010 3$-45;930,-847) LESS:
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTEREST-- NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO AVALON
GLOBOCARE CORP. COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ (7, 903,394) $ ( 16, 707, 010 ¥$45936,84%) NET LOSS PER
COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP. COMMON SHAREHOLDERS: Basic and
diluted $ (+8.59-44 ) § (+23 . 28-80 ) WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING: Basic and diluted
406936 , 528614 701 , 932 975-9,328,609-COMPREHENSIVE LOSS: NET LOSS $ (7,903,394) $ ( 16, 707, 010 ¥$
936-847) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Unrealized foreign currency translation loss ( 273) ( 18, 590 ¥4+-8H-)
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (7, 903, 667) ( 16, 725, 600 ¥345-9%8;-H8-) LESS: COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO NONCONTROLLING INTEREST-- COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP.
COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ (7,903,667)$ (16, 725, 600) AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES $
998 H8-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 Avalon GloboCare Corp. Stockholders’ Equity Series A Preferred Stock Series B Preferred Stock Series C Preferred
Stock Common Stock Addittenal-Treasury Stock Accumulated ©ther-Number of Number of Number of Number of Additional
Paid- in Number of Accumulated Statutory Other Comprehensive Noncontrolling Total Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares
Amount Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Deficit Reserve Loss Interest Equity Balance, January 1, 2622-2023 -9, 000 $ -
9, 000, 000 - $- - 8;-89F-5148-5 896-- 667, 572 $ 54;:-896;-567— 67 (52-666)-5 65, 950, 661 (3,467) $ (522, 500) $ (5+63 ,+3+
062 -8—7‘4—721 ) $ 6 578 $ (-1-65—213 %66—137 ) $- $3—984—39§—Sa%&e%eemﬂ&eﬁ—steeleneﬁ——49+léé%62—32%-m-%62—3%8

f63—962—7%19—6%—7-8—(—2—1-3—1-379-—1 1 158 948 To correct shares 1ssued for adjustments for 1: 10 reverse split---- 56—3 , 333--
—————— Issuance of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock for equity method investment-- 11, 000 11, 000, 000--------- —

11, 000, 000 Issuance of common stock as convertible note payable commitment fee---- 476—- 11 , 999—1—7—333 1236, 383399 --
---- 236, 400 Sale of common stock, net---- 456--- 30 , 62746442 3 414, 350-393 ------ 414, 396 Issuance of common stock for

services---- 364+-- 24 | 33136-089 3 999, 649-652 ------ 999, 655 Stock- based compensation == ------ 284, 977 ------ 284,977
Foreign currency translation adjustment----------- -- (18, 590)- (18, 590) Net loss for the year--------- -- (16, 707, 010)--- (16, 707,

010) Balance, December 31, 2023 9, 000 9, 000, 000 11, 000 11, 000, 000-- 736, 769 74 67, 886, 082 (3, 467) (522, 500) (79,
769, 731) 6, 578 (231, 727)- 7, 368, 776 Issuance of common stock as convertible note payable commitment fee------ 33, 800
3 320, 543------ 320, 546 Sale of common stock, net------ 281, 843 28 2, 544, 283------ 2, 544, 311 Issuance of common stock
upon cashless exercise of stock warrants------ 42, 381 4 (4)----—-- Issuance of common stock for services------ 145, 153 15
530, 335---—-- 530, 350 Reclassification of derivative liability to equity-------- 2, 354------ 2, 354 Sale of Series C Convertible
Preferred Stock---- 3, 500 3, 500, 000--------- 3,500, 000 Issuance of pre- funded warrants-------- 688, 794---—-- 688, 794



Stock- based compensation-------- 51, 159------ 51, 159 Shares issued for adjustments for 1: 15 reverse split------ 206, 033
21 (21)-—---—-- Foreign currency translation adjustment------------- (273)- (273) Net loss for the year----------- (7,903, 394)---
(7, 903, 394) Balance, December 31, 2024 9, 000 $ 9, 000, 000 11, 000 $ 11, 000, 000 H-3 , 500 85+-534-5 3, 500, 000 1, +65
445, 979 $ 145 67;-885;-651H(52-600)-5 72, 023, 525 (3,467) $ (522, 500) $ (#9-87 , #69-673 , 73+125 ) $ 6, 578 § (234232,
727000 ) $- $ 7,368-102 , 776-623 See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. AVALON
GLOBOCARE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS For the Years Ended
December 31, 2024 2023 2022-CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Net loss $ ( 7,903,394) $ ( 16, 707,010 ¥
-$—61—1,—93~9—84—7—) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: €reditloss-proviston—2,295
Depreciation 177, 917 211, 720 338;723-Change in straight- line rent receivable 46, 607 10, 496 £6;-824-Amortization of
operating lease right- of- use asset 122, S53 118, 226 +35;-557-Stock- based compensation and service expense 521,509 1, 179,
761 1,306;:634-Loss from equity method investments 846, 588 &, 589, 822 Distribution 4+-863Impairment-of earnings from

equipment-held-for-sale-—22, 285 Impairment-efcquity method investment 611, 888- Impairment of equity method
investment - Epicon - 454, 679 —Amortization of debt issuance costs and debt discount 1, 411, 042 544, 010 3;31+6;-684

Converston-ndueement-expense—344;264-Change in fair market value of derivative liability ( 374, 365) ( 188, 374) {666
Impairment of laboratory equipment 111 ., 745)-033- Debt modification charge 688, 794- Gain on debts extinguishment -
(682, 979) —Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Rent receivable 130, 739 (46, 220 343-F65-) Security deposit - 396
H6)-Deferred leasing costs 33, 402 2733 , 298-402 Prepaid expense and other assets (91, 496) 411 (45;-996)-Accrued liabilities
and other payables ( 1, 165, 418) ( 16, 601) 33+5425-Accrued liabilities and other payables- related parties (14, 051) 106, 458
795-898-Operating lease obligation ( 122, 553) (112, 915 3+4H5556-) NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ( 4,
969, 205) (6, 504 7 I 8 )—67—93—7%%4—) C ASH FLOWS FROI\/I INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchase of property and equipment
-(22,159) S estm ents— Payment for equity interest
purchase —( $-100 , 000 999—722—) NET CASH USED IN INVESTING A( TIVITIES ( 100 000) (22, 159 ¥5;-0653:476-)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Repays y e 35 50:-000)-Proceeds from loan
payable- related party - 850 7-666-1+66-, 000 Repayments of loan payable reldted party -—( 4-1-9—400 ()()()) Proceeds from
issuance of convertible debt-debts and warrants 3, 367, 750 2, 565, 000 3:-H8;-943-Payments of convertible debt-debts issuance
costs (282, 700) ( 327, 200) —Repayments of convertible debt—debts (3, 388, 222) (300, 000) =Proceeds from issuance of
balloon promissory note - 1, 000 ;-660-4;-860-, 000 Payments of balloon promissory note issuance costs = (64, 436) {266
Advance from pending sale of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary 2 , 454)-122, 392 485, 714 Proceeds from equity

offering 2, 857, 852 635, 391 #35;:-567FDisbursements for equity offering costs ( 138, 405) ( 19, 132) 24;-66-Advanee-from
saIe—e-Pﬁeﬂeeﬂtfengﬁr&efes{—m—strbﬁd-t&fth—Pmceeds from issuance of convertible preferred stock —9-3, 500 , 000 -5
B60-NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7, 638, 667 4, 825, 337 +263;989-EFFECT OF EXCHANGE
RATE ON CASH 1, 447 (3, 970) +6;:67+NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INEREASE-IN CASH 2,570,909 (1, 705, 510)
CASH- beginning of year 285, 400 |, +83;372-CASH-beginning-ofyear+,-990, 910 8674-538-CASH- end of year § 2, 856,
309 $ 285, 400 -$—1—999—9—1—9—SUPPLEI\/IENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: Cash paid for: Interest $
1,088,512 § 718, 753 $4+76:000-NON- CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Common stock issued for
accrued liabilities $ 60, 000 $ 164, 871 $36,-000-Reclassification of advances for equity interest purchase to equity method
investment $ - $ 9, 000, 000 $—Series B Convertible Preferred Stock issued related to equity method investment $ -$ 11, 000,
000 $—Accrued purchase price related to equity method investment $ = $ 666, 667 $—Warrants issued as convertible aete-notes
payable finder’ s fee $ 40, 900 $ I6 977 -$-—War1cmts issued w ith convertible nete-notes payable recorded as debt dlscount $
438,568 $ 196, 193 § e ston-featy e v ne-debt-d $5$
F82;-569-Common stock 1ssued as convertlble ﬂe’fe—notes pdyable commltment Iee ‘I> 320 546 $ 236 400 -$-—DefeIred Imdncms_
costs in accrued liabilities $ - $ 202, 892 Equity method investment payable paid by a related party $ 566, 667 $ -
ConversionReclassification of eenvertible-note-deferred offering costs $ 175, 136 $- Settlement of derivative liability $ 2,
354 $- Reclassification of related party loan payable and accrued interestinto-expenses to advance from related party $
500, 000 $- Issuance of common stock $—upon cashless exercise of stock warrants $ 4 ;-072,-958Reelassifieation-of
derivative-hability-to-equity-5- Shares issued for adjustments for 1: 15 reverse split S 21

aeerted-nterestsettedHnshares-5- $2,-888;-593-AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTE----- STATEMENTS NOTE | —- ORGANIZATION AND NATURE
OF OPERATIONS Avalon GloboCare Corp. (the *“ Company ” or “ ALBT ”) is-a-Delaware-eorporatton—The-Company-was
incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on July 28, 2014. The Company is a commercial- stage company
dedicated to developing and delivering precision diagnostic consumer products. The Company is currently marketing
the Keto Air breathalyzer device and plans to develop additional diagnostic uses of the breathalyzer technology. The
Company also provided laboratory services in 2024 and 2023, offering a broad portfolio of diagnostic tests, including
drug testing, toxicology, and a broad array of test services, from general bloodwork to anatomic pathology, and urlne
toxicology. On Oetober1+9-May 18 , 264+6-2015 , the o4 osed : e
sharehoetders-ef-Avalon Healthcare System Inc. —a—BeIaW&fe-eefpefa&eﬁ—( AHS )5 —eaeh—was 1nc0rp0rated under the laws of
the State of Delaware. whteh—wefe—aeefed-rted—mves’fefs—(iAHS owns 2,

aequ-tfed—l()()%of the capltal otrtstand 69




the People s Repubhc of Chlna (“ PRC ”) Avalon Shanghal was 1neorporated on April 29, 201( and was engaged in medleal
related consulting services for customers. Due to the winding down of the medical related con%ultlng services in 2022, the
Company decided to cease all operations of Avalon Shanghai and no longer has any material revenues or expenses in Avalon

Shanghal Asa reqult Avalon Shanghar 1s no longer an operatrng entrty Th&Geﬁ}pa-ny—ts—a—eeﬁnﬁereta-l—sﬁg&eeﬁap&ny

&5 <) €5 €5 0 ¢

On February 7 2017 the Company formed Avalon RT 9 Properneq LLC (- Avalon RT9 ”) a New Jer%ey hnnted habrhty
company. On May 5, 2017, Avalon RT 9 purchased a real property located in Township of Freehold, County of Monmouth,

State of New Jersey, having a street address of 4400 Route 9 South, Freechold, NJ 07728. This property was purchased to serve
as the Company’ s world- wide headquarters for all corporate administration and operations. In addition, the property generates
rental income. Avalon RT 9 owns this office building. Avalon RT 9’ s business consists of the ownership and operation of the
income- producing real estate property in New Jersey. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the occupancy rate of the building is 8%
98 . 4-5 %. On July 18, 2018, the Company formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Avactis Biosciences Inc. (“ Avactis "), a Nevada
corporation, which is a patent holding company. Commencing on April 6, 2022, the Company owns 60 % of Avactis and Arbele
Biotherapeutics Limited (“ Arbele Biotherapeutics ) owns 40 % of Avactis. Avactis owns 100 % of the capital stock of Avactis
Nanjing Biosciences Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC on May 8, 2020 (“ Avactis Nanjing ’), which only owns a patent
and is not considered an operating entity. Currently, Avactis and Avactis Nanjing are dormant and are in process of being
dissolved. On October 14, 2022, the Company formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc. (“ Avalon
Lab ), a Delaware company. On February 9, 2023, Avalon Lab purchased fertpereent-40 % J-of the issued and outstanding
equity interests of Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, a private limited company formed under the laws of the State of Delaware
on September 6, 2019 (““ Lab Services MSO ), and its subsidiaries. Lab Services MSO, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in
providing laboratory testing services. During 2025, to preserve cash, the Company entered into discussions with Lab
Services MSO for the potential redemption of our investment and on February 26, 2025, Lab Services MSO redeemed
the 40 % equity interest in Lab Services MSO held by Avalon Lab. See Note 22 — Subsequent Events- Redemption
Agreement. On May 1, 2024, the Company formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Q & A Distribution LLC (“ Q & A
Distribution ), a Texas company. Q & A Distribution is engaged in distribution of KetoAir device. AVALON
GLOBOCARE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTE 1 —
ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (continued) Details of the Company’ s subsidiaries which are included
in these consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2623-2024 are as follows: Name of Subsidiary Place and date of
Incorporation Percentage of Ownership Principal Activities Avalon Healthcare System, Inc. (“ AHS ) Delaware May 18, 2015
100 % held by ALBT Holding company for payroll and other expenses Avalon RT 9 Properties LLC (“ Avalon RT 9 ”’) New
Jersey February 7, 2017 100 % held by ALBT Owns and operates an income- producing real property and holds and manages
the corporate headquarters Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. (* Avalon Shanghai ) PRC April 29, 2016 100
% held by AHS Is not considered an operating entity Genexosome Technologies Inc. (“ Genexosome ) Nevada July 31, 2017
60 % held by ALBT No current activities to report, dormant Avactis Biosciences Inc. (“ Avactis ”) Nevada July 18, 2018 60 %
held by ALBT Patenthelding-eompany-Dormant, is in process of being dissolved Avactis Nanjing Biosciences Ltd. (* Avactis
Nanjing ") PRC May 8, 2020 100 % held by Avactis Dormant, Owns-a-patent-and-is noteonsidered-an-operatingentity-in
process of being dissolved Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc. (“ Avalon Lab ) Delaware October 14, 2022 100 % held by
ALBT Laboratory holding company with a 40 % membership interest in Lab Services MSONOFE-MSO (1) Q & A
Distribution LLC (“ Q & A Distribution ) Texas May 1, 2024 100 % held by ALBT Distributes KetoAir device (1) On
February 26, 2025, the Company and Lab Services MSO entered into a Redemption and Abandonment Agreement,
whereby Lab Services MSO redeemed the 40 % equity interest in Lab Services MSO held by the Company. NOTE 2 —
BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GOING CONCERN CONDITION Basis of Presentation The accompanying consolidated
financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“ U. S. GAAP ”) and with the rules and regulations of the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission
for financial information. The Company”’ s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. F- +-9 NOTE 2 —
BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GOING CONCERN CONDITION (continued) The Company is a commercial - stage
company dedicated to developing and delivering innevativertransformatives-precision diagnosttes— diagnostic consumer
products and-elintealHaboratoryserviees- The Company is currently marketing establishing-aleadingroletn-the innovationof
Keto Air breathalyzer device and plans to develop addltlonal dragnostrc fes&ng—u%ﬁﬂ-mg—pfepﬂef&ry—uses of the
breathalyzer technology o-dehiy 0 - s-th

Company owns commercial real e%tate that hou%es its headquarters in Freehold New Jersey. These eon%ohdated ﬁnancral
statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates, among other
things, the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. As reflected in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company had a working capital deficit of approximately $ 5-10 , 942-646 ,
000 at December 31, 2623-2024 and had incurred recurring net losses and generated negative cash flow from operating activities



of approximately $ +6-7 , 769-903 , 000 and $ 6-4 , 585-969 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , respectively.
The Company has a limited operating history and its continued growth is dependent upon the Contlnuatlon of generatlng rental
revenue from its income- producing real estate property in New Jersey an 5 sh-its
forty-pereent-(40-%0)interestinbab-Serviees MSO-and obtaining additional ﬁnancmg to fund future obhgatlons and pay
liabilities arising from normal business operations. In addition, the current cash balance cannot be projected to cover the
operating expenses for the next twelve months from the release date of this report. These matters raise substantial doubt about
the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent
on the Company’ s ability to raise additional capital, implement its business plan, and generate significant reventes—~ revenue .
There are no assurances that the Company will be successful in its efforts to generate significant reventes— revenue , maintain
sufficient cash balance or report profitable operations or to continue as a going concern. The Company plans on raising capital
through the sale of equity to implement its business plan. However, there is no assurance these plans will be realized and that
any additional financings will be available to the Company on satisfactory terms and conditions, if any. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability or classification of asset- carrying
amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result should the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern. NOTE 3 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Use of Estimates The preparation of
consolidated financial statements in conformity with U. S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions may have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Making estimates
requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect of a
condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial statements, which management considered in
formulating its estimate, could change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events. Accordingly, the actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. Significant estimates during the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2622-include the useful life of property-and-equipment,-investment in real estate ;and intangible assets, the
assumptions used in assessing impairment of long- term assets, the valuation of deferred tax assets and the associated valuation
allowances, the valuation of stock- based compensation, the assumptions used to determine fair value of warrants and embedded
conversion features of convertible note payable, and the fair value of the consideration given and assets acquired in the purchase
of 40 % of Lab Services MSO. F-42-10 NOTE 3 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements The Company adopted the guidance of Accounting Standards
Codification (“ ASC ) 820 for fair value measurements which clarifies the definition of fair value, prescribes methods for
measuring fair value, and establishes a fair value hierarchy to classify the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: ® Level
1- Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities available at the measurement date. ®
Level 2- Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, and inputs derived
from or corroborated by observable market data. ® Level 3- Inputs are unobservable inputs which reflect the reporting entity’ s
own assumptions on what assumptions the market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best
available information. The fair value of the Company’ s assets and liabilities, which qualify as financial instruments under ASC
Topic 820, “ Fair Value Measurement, ~” approximates the carrying amounts represented in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, primarily due to their short- term nature. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. These assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis. These assets and liabilities include derivative liability. Derivative liability. Derivative liability is
carried at fair value and measured on an ongoing basis. The table below reflects the activity of derivative liability measured at
fair value for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-: Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3) Balance of
derlvatlve hablhty as of J anuary 1, %92—2—2023 $ lnltlal falr Value of derlvatlve hablhty attrlbutable toembedded—eeﬁvefsmﬁ

val-ue—e-ﬁde%ﬁ&ﬁ*eﬁab%ﬁﬁ—&&ﬁbtﬁab}e—te—warrants issuance with May, July, and October 2023 fund f&tse-ralses 213, 170 Gam
from change in the fair value of derivative liability (188, 374) Balance of derivative liability as of December 31, 2023 24, 796
Initial fair value of derivative liability attributable to warrants issuance with March and June 2024 fund raises 479, 468
Reclassification of additional paid- in capital upon conversion (2, 354) Gain from change in the fair value of derivative
liability (374, 365) Balance of derivative liability as of December 31, 2024 $ 24-127 , 796-545 Assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These
assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis, but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain
circumstances. These assets and liabilities can include equipment held for sale and equity method investment that are written
down to fair value when they are impaired. Laboratory Eguiprtent-equipment held-for-sate- The Company conducted an
impairment assessment on the-its laboratory cquipment hetdfersate-based on the guidelines established in Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB *”) ASC Topic 360 to determine the estimated fair market value of the-its laboratory
equipment as of December 31, 2022-2024 . Upon completion of its 2822-2024 impairment analysis, the Company determined
that the carrying value exceeded the fair market value efrof laboratory equipment whieh-was-hetd-forsate- The fair market
value of laboratory equipment held-for-sate-is a level 3 valuation. The Company recorded an impairment charge of § 22-111 ,
285-033 for the years— year ended December 31, 2622-2024 , which was included in other general and administrative
expenses on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss . F- 11 AVALON
GLOBOCARE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTE 3 —



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair
Value Measurements (continued) Equity method investment in Epicon Biotech Co., Ltd. The factors used to determine fair
value are subject to management’ s judgment and expertise and include, but are not limited to, the investee’ s series of operating
losses and the joint venture partner unable to obtain funds to commence operations. These assumptions represent Level 3 inputs.
Impalrment of equlty method investment in EplCOIl Blotech Co., Ltd. for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $ 454, 679. F-

v e There is no comparative impairment for
the year ended December 31, 2024 since the mvestment was fully 1mpa1red at December 31, 2023. Equity method
investment in Laboratory Services MSO, LLC The factors used to determine fair value are subject to management’ s judgment
and expertise. These assumptions represent Level 3 inputs. Impairment of equity method investment in Laboratory Services
MSO, LLC for the yearyears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $ 259,579 and $ 9, 196, 682 , respectively, which
have been included in loss from equity method investment — Lab Services MSO on the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss . ASC 825- 10 “ Financial Instruments ”, allows entities to voluntarily
choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value (fair value option). The fair value option may be elected on
an instrument- by- instrument basis and is irrevocable, unless a new election date occurs. If the fair value option is elected for
an instrument, unrealized gains and losses for that instrument should be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.
The Company did not elect to apply the fair value option to any outstanding instruments. Cash and Cash Equivalents At
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the Company’ s cash balances by geographic area were as follows: For purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased and money market accounts to be cash equlvalents The Company had no Cash equlvalents at December 31,
2024 and 2023 aﬁd—ZGQQ— Credlt RlSk and Uncertalntles y : is

The Company maintains a portion of its cash on dep051ts Wlth bank and financial institution w1th1n the U. S. that at times may
exceed federally- insured limits of $ 250, 000. The Company manages this credit risk by concentrating its cash balances in high
quality financial institutions and by periodically evaluating the credit quality of the primary financial institutions holding such
deposits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such bank accounts and believes it is not exposed to any risks on its
cash in bank accounts. At December 31, 2023-2024 , there—- the were-ne-Company’ s cash balances in United States bank
accounts had approximately $ 2, 413, 000 in excess of the federally- insured limits. The Company” s concentrations of credit
risk with respect to its rent receivable is limited due to short- term payment terms. The Company also performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its tenants to help further reduce credit risk. Rent Receivable and Reserve for Credit Losses Rent receivable is
presented net of reserve for credit losses. Rent receivable balance consists of base rents, tenant reimbursements and receivables
arising from straight- lining of rents represent amounts accrued and unpaid from tenants in accordance with the terms of the
respective leases, subject to the Company’ s revenue recognition policy. A reverse for the uncollectible portion of rent
receivable is determined based upon an analysis of the tenant’ s payment history, the financial condition of the tenant, business
conditions in the industry in which the tenant operates and economic conditions in Freehold, New Jersey in which the property
is located. Management believes that the rent receivable is fully collectable. Therefore, no material reverse for credit losses is
deemed to be required on its rent receivable at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-. F- +4-12 Deferred Offering Costs
Deferred offering costs consist of legal, accounting and other costs that are directly related to the Company’ s open market sale
equity financing and will be charged to stockholders’ equity upon the-completion of the equity offering. As of December 31,
2024 and 2023 ard2022-, deferred offering costs amounted to $ 0 +#5:436-and $474;30%-efwhieh-$ 175, 136 and-$34-, -82—1-
respectively, which were included in prepaid expense and other current assets aﬂd—$—9—aﬂd—$—l—39—2—86—wefe—tneh&ded—tn—efhef
nof—eurrent-assets;respeetively—. Deferred Leasing Costs Costs incurred to obtain tenant leases are amortized usmg the straight-
line method over the term of the related lease agreement. Such costs include lease incentives and leasing commissions. If the
lease is terminated early, the remaining unamortized deferred leasing cost is written off. Property and Equipment Property and
equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, and are depreciated on a straight- line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The cost of repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred; major replacements and improvements
are capitalized. When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts,
and any resulting gains or losses are included in income in the period of disposition. The Company examines the possibility of
decreases in the value of fixed assets when events or changes in circumstances reflect the fact that their recorded value may not
be recoverable. Investment In Real Estate and Depreciation Investment in real estate is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, and consists of building and improvement. The Company depreciates real estate building and improvement on a
straight- line basis over estimated useful life. Expenditures for ordinary repair and maintenance costs are charged to expense as
incurred. Expenditure for improvements, renovations, and replacements of real estate asset is capitalized and depreciated over its
estimated useful life if the expenditure qualifies as betterment. Impairment of Long- lived Assets In accordance with ASC Topic
360, the Company reviews long- lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable, or at least annually. The Company recognizes an impairment loss
when the sum of expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset. The amount of
impairment is measured as the difference between the asset’ s estimated fair value and its book value. For the year ended
December 31, 2622-2024 , the Company incurred impairment charges in operations of § 22-111 , 285-033 on the-its laboratory
equipment. The valaatiens— valuation of the laboratory equipment, and the ameunts— amount of the impairment charge, were
based on impairment assessments— assessment conducted on the equipment heldfor-sale-at December 31, 2622-2024 . The



Company uses the equity method of accounting for its #rvestments- investment in, and earning or loss of, eempantes-investees
that it does not control but over which it does exert significant influence. The Company applies the equity method by initially
recording these investments at cost, as equity method investments, subsequently adjusted for equity in earnings and cash
distributions. The Company considers whether the fair valaes— value of its equity method nvestments— investment have-has
declined below their-its carrying ¥akes— value whenever adverse events or changes in circumstances indicate that recorded
walges— value may not be recoverable. If the Company considers any decline to be other than temporary (based on various
factors, including historical financial results and the overall health of the investee), then a write- down would be recorded to
estimated fair value. Impairment of equity method investment amounted to $ 259, 579 and $ 9, 651, 361 and-$-0-for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2822-, respectively. See Note 78 for discussion of equity method investments. The
Company classifies distributions received from equity method investments using the cumulative earnings approach.
Distributions received are considered returns on the investment and classified as cash inflows from operating activities.
If, however, the investor’ s cumulative distributions received, less distributions received in prior periods determined to
be returns of investment, exceeds cumulative equity in earnings recognized, the excess is considered a return of
investment and is classified as cash inflows from investing activities. '- +5-13 Deferred Rental Income Deferred rental
income represents rental income collected but not earned as of the reporting date. The Company defers the revenue related to
lease payments received from tenants in advance of their due dates. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, deferred
rental income totaled $ 38,346 and $ 11, 429 and-$27-685-, respectively, which were included in accrued liabilities and other
payables on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Real Property Rental Revenue The Company has determined that
ASC 606 does not apply to rental contracts, which are within the scope of other revenue recognition accounting standards.
Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight- line basis under the guidance of ASC 842. Lease payments
under tenant leases are recognized on a straight- line basis over the term of the related leases. The cumulative difference between
lease revenue recognized under the straight- line method and contractual le"lie payments are included in aeeeuntrent receivable
on the consolidated balance sheets —Fhe 55 St er-eoty he
eashredemption-offers-to-its-eustomers-. Ofﬁce Leaie When a leaqe contains “ rent hohdays the C ompany reCOIdS rental
expense on a straight- line basis over the term of the lease. The Company begins recording rent expense on the lease possession
date. Real Property Operating Expenses Real property operating expenses consist of property management fees, property
insurance, real estate taxes, depreciation, repairs and maintenance fees, utilities and other expenses related to the Company’ s
rental properties. Expenditures for research and product development costs are expensed as incurred. The Company incurred
research and development expense of $ 0 and $ 109, 618 and-$734328-in the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
20622, respectively. Advertising and Marketing Costs All costs related to advertising and marketing are expensed as incurred.
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, advertising and marketing costs amounted to $ +237 , 671 666;
F2-and § 1, 325-666 , 3143-721 , respectively. Stock- based Compensation The Company accounts for its stock- based
compensation awards in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (*“ ASC ™) Topic 718, Compensation — Stock
Compensation (“ ASC 718 ). ASC 718 requires all stock- based payments to employees and non- employees including grants of
stock options, to be recognized as expense in the statements of operations based on their grant date fair values. The Company
estimates the grant date fair value of each option award using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model. The Company
periodically issues common stock and common stock options to consultants for various services. Costs of these transactions are
measured at the fair value of the service received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably
measurable. The value of the common stock is measured at the earlier of (i) the date at which a firm commitment for
performance by the counterparty to earn the equity instruments is reached or (ii) the date at which the counterparty’ s
performance is complete. F- +6-14 Debt Modifications and Extinguishments When the Company modifies or extinguishes
debt, it first evaluates whether the modification qualifies as a troubled debt restructuring (TDR) under ASC Topic 470-
60, which requires debt modifications to be evaluated to determine if (1) the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty,
and (2) the lender grants the borrower a concession. If a TDR is determined not to have occurred, the Company
evaluates the modification in accordance with ASC Topic 470- 50- 40, which requires modification to debt instruments to
be evaluated to assess whether debt modification or debt extinguishment accounting is applicable. This evaluation
includes analyzing whether there are significant and consequential changes to the economic substance of the note. If the
change is deemed insignificant then the change is considered a debt modification, whereas if the change is substantial the
change is reflected as a debt extinguishment. If debt extinguishment guidance applies, the previous debt principal
amount is removed, the previously capitalized debt issuance costs are expensed, the value of instruments exchanged are
recorded, including cash, new debt, warrants and common stock, and a gain or loss on extinguishment of debt is
recorded. If debt modification guidance applies, no gain or loss is recorded and the effective interest rate of the debt is
updated based on the carrying value of the debt and the revised future cash flows. Any previously capitalized debt
issuance costs in a debt modification are amortized as interest expense over the term of the new debt instrument. The
Company is governed by the income tax laws of China and the United States. The Company accounts for income taxes using
the asset / liability method prescribed by ASC 740, *“ Income Taxes. ” Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the difference between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates
that will be in effect in the period in which the differences are expected to reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance
to offset deferred tax assets if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more- likely- than- not that some portion, or all, of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized as income or loss
in the period that includes the enactment date. The Company follows the accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes
using the provisions of ASC 740 “ Income Taxes ”. Using that guidance, the benefit for tax positions taken can only be
recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax




authorities. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the Company had no significant uncertain tax positions which would
require either recognition of a liability or disclosure in the financial statements. For United States entities, tax year that remains
subject to examination is the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, 2022 ;and 2021 and2626-. For China entities, income tax
returns for the tax years ended December 31, 2649-2020 through December 31, 2623-2024 remain open for statutory
examination by PRC tax authorities. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to significant uncertain income tax
positions in income tax expense. However, no such interest and penalties were recorded as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2622-. Foreign Currency Translation The reporting currency of the Company is the U. S. dollar. The functional currency of the
parent company, AHS, Avalon RT 9, and-Avalon Lab , and Q & A Distribution is the U. S. dollar and the functional currency
of Avalon Shanghai is the Chinese Renminbi (“ RMB 7). For Avalon Shanghai whose functional currency is the RMB, result of
operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, assets and liabilities are translated at the
unified exchange rate at the end of the period, and equity is translated at historical exchange rates. As a result, amounts relating
to assets and liabilities reported on the statements of cash flows may not necessarily agree with the changes in the corresponding
balances on the balance sheets. Translation adjustments resulting from the process of translating the local currency financial
statements into U. S. dollars are included in determining comprehensive income / loss. Transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date with any transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency are included in the results of operations as incurred. All of the Company’ s
revenue transactions are transacted in the functional currency of the operating subsidiaries. The Company does not enter into
any material transaction in foreign currencies. Transaction gains or losses have not had, and are not expected to have, a material
effect on the results of operations of the Company. Asset and liability accounts at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-were
translated at 7. 2980 RMB and 7. 0786 RMB-and-6-—8979-RMB to $ 1. 00, respectively, which were the exchange rates on the
balance sheet dates. Equity accounts were stated at their historical rates. The average translation rates applied to the statements
of operations for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-were 7. 1889 RMB and 7. 0752 RiviB-and-6-—7309
RMB to $ 1. 00, respectively. Cash flows from the Company’ s operations are calculated based upon the local currencies using
the average translation rate. F- 15 Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss and all changes to the statements of equity,
except those due to investments by stockholders, changes in paid- in capital and distributions to stockholders. For the Company,
comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-consisted of net loss and unrealized loss from
foreign currency translation adjustment. Commitments and Contingencies In the normal course of business, the Company is
subject to contingencies, such as legal proceedings and claims arising out of its business, that cover a wide range of matters.
Liabilities for such contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
assessment can be reasonably estimated. £==47Per Share Data ASC Topic 260 *“ Earnings per Share, ” requires presentation of
both basic and diluted earnings per share (“ EPS ) with a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic EPS
computation to the numerator and denominator of the diluted EPS computation. Basic EPS excludes dilution. Diluted EPS
reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted
into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity. Basic net loss per
share is computed by dividing net loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock, common stock equivalents and potentially dilutive securities outstanding during each
period. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, potentially dilutive common shares consist of the common
shares issuable upon the conversion of convertible preferred stock and convertible stete-netes (using the if- converted method)
and exercise of common stock options and warrants (using the treasury stock method). Common stock equivalents are not
included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share if their effect would be anti- dilutive. In a period in which the Company
has a net loss, all potentially dilutive securities are excluded from the computation of diluted shares outstanding as they would
have had an anti- dilutive impact. The calculation of basic and diluted net loss per common share attributable to the
Company common shareholders includes 150, 000 of the pre- funded warrants that remain outstanding as of December
31, 2024. The following table summarizes the securities that were excluded from the diluted per share calculation because the
effect of including these potential shares was antidilutive: Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Options to purchase
common stock 853-52 , 303-858-479 56 , 500-880 Warrants to purchase common stock 645-182 , 527423-996 43 , 964-035
Series A convertible preferred stock (*) 966-60 , 000 996-60 , 000 Series B convertible preferred stock (* *) 2-194 , 9+6-004 194
,953-004 Series C Convertible-convertible notes-preferred stock (* * *) 9H-1 . 452 H14+-572-, +45-282- Convertible notes (*
* * %) 227,269 60, 740 Potentially dilutive securities 6;249;-994-2, 454-169 , 669-030 414, 659 (*) Assumed the Series A
convertible preferred stock was converted into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $ +8-150 . 00
per share. (* *) Assumed the Series B convertible preferred stock was converted into shares of common stock of the Company
at a conversion price of $ 3-56 . #8-70 per share. ( * * *) Assumed the Series C convertible preferred stock was converted
into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $ 2. 41 per share. (* * * *) Assumed the convertible
notes were converted into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $ 4-11 . 25 58-and-$4-—56-per share
for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Assumed the convertible fiete-notes was-were converted into shares of common
stock of the Company at a conversion price of $ 6-67. 50 and $ 22 . 50 per share for the year ended December 31, 20222023 .
F- 16 Noncontrolling Interest As of December 31, 2823-2024 , Dr. Yu Zhou, former director and former Co- Chief Executive
Officer of Genexosome, who owns 40 % of the equity interests of Genexosome, which is not under the Company’ s control.
Since the fourth quarter of 2019, the non- controlling interest has remained inactive. F—18-SegmentRepeorting-Certain prior
period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. These reclassifications have no



effect on the prev1ously reported financial pos1tlon, results of operatlons and cash ﬂows The Qempan-y—segment reporting

y he Company’ s management reportmg structure as its foundation

to reflect how the Company manages the busmesses internally and is mainly organized by services. The Company is
organized into two services- oriented strategic business units: real property rental services and laboratory testing
services — which are led by our strategic business unit managers. Operating segments are defined as components of an
enterprise for which separate financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the chief operdtino decision
maker -fer—ma-kmg—(“ CODM ”) in decldlng how to make opemtmu decisions , allocate resources and assessrng»—— assess

Febludly 9, 2023, the (ompany pulchased 40 % of Lab Sen ices MSO C ommencing trom the pmchase ddte Feblumy 9,2023
the Company is active in the management of Lab Services MSO. During the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
the Company operated in two reportable business segments: (1) the real property operating segment, and (2) laboratory testing
services segment (which commenced with the purchase date, February 9, 2023) since Lab Services MSO’ s operating results are
regularly reviewed by the Company’ s chief operating decision maker to determine the resources to be allocated to the segment
and assess its performance. The Company regularly reviews the operating results and performance of Lab Services MSO, for
which the Company accounts for under the equity method. €ertatnpriorperiod-amountshave-beenreelassified-The Company’
s President and Chief Executive Officer is its CODM. The Company reports operational data to eenforntte-its CODM at
the segment level, which the-- he uses to evaluate performance and allocate resources based eurrent—peﬂed-present&&en—
Fhesereelassifteattons-haveno-effeeton real property thep stlts p S
operating income and eash-fews-loss from equity method mvestment Lab Serv1ces MSO F 1scal Year End T he
Company has adopted a fiscal year end of December 31st. Reverse Stock Split The Company effeeted-effectuated a ene-1 - for-
ten-15 reverse stock split of its outstanding shares of common stock on January-5-October 28 , 2623-2024 . The reverse split did
not change the par value number-ofauthorizedshares-of common stock erparvakie-. All references in these consolidated
financial statements to shares, share prices, exercise prices, and other per share information in all periods have been adjusted, on
a retroactive basis, to reflect the reverse stock split. F+=49-Recent Accounting Standards In June260+6-August 2020 , the
Finanetal-Aeeounting-StandardsBoard(F ASB 2issued Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU ) 2646-2020 - +3-06 , Debt —
Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470- 20) and Derivatives and Hedging — Contracts in Entity’ s Own
Equity (Subtopic 815- 40), to simplify accounting for certain Finanetatfinancial Instraments-instruments . ASU 2020 -
CreditLosses(“Topte-32625-06 eliminates the current models that require separation of beneficial conversion and cash
conversion features from convertible instruments and simplifies the derivative scope exception guidance pertaining to
equlty class1ﬁcat10n of contracts 1n an entlty s own equlty The ArSU—new standard also mtroduces a—new—aeeeunﬁﬂg

i t i f i i afy—- an entlty
s own equlty eensel-tdated—ﬁnanela-l—st&temen’fs— -l-n—eetebeﬁe%l—t-he—Fq%S-B-rssued—ASU

ﬂ‘ta-teﬂal—ﬂﬁpaet—eﬂ—t-he—Qempany—
26242020 - 68-06 amends the diluted earnings per share guidance , Business-Combinattons{Topie-805)-Aeceounting
mcludmg the requlrement to use the if- converted method for all convertlble instruments Gentraeﬁ%ssets—and—Gentraet

with a 0 y h
E&rlry—early adoptlon ts—pelmltted—rneludﬁrg—adﬂat—teﬂ—r&an—mter&n—peﬂed- The ddoptlon of t-h-ts—new—g-ufel&ﬁee-ASU 2020 06
did not have afty-a material #mpaet-effect on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. F- 17
Recent Accounting Standards (continued) In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 07, Segment Reporting (Topic
280). The amendments in this update improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced
disclosures about significant segment expenses. ASU 2023- 07 became effective for the Company’ s annual period
beginning on January 1, 2024 and interim periods beginning after January 1, 2025. The Company adopted this guidance
in the fourth quarter of 2024. Refer to Note 20- Segment Information. The Company’ s results of operations, cash flows,
and financial condition were not impacted by the adoption of this ASU . In December 2023, the FASB tssaed-ASU 2023-
09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This guidance is intended to enhance the
transparency and decision- usefulness of income tax disclosures. The amendments in ASU 2023- 09 address investor requests
for enhanced income tax information primarily through changes to disclosure regarding rate reconciliation and income taxes




paid both in the U. S. and in foreign jurisdictions. ASU 2023- 09 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024
on a prospective basis, Wlth the optlon to apply the qtandard retro%pectlvely Early adoptlon is permitted. The adoption of ASU
2023- 09 did not compan y d d may-have a material effect on its-the
Company’ s consolidated ﬁnanmal statements and related disclosures. Other accountlng standards that have been issued or
proposed by FASB that do not require adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements upon adoption. The Company does not discuss recent pronouncements that are not anticipated to have an
impact on or are unrelated to its consolidated financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures. NOTE 4 —
PREPAID EXPENSE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, prepaid expense and
other current assets consisted of the following: December 31, 2623-2024 December 3 1, 2622-2023 Prepaid professional fees $
33, 665 $ 33, 062 $93;-81F Prepaid directors and officers ? liability insurance premium 9, 741 27, 192 29,364-Deferred offering
costs = 175, 136 34:824-Deferred leasing costs 33-31 , 462-587 33, 402 Security deposit 17 —9-, 884-654- Due from broker 32,
885 37, 187 Finished goods 92, 230 - Recoverable VAT 9, 245 6, 218 Others 62-72 , 353 64537565 55, 797 Total $ 299,
360 $ 367, 994 $247990-NOTE 5 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, property
and equipment consisted of the following: Useful #ife-Life December 31, 2623-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Laboratory
equipment 5 Years $ = $ 100, 548 $374;3483-Office equipment and furniture 3 — 10 Years 54, 499 54, 797 35-54 | +45-499 155,
345 489,328 ess: accumulated depreciation ( 41, 587) (117, 262) @48 12, 912 834)-$ 38, 083 $438;294-For the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, depreciation expense of property and equipment amounted to $ 9, 234 and $ 43,
037 and-, respectively, of which, $ +62-8 , 623 and 040;respeetivelyofwhieh;-$ 7, 221 and-$2,-98Fwas included in real
property operating expenses, $ 611 and $ 417 and-$-825-was included in other operating expenses, and $ 0 and $ 35, 399 and-$
+58;228-was included in research and development expense, respectively. F- 26-18 NOTE 6 — EQUIPMENT HELD FOR
SALE The Company measures long- lived assets to be disposed of by sale at the lower of carrying amount or fair value,
less associated costs to sell these assets. The assets held for sale is no longer subject to depreciation as they are not used in
operations. As of December 31, 2024, the Company committed to a plan to sell certain laboratory equipment that was
used to research and development as equipment held for sale, which was included in “ Other non- current assets ” on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company evaluated equipment for impairment at December 31, 2024.
The Company compared the estimated fair value of the equipment to its carrying value with impairment indicators and
recorded an impairment charge for the excess of carrying value over fair value. For the year ended December 31, 2024,
the Company incurred an impairment charge in operations of $ 111, 033 on laboratory equipment. Although the
Company is actively seeking and negotiating with potential buyers, the Company can give no assurances that the sale
process will be successful and, if it were successful, there are no assurances as to the amount or timing of any potential
proceeds. NOTE 7 - INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, investment in real estate
consisted of the following: Useful #fe-Life December 31, 2623-2024 December 31, 2023 Commercial real property building 39
Years $ 7,708,571 $ 7,708, 571 Improvement 12 Years 529, 372 529, 372 8, 237, 943 8, 237, 943 Less: accumulated
depreciation (1, 215, 222) (1, 046, 539 H8FH856-) § 7, 494022 , 464-721 $ 7, 366-191 ., 687404 For both the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, depreciation expense of this commercial real property amounted to $ 168, 683, which
was included in real property operating expenses. NOTE #8 — EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS Investment in Epicon
Biotech Co., Ltd. As of December 31, 2023 and-2822-, the equity method investment in Epicon Biotech Co., Ltd. (“ Epicon )
amounted to $ 0 and-$485,-008;respeetively-. The investment represents the Company” s subsidiary, Avalon Shanghai” s
interest in Epicon. Epicon was incorporated on August 14, 2018 in PRC. Avalon Shanghai and an unrelated company, Jiangsu
Unicorn Biological Technology Co., Ltd. (“ Unicorn ), have an ownership interest in Epicon of 40 % and 60 %, respectively.
Epicon is focused on cell preparation, third party testing, biological sample repository for commercial and scientific research
purposes and clinical transformation of scientific achievements. The Company is not involved in the management of Epicon.
Therefore, it is a passive investment. In June 2023, the Company assessed its equity method investment in Epicon for any
impairment and concluded that there were indicators of impairment as of June 30, 2023. The impairment is due to the Company’
s conclusion that it will be unable to recover the carrying amount of the investment due to the investee’ s series of operating
losses and the inability of Avalon Shanghai’ s joint venture partner (Unicorn) to obtain adequate funding to commence
operations. The Company calculated that the estimated undiscounted cash flows were less than the carrying amount related to
the equity method investment. The Company has recognized an impairment loss of $ 454, 679 related to the equity method
investment for the year ended December 31, 2023, which reduced the investment value to zero. Under the equity method, if
there is a commitment for the Company to fund the losses of its equity method investees, the Company would continue to record
its share of losses resulting in a negative equity method investment, which would be presented as a liability on the consolidated
balance sheets. Commitments may be explicit and may include formal guarantees, legal obligations, or arrangements by
contract. Implicit commitments may arise from reputational expectations, intercompany relationships, statements by the
Company of its intention to provide support, a history of providing financial support or other facts and circumstances. When the
Company has no commitment to fund the losses of its equity method investees, the carrying value of its equity method
investments will not be reduced below zero. The Company has no commitment to fund additional losses of its equity method
investments. F- 19 NOTE 8 —- EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS (continued) Investment in Laboratory Services MSO,
LLC On February 9, 2023 (the “ Closing Date ), the Company entered into and closed an Amended and Restated Membership
Interest Purchase Agreement (the “ Amended MIPA 7), by and among Avalon Lab Eaberatery-Serviees; Tnea-whelly-eowned
substdiary-ofthe-Company-(the~“Buyer>), SCBC Holdings LLC (the “ Seller ), the Zoe Family Trust, Bryan Cox and Sarah
Cox as individuals (each an “ Owner ” and collectively, the “ Owners ), and Eaberaters-Lab Services MSO ;E=E&-. Pursuant to
the terms and conditions set forth in the Amended MIPA, the-Buyer-Avalon Lab acquired from the Seller, ferty-pereent-40 %
Jof the issued and outstanding equity interests of Lab Services MSO (the “ Purchased Interests ). The consideration paid by




Buyer-Avalon Lab to Seller for the Purchased Interests consisted of $ 20, 666, 667, which was comprised of (i) $ 9, 000, 000 in
cash, (ii) $ 11, 000, 000 pursuant to the issuance of 11, 000 shares of the Company’ s Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the
“ Series B Preferred Stock ™), stated value $ 1, 000 (the *“ Series B Stated Value ), which approximated the fair value, and (iii) a
$ 666, 667 cash payment on February 9, 2024. The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into shares of the Company” s
common stock at a conversion price per share equal to $ 3-56 . 78-70 , which approximated the market price at the date of
clo@rng, or an aggregate of 2—194 004 9—1—9—95—3—9hare% of the Company s common stock, Whlch are %ubject toa lock up period

Services MSO, through its iubqrdlarres is engaged in provrdlng laboratory testing services. Avalon Lab and an unrelated
company, have an ownership interest in Lab Services MSO of 40 % and 60 %, respectively. In accordance with ASC 810, the
Company determined that Lab Services MSO does not qualify as a Vartable-variable fnterest-interest Entity-entity , nor does it
have a controlling financial interest over the legal entity. However, the Company determined that it does have significant
influence as a result of its board representation. Therefore, the Company treats the equity investment in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Company’ s share of the purchased- date fair values of the investee’ s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). At February 9, 2023 (date of investment), the excess of the Company’ s share of the fair values of the
investee’ s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment was approximately $ 19, 460, 000 which was attributable to
intangible assets and goodwill. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post purchase change in the Company’ s share of
the investee’ s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Intangible assets consist of the valuation of
identifiable intangible assets acquired, representing trade names and customers relationships, which are being amortized on a
straight- line method over the estimated useful life of 15 years. The straight- line method of amortization represents the
Company’ s best estimate of the distribution of the economic value of the identifiable intangible assets. For the year ended
December 31, 2024 and for the period from February 9, 2023 (date of investment) through December 31, 2023,
amortization expense of these intangible assets amounted to $ 666, 932 and $ 611, 356, respectively, which was included
in loss from equity method investment — Lab Services MSO in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of net assets acquired in
the business acquisition of Lab Services MSO incurred on February 9, 2023. Goodwill is not amortized ;-but is tested for
impairment at Peeember-3+least once annually , 2623-or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the asset might be impaired . In September 2024 and December 2023, the Company assessed its equity method
investment in Laboratory Services MSO, LLC for any impairment and concluded that there were indicators of impairment as of
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 , respectively . The Company calculated that the estimated undiscounted cash
flows of goodwill were less than the carrying amount of goodwill related to the equity method investment. The Company has
recognized ag-impairment loss of $ 259, 579 and $ 9, 196, 682 related to the equity method investment for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and for the period from February 9, 2023 (date of investment) through December 31, 2023,
respectively, which was included in loss from equity method investment — Lab Services MSO in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss . For the year ended December 31, 2024 and for the period
from February 9, 2023 (date of investment) through December 31, 2023, the Company’ s share of Lab Services MSO’ s net
income was $ 625-79 ., 835923 and $ 1, 236, 391, respectively , which was included in #reeme-loss from equity method
investment — Lab Services MSO in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. #rThe
Company classifies distributions received from its investment on Lab Services MSO using the cumulative earnings
approach. Distributions received are considered returns on the investment and classified as cash inflows from operating
activities. For the year ended December 31, 2024 and for the period from February 9, 2023 (date of investment) through
December 31, 2023, distribution of earnings from the Company’ s investment on Lab Services MSO amounted to $ 611,
888 and $ 0, respectively. F- 20 NOTE 8 —- EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS (continued) Investment in Laboratory
Services MSO, LLC (continued) In the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, activity recorded for the Company” s
equity method investment in Lab Services MSO is summarized in the following table: Equity investment carrying amount at
January 1, 2023 $- Payment for equity method investment: The Company’ s interest in the fair value of Lab Services MSO’ s
net assets at February 9, 2023 1, 206, 406 The Company’ s interest in the net excess of Lab Services MSO’ s fair value over net
assets which was attributable to identifiable intangible assets at February 9, 2023 10, 004, 000 The Company’ s interest in the
net excess of Lab Services MSO’ s fair value over net assets which was attributable to goodwill at February 9, 2023 9, 456, 261
Total payment for 26;-666;-667essfrom-cquity method investment —Eab-ServieesMSO+-20, 666, 667 Lab Services MSO’ s
net income attributable to the Company 1, 236, 391 Intangible assets amortization amount (611, 356) Impairment of goodwill
(9, 196, 682) 85-5H5-64F-Equity investment carrying amount at December 31, 2023 12, 095, 020 Lab Services MSO’ s net
income attributable to the Company 79, 923 Intangible assets amortization amount (666, 932) Distribution of earnings
from equity investment (611, 888) Impairment of goodwill (259, 579) Equity investment carrying amount at December
31,2024 $ 10, 636, 544 As of December 31, 2024, the Company’ s carrying value of the identified intangible assets and
goodwill which are included in the equity investment carrying amount was $ 8, 725,42-712 and $ 0 , respectively. 695;
626-As of December 31, 2023, the Company’ s carrying value of the identified intangible assets and goodwill which are
included in the equity investment carrying amount was $ 9, 392, 644 and $ 259, 579, respectively. The tables below present the
summarized financial information, as provided to the Company by the investee, for the unconsolidated company: December 31,
2024 December 31, 2023 Current assets $ 2,917, 880 $ 4, 930, 254 Noncurrent assets 4, 509, 185 5, 228, 044 Current liabilities
611, 391 828, 713 Noncurrent liabilities 4, 346, 725 4, 104, 183 Equity 2, 468, 949 5. 225, 402 £~22-For the year Ended
December 31, 2024 For the Period from February 9, 2023 (Date of Investment) through December 31, 2023 Net revenue $ 13,



558,711 8 12, 699, 683 Gross profit 3, 534, 503 4, 744, 277 (Loss) freeme-income from operation (265, 754) 2, 393, 830 Net
loss income 199, 808 3, 090, 977 During 2025, to preserve cash, the Company entered into discussions with Lab Services
MSO for the potential redemption of our investment and on February 26, 2025, the Company and Lab Services MSO
entered into a Redemption and Abandonment Agreement (the “ Redemption Agreement ), whereby Lab Services MSO
redeemed the 40 % equity interest in Lab Services MSO held by the Company. See Note 22 — Subsequent Events-
Redemption Agreement. F- 21 NOTE 89 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES At December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2022-, accrued liabilities and other payables consisted of the following: December 31, 2023-2024 December 31,
2622-2023 Accrued tenants’ improvement reimbursement $ 43, 500 $ 43, 500 Tenants’ security deposit 81, 233 #3-81 , 733-233
Accrued business expense reimbursement 34, 781 25, 061 52-43FAccrued utilities 26, 075 15, 166 +5;-63+-Deferred rental
income 38,346 11, 429 27-685-Accrued real property cleaning service fee 9, 200 7, 570 23:-564-Interest payable - 55, 027 =
Taxes payable 177, 724 11, 794 4:-337-Others 23, 258 22, 135 39;347FTotal $ 434,117 $ 272, 915 $283;234-NOTE 9-10 -
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G aterents pera 3S 4-May 2023 Convertible Note On May
23, 2023 the Company entered into securities pureha%e agreementi with Ma%t H111 Fund, L. P. (“ Mast Hill ) for the issuance of
13. 0 % senior secured promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $ 1, 500, 000 (collectively, the “ May 2023
Convertible Note ) convertible into shares of the Company’ s common stock —paﬁa%ue—$—9—999—l—peﬁshafe—e-f—t-he—€empaﬂy—
as well as the issuance of #5-5 , 000 shares of common stock as a commitment fee and warrants for the purchase of 238-15 , 566
366 shares of common stock of the Company. The Company and its subsidiaries kawe-also entered into a security agreement,
creating a security interest in certain property of the Company and its subsidiaries to secure the prompt payment, performance
and discharge in full of all of the Company’ s obligations under the May 2023 Convertible Note. Principal amount and interest
under the May 2023 Convertible Note are-were convertible into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price
of $ 4-67 . 50 per share unless the Company fats-failed to make an amortization payment when due, in which case the
conversion price shall-would be the lower of $ 467 . 50 or the trading price of the shares, subject to a floor of $ 422 . 50. Mast
Hill acquired the May 2023 Convertible Note with principal amount of $ 1, 500, 000 and paid the purchase price of $ 1, 425,
000 after an original issue discount of $ 75, 000. On May 23, 2023, the Company issued (i) a warrant to purchase +25-8 , 666
333 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023 (*
First Warrant ) , (ii) a warrant to purchase $85-7 , 588-033 shares of common stock with an exercise price of § 3-48 . 26-00
exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023 ;whteh-(“ Second warrant-Warrant shall-be-”’). The Second
Warrant was never fair valued and was cancelled and extinguished against payment of the May 2023 Convertible Note, and
(ii1) #5-5 , 000 shares of common stock as a commitment fee for the purchase of the May 2023 Convertible Note, which were
earned in full as of May 23, 2023. On May 23, 2023, the Company delivered such duly executed May 2023 Convertible Note,
warrants and common stock to Mast Hill against delivery of such purchase price. The Company is-was obligated to make
amortization payments in cash to Mast Hill tewards— toward the repayment of the May 2023 Convertible Note, as previded
described in the following table: Payment Date....... 2024 The entire remaining outstanding balance of the May 2023
Convertible Neteln—- Note. As of December 31, 2024, the May 2023 Convertible Note was repaid in full. In connection with
the issuance of the May 2023 Convertible Note, the Company incurred debt issuance costs of $§ 175, 162 (including the issuance
of 667 +6;-600-warrants as a finder’ s fee) which 18-was capitalized and was wHbe-amortized into interest expense over the
term of the May 2023 Convertible Note. Based upon the Company’ s analysis of the criteria contained in ASC 815, the
Company determined that all the warrants issued to Mast Hill and a third party as a finder’ s fee met the definition of a
derlvatlve hablhty, as the Company cannot aV01d anet Caih settlement under certain circumstances. Accordlngly,M&ﬂagemeﬂf
etermitred-th obability -6 ation-payment-whendue-to-be-remeote-an thefalrvalueofthe9

, 000 Warrants with an exercise price of $ 4—67 50 exercmable untll the five- year
anniversary of May 23,2023 was elasqlﬁed as derivative liability on May 23, 2023. The fair values of the 435-9 , 000 warrants
with an exercise price 0f$ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023 issued on May 23, 2023 were
computed using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 429 . 9640 ,
volatility of 88. 80 %, risk- free rate of 3. 76 %, annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. F- 22 NOTE 10 —
CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLE (continued) May 2023 Convertible Note (continued) [n accordance with ASC 470- 20-
25- 2, proceeds from the sale of a debt instrument with stock purchase warrants are allocated to the two elements based on the
relative fair values of the debt instrument without the warrants and of the warrants themselves at time of issuance. The portion
of the proceeds allocated to the warrants are accounted for as derlvatlve hablhty The remalndel of the proceedq are allocated to
the debt instrument portion of the transaction. Ma A eP eontn ; h7

Company recorded a total debt dlscount of $ 349, 654 related to the orlglnal issue discount, common shares issued and warrants
issued to Mast Hill, which was wrl-l—be—amortlzed over the term of the May 2023 Convertlble Note —FeH-he—ye&r—eﬂded

ﬁf—epef&t-teﬁs—aﬂd—eeﬁapfehensﬁe—}ess— July 2023 Convertlble Note On July 6 2023 the Company entered into securities
purchase agreements with Firstfire-FirstFire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (* Firstfire-FirstFire ) for the issuance of 13. 0

% senior secured promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $ 500, 000 (collectively, the “ July 2023 Convertible
Note ”) convertible into shares of the Company’ s common stock yparvealtue-$-0-000+pershare;of the-Company-, as well as
the issuance of 25-1 , 8868-667 shares of common stock as a commitment fee and warrants for the purchase of #6-5 , $36-122
shares of common %tock of the Company. The Company and its subsidiaries have-also entered into a security agreement,
creating a security interest in certain property of the Company and its subsidiaries to secure the prompt payment, performance
and discharge in full of all of the Company’ s obligations under the July 2023 Convertible Note. Principal amount and interest
under the July 2023 Convertible Note are-were convertible into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price
of $ 4-67 . 50 per share unless the Company fats-failed to make an amortization payment when due, in which case the
conversion price shall-would be the lower of $ 467 . 50 or the trading price of the shares, subject to a floor of $ 422 . 50.
Firstfire-FirstFire acquired the July 2023 Convertible Note with principal amount of $ 500, 000 and paid the purchase price of
$ 475, 000 after an original issue discount of $ 25, 000. On July 6, 2023, the Company issued (i) a warrant to purchase 442 ,



665-778 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023
(“ First Warrant ”) . (ii) a warrant to purchase 35-2 , +65-344 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 3-48 . 26-00
exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023 ;whieh-(“ Second swarrant-Warrant shal-be-’). The Second
Warrant was never fair valued and was cancelled and extinguished against payment of the July 2023 Convertible Note, and
(1ii) 25-1 , 886-667 shares of common stock as a commitment fee for the purchase of the July 2023 Convertible Note, which
were earned in full as of July 6, 2023. On July 6, 2023, the Company delivered such duly executed July 2023 Convertible Note,
warrants and common stock to Firstfire-FirstFire against delivery of such purchase price. The Company 1s-was obligated to
make amortlzatlon payments in Caqh to F—rfs{-ﬁfe—FlrstF ire tewafds—~ toward the repaymem of the July 2023 Convertlble Note,

the July 2023 Convertlble Netel-n——— Note As of December 31 2024 the
July 2023 Convertible Note was repaid in full. In connection with the issuance of the July 2023 Convertible Note, the
Company incurred debt issuance costs of $ 74, 204 (including the issuance of 222 3;333-warrants as a finder’ s fee), which is
was capitalized and was wi-be-amortized into interest expense over the term of the July 2023 Convertible Note. F26-Jay
2023-Cenvertible Nete(eentinted)-Based upon the Company’ s analysis of the criteria contained in ASC 815, the Company
determined that all the warrants issued to Firstfire and a third party as a finder’ s fee meet the definition of a derivative liability,
as the Company cannot avoid a net Caqh iettlement under certain circumstances. Accordmgly,M&ﬂageme&t—deteﬂﬁmed—t-he
P 7 alce-arai attorpayment-when-duetob se Fre eh-the falrvalue 0fthe-3§—3 -1-65—000

was Cla@@lfled asa denvatlve hablhty on July 6, 2023 The falr values of the 443, 998—000 warrants Wlth an exercise prlce of §
4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023 issued on July 6, 2023 were computed using the Black-
Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions: stock price of $ +21 . 42-30 , volatility of 88. 52 %, risk- free
rate of 4. 37 %, annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. In accordance with ASC 470- 20- 25- 2, proceeds
from the sale of a debt instrument with stock purchase warrants are allocated to the two elements based on the relative fair
values of the debt instrument without the warrants and of the warrants themselves at time of issuance. The portion of the
proceeds allocated to the warrants are accounted for as derivative liability. The remainder of the proceeds are allocated to the
debt instrument portion of the transaction. The Company recorded a total debt discount of $ 89, 191 related to the original issue
discount, common shares issued and warrants issued to Firstfire, Wthh was er—be—amortlzed over the term of the July 2023
ConvertlbleNote F-23 he-yea seott-an bt-isstanee-eosts-an

2023 the Company entered into securities purchase agleementq with Ma%t Hill and Firstfire-FirstFire for the issuance of 13. O
% senior secured promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of § 700, 000 (collectively, the “ October 2023
Convertible Note ”) convertible into shares of the Company’ s common stock ;parvalue-$-0-0061-pershare;of the-Company-,
as well as the issuance of 78-4 , 888-666 shares of common stock as a commitment fee and warrants for the purchase of 492 12

, 506-834 shares of common itock of the Company. The Company and its subsidiaries hawve-also entered into that certain
Security agreements, creating a security interest in certain property of the Company and its subsidiaries to secure the prompt
payment, performance and discharge in full of all of the Company’ s obligations under the October 2023 Convertible Note.
Principal amount and interest under the October 2023 Convertible Note are-were convertible into shares of common stock of
the Company at a conversion price of $ 422 . 50 per share unless the Company fails-failed to make an amortization payment
when due, in which case the conversion price shal-would be the lower of $ 422 . 50 or the market price (as defined in the
October 2023 Convertible Note) of the shares. Mast Hill acquired the October 2023 Convertible Note with principal amount of
$ 350, 000 and paid the purchase price of $ 332, 500 after an original issue discount of $ 17, 500. On October 9, 2023, the
Company issued (i) a warrant to purchase $2-3 , 500 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 2-37 . 50 exercisable
until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 (* First Warrant ) , (ii) a warrant to purchase 43-2 , #56-917 shares of
common stock with an exercise price of $ +27 . 88-00 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 ;whieh-(*
Second warrant-Warrant shall-be-””). The Second Warrant was never fair valued and was cancelled and extinguished against
payment of the October 2023 Convertible Note, and (iii) 35-2 , 886-333 shares of common stock as a commitment fee for the
purchase of the October 2023 Convertible Note, which were earned in full as of October 9, 2023. On October 9, 2023, the
Company delivered such duly executed October 2023 Convertible Note, warrants and common stock to Mast Hill against
delivery of such purchase price. F=27The Company was obligated to make amortization payments in cash to Mast Hill
toward the repayment of the October 2023 Convertible Note , as described

teontinted)-The-Company-ts-obligated-to-make
amemzaﬁeﬂ-paymeﬁts—m eash—teMas{—HrH—tew&fds—th&repaymeﬂt—e-ﬁthe October 2023 Convertible Note . As of December 31

fPhe—eﬂ&fe-ferﬁ&mmg-et&staﬂdmg—ba-}anee—ef—the October 2023 Convertlble NefeFrrst—ﬁfe—Note was repald in full Fll‘StFll‘e



acquired the October 2023 Convertible Note with principal amount of $ 350, 000 and paid the purchase price of $ 332, 500 after
an original issue discount of $ 17, 500. On October 9, 2023, the Company issued (i) a warrant to purchase 523 , 500 shares of
common stock with an exercise price of § 2-37 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 (* First
Warrant ”) , (ii) a warrant to purchase 43-2 , #56-917 shares of common stock with an exercise price of § +27 . $6-00
exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 ;whiteh-(“ Second warrant-Warrant shat-be-’). The Second
Warrant was never fair valued and was cancelled and extinguished against payment of the October 2023 Convertible Note,
and (iii) 35-2 , ©66-333 shares of common stock as a commitment fee for the purchase of the October 2023 Convertible Note,
which were earned in full as of October 9, 2023. On October 9, 2023, the Company delivered such duly executed October 2023
Convertible Note, warrants and common stock to Firstfire-FirstFire against delivery of such purchase price. The Company 18
was obligated to make amortization payments in cash to Firstfire-FirstFire tewards— toward the repayment of the October
2023 Convertible Note, as previded-described in the follewing-table-October 2023 Convertible Note. As of December 31,
2024, the October 2023 Convertible Note was repaid in full. In connection with the issuance of the October 2023 Convertible
Note, the Company incurred debt issuance costs of $ 95, 349 (including the issuance of 560 8;-406-warrants as a finder’ s fee),
which is-was capitalized and was swH-be-amortized into interest expense over the term of the October 2023 Convertible Note.
Based upon the Company’ s analysis of the criteria contained in ASC 815, the Company determined that all the warrants issued
to Mdst Hill dnd Fnstl‘lre and a thnd party asa flnder S fee meet the definition of a deriv atl\ e llablllty as the C ompany cannot

50 exerusable untll the five- year anniv eIsqry of October 9, 2023 was
cl"lssmed as a derivative liability on October 9, 2023. The fair values of the H3-7 , 486-560 warrants with an exercise price of §
2-37 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 issued on October 9, 2023 were computed using the
Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 8-11 . 755, volatility of 89. 70 %, risk-
free rate of 4. 75 %, annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. F=28The Company recorded a total debt
discount of § 128, 748 related to the Orl(’lndl issue discount, common shcues 1ssued and warrants issued to Mast Hill and
Firstfire, which as-a e ; ; P
Convertible Note-. Bdsed upon the Company S dndlysn of the Crltend contamed in ASC 815,the ( ompany determmed tlmt dll
the warrants issued to Mast Hill and a third party as a finder’ s fee meet the definition of &derivative liability,as the Company
cannot avoid a net cash settlement under certain circumstances.Management determined the probability of failing to make an
amortization payment when due to be remote and as such the fair value of the 88-105 , 9900-warrants-with-anexereise priceof$
756-500 warrants with an exereisable—-- exercise price untt-the-five—year-anniversary-of June-5-$ 3.20 exercisable until the
five- year anniversary of May 23 , 2624-2023 .which warrant shall be cancelled and extinguished against payment of the June
May 2024-2023 Convertible Note,has been estimated to be zero.Accordingly,the fair value of the 72-135 ,000 warrants with an
exercise price of § 9-4 . #5-50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of June-5-May 23 , 2024-2023 was classified as
derivative liability on June-5-May 23 , 2624-2023 .The fair values of the #2-135 ,000 warrants with an exercise price of $ 9-4 .
#5-50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of Jane-5-May 23 , 2624-2023 issued on June-5-May 23 , 2624-2023 were
computed using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions:stock price of § +6-1 . 39-96 ,volatility
of 85-88 . 72-80 %o.risk- free rate of 43 . 3476 %.annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. The warrants with
an exercise price of $ 4.50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23,2023 issued to Mast Hill will be
amortized over the term of the Oetober-June 2623-2024 Convertible Note. F- 26 On December 15, 2024, the Company and
Mast Hill entered into that certain consent, acknowledgement, and waiver agreement (“ Agreement ”’), pursuant to
which Mast Hill waived all amortization payments required to be made under the June 2024 Convertible Note, the
Company paid a waiver fee of $ 150, 000 to Mast Hill, and the Company issued to Mast Hill a common stock purchase
warrant for the purchase of up to 150, 000 shares of the Company’ s common stock (“ Pre- Funded Warrants ). The
Pre- Funded Warrants are immediately exercisable at issuance and until the Pre- Funded Warrants are exercised in full
and have an exercise price of $ 0. 01 per share. The Pre- Funded Warrants were classified as a component of permanent
equity on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as they are freestanding financial instrument that is
immediately exercisable, does not embody an obligation for the Company to repurchase its own shares and permit the
holder to receive a fixed number of shares of common stock upon exercise. All of the shares underlying the Pre- Funded
Warrants have been included in the weighted- average number of shares of common stock used to calculate net loss per
share, basic and diluted, attributable to the Company’ s common stockholders because the shares may be issued for little
or no consideration, are fully vested and are exercisable after the original issuance date of the Pre- Funded Warrants.
Based on the Company’ s assess, this arrangement was accounted for as a modification of debt and, as such, $ 838, 794
related to the waiver fee and Pre- Fund Warrants issued to Mast Hill were expensed. The convertible note payable as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 Principal amount $ 2, 556, 777 $ 2, 400,
000 Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (93, 425) (183, 840) Less: unamortized debt discount (349, 579) (291, 014)
Convertible note payable, net $ 2, 113, 773 $ 1, 925, 146 For the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
amortization of debt discount and debt issuance costs and-nterestexpense-rclated to the-Oetober2023-Convertible-convertible
Nete-note payable amounted to $ 5+1 , 356-291, 814 and $ 26-437 , 444-453 | respectively, which have been included in
interest expense — amortization of debt discount and debt issuance eest-costs on the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive loss. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, interest expense related to
convertible note payable amounted to $ 325, 486 and $ 167, 058, respectively, which have been included in interest




expense — other on the dccompanymg consolidated statements of opemtlons and comptehensl\ e loss. NOTE -1-9—11 -

%92—3—( onv e1t1b1e Note the C ompdny detelmmed that the conv ertlble note pdydble contains an embedded dem ative feature in
the form of a conversion provision which is adjustable based on future prices of the Company’ s common stock. In accordance
with ASC 815- 10- 25, each derivative feature is initially recorded at its fair value using the Black- Scholes option valuation
method and then re- value at each reporting date, with changes in the fair value reported in the statements of operations.
However, on May23-June 5 , 2623-2024 Fuly-6;2623;-October9;2023;-and December 31, 2023-2024 , management
determined the probability of failing to make an amortization payment and repayment, respectively, when due to be remote
and as such the fair value of the embedded conversion feature has been estimated to be zero. On May 23, 2023, the Company
issued 246-9 , 566-000 warrants with an exercise price of $ 67. 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23,
2023 to Mast Hill and a third party as a finder’ s fee {seeNete-9)-. Upon evaluation, the warrants meet the definition of a
derivative liability under FASB AS( 815, as the C ompany Cannot avoid a net Cash settlement under certain circumstances.
Accordingly, Manager etermined-the ; y ating-to-make-an-am ationpa rt-when-due-to-be-rem
Sﬂeh—the fair \dlue of the 9

es&m&ted—te—beezefe—Aeeefdmgiy—the—fatHﬁue—e%ﬂ%e—Bé— 000 warrants Wtﬂ%&ﬁ—exefetse—pfwe—e%%e-e*emsab}e—tmtﬂ-ﬂ%e
frve—year-anniversary-of May23;2023-was classified as a derivative liability on May 23, 2023. May 23,2023 issued were
computed using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions:stock price of $ 1.96,volatility of
88.80 %,risk- free rate of 3.76 %,annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. On December 31,2023 the
estimated fair value of the 9-135 ,000 warrants with an exercise price of $ 4.50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of
May 23,2023 as derivative liability was $ 14,805.The estimated fair value of the warrants was computed as of December
1,2023 using Black- Scholes option- pricing model,with the following assumptions:stock price of $ 70 . 24-48 ,volatility of
8% 96 % tlsk free rate of 3.84 %,annual div 1dend yleld of 0 % and expected life of 4.4 yedls On Beeeﬁaber—3—lz"-9%4—t-he

) . . 0
(Contmued On -Ma-yé—.’;—July 6, 2()23 the Company issued 3 est-rma-ted—fa-rr—va-l-ue—e—f—t-he—l—?vé— 000 warrants with an exercise
price of $ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023 issued were computed...... of 4. 4 years. On July

6, 2023 sthe-Company-tssued-80163-warrants-to Firstiire-FirstFire and a third party as a finder’ s fee {seeNete-9)-. Upon

evaluation, the warrants meet the definition of a derivative lmblllty under -F%rS-B—AS( 815, as the C ompany cannot avoid a net
cash settlement under certain circumstances. Accordmgly, Manag etern b o ake—an

eh-the fair value ot the 353, -1-65—000 warrants Wl-t-h—aﬂ-e*efetse—pﬂee—e%

lmblllty on July 6 7073 On :Fu-l-y—é—December 31, 2073 the estlmdted tdn Va-l-uesﬁ value of the 44-3 99-8—000 warrants was $
5, 098. The estimated fair value of the warrants was computed as of December 31, 2023 using Black- Scholes option-
pricing model, with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 7. 24, volatility of 83. 66 %, risk- free rate of 3. 84 %,
annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 4. S years. On November 18, 2024, 2, 778 warrants held by FirstFire
were cashless exercised. On December 31, 2024, the estimated fair value of the rest of 222 warrants was $ 94. The
estimated fair value of the warrants was computed as of December 31, 2024 using Black- Scholes option- pricing model,
with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 3. 26, volatility of 95. 85 %, risk- free rate of 4. 27 %, annual dividend
yleld of 0 % and expected llfe of 3 5 years On October 9 2023, the Company 1ssued s 560 warrants w ith an exercise pllee




and-expeetedife-of-4—-5-years—On-October 9, 2023 ;the-Company-issted-200,900-warrants-to Mast Hill and Firstfire-FirstFire

and a third party as a finder’ s fee fseeNete-3)-. Upon evaluation, the warrants meet the definition of a derivative liability under
-F%rS-B—ASC 815, as the Company cannot avoid a net cash settlement under certain circumstances. Accordmgly,Ma-n&gemenf

aﬂﬂﬁefs&ry—e—ﬁ@e’feber—%@%—\ms cldssmed asa denvdtl\ e hdblhty on October 9, 2023 On GefebeﬁS‘-December 31 , 2023,
the estimated fair ¥akies— value of the H3-7 , 466-560 warrants was $ 20, 920. The estimated fair value of the warrants was
computed as of December 31, 2023 using Black- Scholes option- pricing model, with the following assumptions: stock
price of $ 7. 24, volatility of 86. 33 %, risk- free rate of 3. 84 %, annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 4. 8
years. On November 18, 2024, 3, 500 warrants held by FirstFire were cashless exercised. On December 31, 2024, the
estimated fair value of the rest of 4, 060 warrants was $ 2, 880. The estimated fair value of the warrants was computed as
of December 31, 2024 using Black- Scholes option- pricing model, with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 3. 26,
volatility of 93. 90 %, risk- free rate of 4. 27 %, annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 3. 8 years. On March 7,
2024, the Company issued 9, 450 warrants with an exercise price of $ 2-30 . 56-00 exercisable until the five- year anniversary
of Oeteber-March 7, 2024 to Mast Hill and a third party as a finder’ s fee. Upon evaluation, the warrants meet the
definition of a derivative liability under FASB ASC 815, as the Company cannot avoid a net cash settlement under
certain circumstances. Accordingly, the fair value of the 9, 450 warrants was classified as a derivative liability on March
7, 20623-2024 isswed-were-. On December 31, 2024, the estimated fair value of the 9, 450 warrants was $ 8, 191. The
estimated fair value of the warrants was computed as of December 31, 2024 using the-Black- Scholes option- pricing model ,
with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 8-3 . 7726 , volatility of §9-90 . 76-43 %, risk- free rate of 4. #5-38 %, annual
dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 4. 2 years. On June 5 years—On-Deeember3+-, 2023-2024 , the estimated-Company
issued 152, 000 warrants to Mast Hill and a third party as a finder’ s fee (see Note 10). Upon evaluation, the warrants
meet the definition of a derivative liability under ASC 815, as the Company cannot avoid a net cash settlement under
certain circumstances. Management determined the probability of failing to make an amortization payment when due to
be remote and as such the fair value of the H3-80 , 466-000 warrants with an exercise price of § 2-7 . 50 exercisable until the
five- year anniversary of Oetober-June 5, 2024, which warrant shall be cancelled and extinguished against payment of the
June 2024 Convertible Note, has been estimated to be zero. Accordingly, the fair value of the 72, 000 warrants with an
exercise price of $ 9 . 75 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of June 5 , 2023-2024 was classified as a derivative
liability on June 5, 2024. On December 31, 2024, the estimated fair value of the 72, 000 warrants with an exercise price of
$ 9. 75 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of June 5, 2024 as derivative liability was $ 26-112 , 926-666 . The
estimated fair value of the warrants was computed as of December 31, 2623-2024 using Black- Scholes option- pricing model,
with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 6-3 . 48-26 , volatility of 86-88 . 33-64 %, risk- free rate of 3-4 . 84-38 %, annual
dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 4. 84 years. Increases or decreases in fair value of the derivative liability 1s-are
included as a component of total other (expenses) income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss. The changes to the derivative liability resulted in a decrease of $ 374, 365 and $ 188, 374 in the derivative
liability and the corresponding increase in other income as a gain for the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively . NOTE ++12 - NOTE PAYABLE, NET On September 1, 2022, the Company issued a balloon promissory note
in the form of a mortgage on its headquarters to a third party company in the principal amount of $ 4, 800, 000, which carries
interest of 11. 0 % per annum. Interest is due in monthly payments of $ 44, 000 beginning November 1, 2022 and payable
monthly thereafter until September 1, 2025 when the principal outstanding and all remaining interest is due. The principal of §
4, 800, 000 can be extended for an additional 36 months, provided that the Company has not defaulted. The Company may not
prepay the principal of $ 4, 800, 00 for a period of 12 months. The principal of $ 4, 800, 000 is secured by a first mortgage on
the Company’ s real property located in Township of Freehold, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, having a street
address of 4400 Route 9 South, Freehold, NJ 07728. F- 36-28 NOTE +4-12 - NOTE PAYABLE, NET (continued) In May 2023,
the Company borrowed $ 1, 000, 000 from the same lender. The principal of $ 1, 000, 000 accrues interest at an annual rate of
13. 0 % and is payable in monthly installments of interest- only in the amount of $ 10, 833, commencing in June 2023 and
continuing through October 2025 (at which point any unpaid balance of principal, interest and other charges are due and
payable). The loan is secured by a second- lien mortgage on certain real property and improvements located at 4400 Route 9,
Freehold, Monmouth County, New Jersey. The note payable as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was and-2622-s-as follows:
December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Principal amount $ 5, 800, 000 $ 4-5, 800, 000 Less: unamortized debt
issuance costs ( 84, 553) (203, 781 H236;-848-) Note payable, net § 5, 715, 447 $ 5, 596, 219 Current portion $ 4-5 , 563-715 ,
+52-447 $- Noncurrent portion $- $ 5, 596, 219 For the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-,
amortization of debt issuance costs related to note payable amounted to $ 119, 228 and $ 106, 557 and-$-29,-606-, respectively,
which have been included in interest expense — amortization of debt discount and debt issuance eest-costs on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. For the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-, interest expense related to note payable amounted to $ 658, 000 and $ 606, 722 and-$176;-000-, respectively,
which have been included in interest expense- other on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
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of the PR( dnd the U. S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Under the lncome de Lcms of PRC, Chinese companies
are generally subject to an income tax at an effective rate of 25 % on income reported in the statutory financial statements after
appropriate tax adjustments. The Company has a cumulative deficit from its foreign subsidiary of § 3, 435-399 , 827273 as of
December 31, 2623-2024 , which is included in the consolidated accumulated deficit. The Company’ s loss before income taxes
includes the following components: Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2822-United States loss before income taxes $ €7,
639,148 $ 15, 928, 780 ¥$-H5-56%354)-China loss before income taxes €264, 246 778, 230 H363;693)-Total loss before
income taxes $ €7, 903,394 $ 16, 707, 010 3$-H5930,-84D-Components of income taxes expense (benefit) consisted of the
following: Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Current: U. S. federal $- $- U. S. state and local-- China-- Total current
income taxes expense $- $- Deferred: U. S. federal $ (4, 874) $ (3, 256, 007) $-U. S. state and local (1, 650 729;766-) B—S-
state-anddeeal(1, 102, 392) 58562 -China 93, 437 (183, 443) 209;-806-Total deferred income taxes (benefit) $ 86,913 $ (4,
541, 842 ¥$+2,105;,-521) Change in valuation allowance (86, 913) 4, 541, 842 2,495,-524-Total income taxes expense $- $- F-
IBNOTFEI3—INCOMETAXESH(eentimted)-The table below summarizes the differences between the U. S. statutory rate and
the Company’ s effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-: Years Ended December 31, 2024
2023 2022-U. S. federal rate 21. 0 % 21. 0 % U. S. state rate 6. 4 % 6. 7 %-5+6-" Permanent difference ( 1. 3) % (0. | ¥ %38
) % Non- US rate differential 0. 2-1 % 0. 4+2 % True ups ( 27. 3) % (0. 6 3¥%+5-3-) % U. S. valuation allowance 1. 1 % (27. 23
26+7-6-) % Total provision for income taxes 0. 0 % 0. 0 % For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, the
Company did not incur any income taxes expense since it did not generate any taxable income in those periods. The Company’ s
foreign entity did not pay any income taxes during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622- F- 31 NOTE 14 —
INCOME TAXES (continued) The Company’ s components of deferred taxes as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022
were as follows: December 31, 2623-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Deferred tax assets Stock- based compensation $ 3-1 , 56+
598 ., 567257 § 3,499-501 , 969-507 Disallowed business interest deduction = 9, 476 —Research and development expense 106,
783 130, 823 43F-864-Accrued directors’ compensation 104, 977 165, 490 45F87FAccrued settlement 140, 904 126, 496 945
126,495-Partnership Investment 2, 167, 965 2, 422, 744 —Icase liability 1, 687 20, 935 45-687-Capital ess-loss imitation
limitation 149, 394 —149, 394 Net operating loss carryforward 17, 648, 077 15, 493, 570 43;-634;-926-Total deferred tax assets,
gross 21, 918, 044 22, 020, 435 43447448722 Valuation allowance (21, 784, 638) (21, 871, 551 HF+329-768-) Total
deferred tax assets, net $ 133, 406 $ 148, 884 $H9,-044-Deferred tax liabilities Fixed assets and intangible assets book / tax



basis difference $ (133, 406) $ (129, 636 HH9-044-) Right- of- use assets - (19, 248) —Total deferred tax liabilities $ ( 133,
406) $ (148, 884 ¥$HH9;044-) Net deferred tax assets $- $- As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622- the Company’ s
both federal and state net operating loss carryforwards amounted to $ 60, 926, 204 and $ 52, 929, 248 and-$46;969776-,
respectively. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company has $ 58, 48-438 , 649 663;744-of U. S. federal net operating loss
carryovers that have no expiration date, and ‘{> 2,487, 555 of the federal net operating loss and state net operating loss carry-
forwards begin to expire in 2034. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company had net operating loss carryforwards in China
of $ 2, 460-086 , 636-886 that begin to expire in 2024. Additionally, as of December 31, 2023-2024 , $ 61, 847 of the future
utilization of the net operating loss carryforward to offset future taxable income is subject to special tax rules which may limit
their usage under IRS Section 382 (Change of Ownership) and possibly the Separate Return Limitation Year (“ SRLY ) rules.
A full valuation allowance has been provided against the Company’ s deferred tax assets at December 31, 2623-2024 as the
Company believes it is more likely than not that sufficient taxable income will not be generated to realize these temporary
differences. F=34-The Company has been notified and assessed an IRS Section 6038 penalty of $ 10, 000 for failure to file a
foreign entity tax disclosure. The Company has appealed the penalty and awaits the Internal Revenue Service’ s review of the
appeal. There is no assurance such appeal will be successful. The Company has not been audited by any jurisdiction since its
inception. The Company is open for audit by the U. S. Internal Revenue Service and U. S. state tax jurisdictions from 2826
2021 to 2623-2024 , and open for audit by the Chinese Ministry of Finance from 2649+462623-2020 to 2024 . There were no
material uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-20822-. The Company recognizes interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense, if any. The Company does not have any significant uncertain tax
positions or events leading to uncertainty in a tax position. F- 32 NOTE +4-15 — EQUITY The Company is authorized to issue
an aggregate of 496-100 , 000, 000 shares of common stock and 10, 000, 000 shares of ““ blank check ” preferred stock. Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock The Company designated up to 15, 000 shares of its previously undesignated preferred stock as
Series A Preferred Stock Each share of Series A Preferred Stock has a }’)dl value of b 0. 0001 per share and a stated value equal
to$ 1, 000. The ne-the-yearendedDeeembe e-Compan old4 = —000-shares of Series A
Preferred Stoek have 1dent1cal terms and mclude the terms as set forth below. D1v1dends The Series A Holders are
entitled to receive, and the Company shall pay, dividends on shares of Series A Preferred Stock equal (on an as- if-
converted- to- common- stock basis, disregarding for such purpose any conversion limitations set forth in the Series A
Certificate of Designations) to and in the same form as dividends actually paid on shares of the Company’ s common
stock when, as and if such dividends are paid on shares of the common stock. No other dividends shall be paid on shares
of Series A Preferred Stock. The Company will not pay any dividends on its common stock unless the Company
simultaneously complies with the terms set forth in the Series A Certificate of Designation. Liquidation. Upon any
dissolution, liquidation or winding- up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a “ Liquidation ”), the Series
A Holders will be entitled to reeeived— receive proeeeds-out of $-9-the assets available for distribution to the stockholders ,
006-(i) after and subject to the payment in full of all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or
series of stock of the Company ranking on liquidation prior and in preference to the Series A Preferred Stock ., 606-(ii)
ratably with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series A Preferred Stock and (iii) in
preference and priority to the holders of the shares of the Company’ s common stock, an amount equal to 100 % of the
Series A Stated Value, and no more, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the Series A
Preferred Stock are entitled to receive. The Company shall mail written notice of any Liquidation not less than twenty
(20) days prior to the payment date stated therein, to each Series A Holder. Conversion . Each share of Series A Preferred
Stock shall be convertible, at any time and from time to time from and after the later of (i) the date of the stockholder approval
as described above , in accordance with the Nasdaq Stock Market Listing Rules, and (ii) the nine (9) month anniversary of the
Closing (the “ Initial Conversion Date ™), at the option of the Series A Holder, into that number of shares of common stock
(subject to the limitations set forth in Series A Certificate of Designations, determined by dividing the Stated Value of such
share of Series A Preferred Stock by the Conversion Price (as defined below ) ). The Series A Holders may effect
conversions by providing the Company with the form of conversion notice attached as Annex A to the Series A
Certificate of Designation . The Series A Holders may convert such shares into shares of the Company’ s common stock at a
conversion price per share equal to the greater of (1) ter-one hundred fifty dollars ($ +6-150 . 0) and (i) ninety percent (90 %)
of the closing price of the Company’ s common stock on Nasdaq on the day prior to receipt of a conversion notice (collectively,
the * Conversion Price 7), subject to adjustment for stock splits and similar matters. Fhe-In addition, following the Initial
Conversion Date, each Series A Holder agrees that it shall not be entitled to in any calendar month, sell a number of
Series A Conversion Shares into the open market in an amount exceeding more than ten percent (10 %) of the number of
Series A Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock then held by such Series A Holder.
Conversion Price Adjustment: Stock Dividends and Stock Splits. If the Company evalaated-, at any time while the Series
A Preferred Stock is outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend or otherwise makes a distribution or distributions payable in
shares of common stock on shares of common stock or any other common stock equivalents (which, for aveidance of
doubt, shall not include any shares of common stock issued by the Company upon conversion of, or payment of a
dividend on, the Series A Preferred Stock), (ii) subdivides outstanding shares of common stock into a larger number of
shares, (iii) combines (including by way of a reverse stock split) outstanding shares of common stock into a smaller
number of shares, or (iv) issues, in the event of a reclassification of shares of the common stock, any shares of capital
stock of the Company, the-then features-of-the conversion price of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be multiplied by a
fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of common stock (excluding any treasury shares of the
Company) outstanding immediately before such event, and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of
common stock outstanding immediately after such event. Any of the foregoing adjustments shall become effective




immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution
and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination or re-
classification. F- 33 NOTE 15 — EQUITY (continued) Scriecs A Convertible Preferred Stock underASE480-(continued)
Conversion Price Adjustment: (continued) Fundamental Transaction. If , at any time while and-elassified-them-as
permanenteguity-beeause-the Series A Cenvertible-Preferred Stock is netmandatortty-outstanding, (i) the Company, directly
or eontingently-redeemable-atindirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the
Company with or into another individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated
association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision
thereof) or the-other steekholder-entity of any kind (a “ Person ”), (ii) the Company (and all of its subsidiaries, taken as a
whole), directly or indirectly, effects any sale, lease, license, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all
or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (iii) any, direct or indirect, purchase offer,
tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Company or another Person) is completed pursuant to which holders of
the Company ’ s eptien-common stock are permitted to sell, tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or
property and has been accepted by the holders of fifty percent (50 %) or more of the outstanding common stock, (iv) the
Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any reclassification, reorganization or
recapitalization of the common stock or any compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the common stock is
effectively converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property, or (v) the Company, directly or indirectly,
in one or more related transactions consummates a stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination
(including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin- off or scheme of arrangement) with another
Person whereby such other Person acquires more than fifty percent (50 %) of the outstanding shares of common stock
(not including any shares of common stock held by the other Person or other Persons making or party to, or associated
or affiliated with the other Persons making or party to, such stock or share purchase agreement or other business
combination) (each a “ Fundamental Transaction ), the-then , the Series A Holder shall have the right to receive, for
each conversion share that would have been issuable upon such conversion immediately prior to the occurrence of such
Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitation set forth in the Series A Certificate of Designation on the
conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock), the number of shares of common stock of the successor or acquiring
corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation, and / or any additional consideration (the “ Alternate
Consideration ”) receivable as a result of such Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of common
stock for which the Series A Preferred Stock is convertible immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction (without
regard to the limitations set forth in the Series A Certificate of Designation on the conversion of the Series A Preferred
Stock). For purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the Conversion Price shall be appropriately adjusted
to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one share
of common stock in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Conversion Price among the
Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the
Alternate Consideration. If holders of common stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or property to be
received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Series A Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate
Consideration it receives upon such Fundamental Transaction. Voting Rights. The Series A Holders will have no voting
rights, except as otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as long
as any shares of Series A Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company shall not, without the affirmative vote of the
holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, voting as a separate class, (a) alter or
change adversely the powers, preferences or rights given to the Series A Preferred Stock in the Series A Certificate of
Designation, (b) increase the number of authorized shares of Series A Preferred Stock, (c) authorize or issue an
additional class or series of capital stock that ranks senior to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the distribution
of assets on liquidation preferenee-thatexists-doesnotfalt-or (d) enter into any agreement within—- with the-guidanee-respect
to any of SEC-Aeeounting-the foregoing. Fractional Shares. No fractlonal shares or scrlp representmg fractlonal shares
shall be issued upon the conversion of the Serics A ReleaseNo A

Preferred Steelks-- Stock 2(-ASR2682). As to any fraction 0f a share of Company common stock whlch a Serles A
Holder would otherwise be entitled to upon such conversion, the Company will, at its election, either pay a cash
adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Conversion Price or
round up to the next whole share. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing shall prevent any Series A Holder from
converting fractional shares of Series A Preferred Stock . As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, 9, 000 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock were issued and outstanding . On January 9, 2025, the 9, 000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
were exchanged for S, 000 shares of Series D Preferred Stock of the Company (see Note 22 — Subsequent Events- Series

D Convertible Preferred Stock) . Series B Convertible Preferred Stock The Company designated up to 15, 000 shares of'its
previously undesignated preferred stock as Series B PIL erred Stock. Each share of Series B Pret ului Stock h.ls a p.u \.llue of §
0. 0001 per share and a stated value equal to $ 1, 000. F-34 © 4 3 hrares

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (continued) The shares of Series B Preferred Stock have identical terms and include
the terms as apart-set forth below. Dividends. The Series B Holders shall be entitled to receive, and the Company shall
pay, dividends on shares of eensiderationr-Series B Preferred Stock equal (on an as- if- converted- to- common- stock
basis, disregarding for such purpose any conversion limitations set forth in the purehase-of40-Scofequity-interestofLab
Serviees—- Series MSO-B Certificate of Designations) to and in the same form as dividends actually paid on shares of the
Company’ s common stock when, as and if such dividends are paid on shares of the common stock. No other dividends
shall be paid on shares of Series B Preferred Stock. The Company will not pay any dividends on its common stock unless



the Company simultaneously complies with the terms set forth in the Series B Certificate of Designation. Rank
is-will rank subordinate to the shares of the Company’ s Series A Preferred Stock. Liquidation.
Upon any Liquidation, the Series B Holders will be entitled to receive out of the assets available for distribution to
stockholders, (i) after and subject to the payment in full of all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of
another class or series of stock of the Company ranking on liquidation prior and in preference to the Series B Preferred
Stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on
parity with the Series B Preferred Stock and (iii) in preference and priority to the holders of the shares of common stock,
an amount equal to one hundred percent (100 %) of the Series B Stated Value and no more, in proportion to the full and
preferential amount that all shares of the Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive. The Company shall mail
written notice of any such Liquidation not less than twenty (20) days prior to the payment date stated therein, to each
Series B Holder. Conversion. Each share of Series B Preferred Stock shall be convertible, at any time and from time to
time from and after the later of (i) the date of the stockholder approval and (ii) the one year anniversary of the Closing
Date (the “ Lock Up Period ), at the option of the Series B Holder thereof, into that number of shares of common stock
(subject to the limitations set forth in Series B Certificate of Designation determined by dividing the Series B Stated
Value of such share of Series B Preferred Stock by the conversion price of the Series B Preferred Stock). Series B
Holders may effect conversions by providing the Company with the form of conversion notice attached as Annex A to the
Series B Certificate of Designation. The Series B Preferred Stock will be
3-56 . 78-70, subject to the adjustments set forth in the Series B Certificate
of Designation. Notwithstanding the foregoing or the transactions contemplated by the Amended MIPA, until the
consummation of the Lock Up Period, the Series B Holders shall not, directly or indirectly, sell, transfer or otherwise
dispose of any Series B Preferred Stock issued upon conversion of the Series B Conversion Shares or pursuant to the
Equity Earnout Payment (the “ Restricted Securities ) without Company’ s prior written consent; provided, however,
the Series B Holders may sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of Restricted Securities to an Affiliate aggregate-of2-, 9+6-as
defined in the Amended MIPA | 653-of a Series B Holder without Company’ s prior written consent; provided, further,
that such Series B Holder provide prompt written notice to Company of such transfer, including the name and contact
information of the Affiliate transferee, and such Affiliate transferee agrees in writing to be bound by the terms of the
transaction documents contemplated by the Amended MIPA to which the Series B Holder is a party (which agreement
shall also be provided to Company with such notice). After the expiration of the Lock Up Period, the Series B Holder
agrees that it and any of its Affiliate transferees shall not be entitled to in any calendar month, sell a number of of
Company common stock into the open market in an amount exceeding more than ten percent (10 %) of the total number
of shares of Company common stock issuable upon conversion of the Company common stock then held by the Seller
and its Affiliates. Stock Dividends and Stock Splits. If the Company, at any time while the Series B Preferred Stock is
outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend or otherwise makes a distribution or distributions payable in shares of common
stock on shares of common stock or any other common stock equivalents (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not
include any shares of common stock issued by the Company upon conversion of, or payment of a dividend on, the Series
B Preferred Stock), (ii) subdivides outstanding shares of common stock into a larger number of shares, (iii) combines
(including by way of a reverse stock split) outstanding shares of common stock into a smaller number of shares, or (iv)
issues, in the event of a reclassification of shares of the common stock, any shares of capital stock of the Company, then
the conversion price of the Series B Preferred Stock shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the
number of shares of common stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Company) outstanding immediately before
such event, and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of common stock outstanding immediately after
such event. Any of the foregoing adjustments shall become effective immediately after the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution and shall become effective immediately
after the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination or re- classification. F- 35 Conversion Price Adjustment:
(continued) Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while the Series B Preferred Stock is outstanding, (i) the
Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the Company
with or into another Person, (ii) the Company (and all of its subsidiaries, taken as a whole), directly or indirectly, effects
any sale, lease, license, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all of its assets in one
or a series of related transactions, (iii) any, direct or indirect, purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer (whether by
the Company or another Person) is completed pursuant to which holders and-are subjeet
permitted to sell, tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the
holders of fifty percent (S0 %) or more of the outstanding common stock, (iv) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one
or more related transactions effects any reclassification, reorganization or recapitalization of the common stock or any
compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the common stock is effectively converted into or exchanged for other
securities, cash or property, or (v) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions consummates
{eek—Fundamental Transaction, then, at the closing of such Fundamental Transaction, without any action on the part
of the Series B Holder, the Series B Holder shall have the right to receive, for each conversion share that would have
been issuable upon such conversion immediately prior to the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction (without
regard to any limitation in the Series B Certificate of Designation on the conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock), the
number of shares of common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving
corporation, and / or any Alternate Consideration receivable as a result of such Fundamental Transaction by a holder of
the number of shares of common stock for which the Series B Preferred Stock is convertible immediately prior to such
Fundamental Transaction (without regard to the limitations set forth in the Series B Certificate of Designation on the



conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock). For purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the conversion
price of the Series B Preferred Stock shall be appropriately adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on
the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one share of common stock in such Fundamental
Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Conversion Price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable
manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate Consideration. If holders of common
stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or property to be received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the
Series B Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon such Fundamental
Transaction. Voting Rights. The Series B Holders will have no voting rights, except as otherwise required by the
Delaware General Corporation Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in addition, as long as any shares of Series B
Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company shall not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the
then outstanding shares of the Series B Preferred Stock, voting as a separate class, (a) alter or change adversely the
powers, preferences or rights given to the Series B Preferred Stock in the Series B Certificate of Designation, (b) increase
the number of authorized shares of Series B Preferred Stock, (c) except with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock,
authorize or issue an additional class or series of capital stock that ranks senior to the Series B Preferred Stock with
respect to the distribution of assets on liquidation or (d) enter into any agreement with respect to any of the foregoing.
Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the
Series B Preferred Stock. As to any fraction of a share which a Series B Holder would otherwise be entitled to upon such
conversion, the Company shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount
equal to such fraction multiplied by the Conversion Price or round up period-and-restrietions-onsale(See Note—7
Investmentintaboratory-to the next whole share. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing shall prevent any Serviees—-
Series MSO;1EC)-B Holder from converting fractional shares of Series B Preferred Stock . As of December 31, 2024 and
2023, 11, 000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were issued and outstanding. On February 26, 2025, all shares of the
Company’ s Series B Convertible Preferred Stock were permanently surrendered and relinquished to the Company for
no additional consideration (see Note 22 — Subsequent Events- Redemption Agreement). On December 13, 2024, the
Company filed a certificate of designations of preferences, rights, and limitations of Series C Convertible Preferred
Stock (the “ Series C Certificate of Designations ) with the Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State
of Delaware, which provides for the designation of 10, 000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock of the Company, par value
$ 0. 0001 per share. Each share of Series C Preferred Stock has a stated value of $ 1, 000. The Series C Preferred Stock
shall rank (i) senior to the Company’ s common stock (the “ Common Stock ) and any other class or series of capital
stock of the Company created hereafter, the terms of which specifically provide that such class or series shall rank junior
to the Series C Preferred Stock, (ii) pari passu with any class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter
specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series C Preferred Stock, (iii) pari passu with Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company (the “ Series B Preferred Stock ) with respect to its rights, preferences and
restrictions, and (iv) subordinate to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the “ Series A Preferred
Stock 7). F- 35 NOTEH—EQUITY-36 Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (continucd) Holders of the Series C
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Company shall pay, dividends on shares of Series C Preferred Stock
equal (on an as- if- converted- to- Common - Stock basis, disregarding for such purpose any conversion limitations
hereunder) to and in the same form as dividends actually paid on shares of the Common Stock when, as and if such
dividends are paid on shares of the Common Stock. Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock have no voting power except
as otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding- up of
the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a “ Liquidation ”), the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to receive out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders, (i) after and subject to the payment in full of
all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or series of stock of the Company ranking on
liquidation prior and in preference to the Series C Preferred Stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably
with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series C Preferred Stock and (iii) in preference
and priority to the holders of the shares of Common Stock, an amount equal to 100 % of the Stated Value of the Series C
Preferred Stock, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the Series C Preferred Stock are
entitled to receive. Each share of Series C Preferred Stock shall be convertible into Common Stock (the “ Conversion
Shares ) at a conversion per share equal to $ 2. 41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the later of (i) the date of
the shareholder approval of the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and
(ii) the one year anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of the Series C Preferred Stock. In addition,
the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series C Preferred Stock if, after giving effect to the
conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 19. 99 % of the number of shares
of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the respective Conversion Shares. As
of December 31, 2024, 3, 500 shares of Series C Preferred Stock were issued and outstanding. Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock Issued for Equity Method Investment On February 9, 2023, the Company issued 11, 000 shares of its
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock as a part of consideration for the purchase of 40 % of equity interest of Lab
Services MSO. The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into shares of the Company’ s common stock at a conversion
price per share equal to $ 56. 70, which approximated the market price at the date of closing, or an aggregate of 194, 004
shares of the Company’ s common stock and are subject to a lock— up period and restrlctlons on sale Serles C
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, Jefferies-the Company sold an aggregate of +7-3 , 864-500 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred stock and received
proceeds of $ 3, 500, 000. Each share of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into common stock of the
Company (the “ Conversion Shares ”) at a conversion an-average-priee-of-$7-9-per share equal to investors-and-the
Companyrecordednet-proeeeds-of-$ H2-2. 41 , which approximated 328;net-of eommiission-and-other—- the offering-eosts
market price at the date of transaction $23-, 239—Fhe-Open-at the option of the holder, at any time after the later of (i)
the date of the shareholder approval of the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock
Market (Sale-AgreementSM-was-terminatecin2023—On-Aungust-5;2622the Company-setd-32,-05+“ Shareholder Approval
) and (ii) the one year anmversary of the date 0f the ﬁrst issuance of any shares of ﬁs—eemrneﬁ—the Series C Convertible

at-a-p subserip o . The Company
reeetved-proeceds-evaluated the features of -$—2§9—the Serles C Convertlble Preferred Stock under ASC 480 , and classified

066-OnAugtst5,2022the-them Company-sold-44;:872-shares-of its-eommernras permanent equity because the Series C
Convertlble Preferred steeleStock is not mandatorlly or contlngently redeemable at a—purehas&pﬂe&eFSJ—S-pefshare—l

Gemp&ny—eﬂtered-mte—a—sales—agreeme&t—ellquldatlon preference that ex1sts does not fall w1th1n th guldance of SEC
Accountlng Series Release No. 268 — Presentatlon in F manclal Statements 0f -Sa-lesﬁgreemeﬁt—Redeemable Preferred

46487+, Common Shares Issued as Conv uuble Note Pd\dblL (ommllmem Fee Dullll” the year uulul December 31, 7()7"
the Company issued a total of +76-11 , 666-333 shares of its common stock as commitment fee for the purchases of May 2023
eonvertible-Convertible rote-Note , July 2023 Convertible Note, and October 2023 Convertible Note . These shares were
valued at § 236, 400, the fair market values on the grant dates using the reported closing share prices on the dates of grant, and
the Company recorded it as debt discount. OnFaty25-During the year ended December 31 , 26222024 , the Company and
issued a total of 33, 800 shares of its common stock as commitment fee for the purchase of March 26222024 Convertible
Note helder-and June 2024 Convertible Note. These shares were valued at $ 320, 546, the fair market value on the grant
dates using the reported closing share prices on the dates of grant, and the Company recorded it as debt discount. F- 37
Common Shares Sold for Cash In June 2023, the Company cntered into a Cenverstonrsales agreement (the « Sales
Agreement parsuantto-”’) with Roth Capital Partners, LLC (“ Roth ”) under which the investoreenverted-Company may
offer and sell from time to time shares of its Convertible Notes-in-the-prineipal-amount-common stock having an aggregate
offering price of up to $ 3 . S million. During the year ended December 31 , 7482023 , 943-Roth sold and-- an aggregate
unpatd-nterest-of 30 $9-, 442 F5inteo-573;-645-shares of common stock efthe-Company-at a-an average price of $ 20. 85 per
share to investors and the priee-of$-6—-5-(see Note-9)The-Company recorded net proceeds aeonversionindueementehargeof
$ 344-414 , 396, net 264-as-a-result-of commission and the-other ConversionrAgreenent-offering costs of $ 220 , representing
99S. During the vatue-year ended December 31, 2024, Roth sold an aggregate of 281, 843 shares of common stock at an
average price issted-upon-eonverstorrinexeess-of § 10. 14 per share to investors and thc Company recorded net proceeds
of $ 2, 544, 311, net of eommon-commission and steekissuable-under-the-other originat-terms-offering costs of the2622
ConvertibleNote-$ 313, 541 . Common Shares Issued for Services During the year ended December 31 Pursuantto-Related
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theEine-of 24 Gred-rt—aﬂd—tmpa-td—m-terest—e%% 089 3—3—l—by—tsstt&ﬂee-e-f—444—399—slmles of 1ts common \toek for services

rendered ofthe-Compan OWHHE arty Re dity-. The-These shares were valued at
teta-l—&mettrtt—e-ﬁt-he—debﬁsett-led—e#% 2—999 -8-8-8—655 593—e7eeeeeled—lhe air mar l\uva-lue—values ofon the grant dates using the
reported closing share prices on the dates of grant, and the Company recorded stock- based compensation expense of $
834, 784 for the year ended December 31, 2023 and reduced accrued liabilities of $ 164, 871. During the year ended
December 31, 2024, the Company issued a total of 145, 153 shares of its common stock for services rendered. These
shares were valued at $ 530, 350, the fair market values on the grant dates using the reported closing share prices on the
dates of grant, and the Company recorded stock- based compensation expense of $ 470, 350 for the year ended December
31, 2024 and reduced accrued liabilities of $ 60, 000. Common Shares Issued for Warrant Exercise On November 18,
2024, the Company issucd by42, 381 shares of its common stock upon cashless exercise of warrants to purchase 6, 278
shares of common stock. Common Shares Issued for Adjustment for 1: 15 Reverse Split The Company issued 206, 033
shares of its common stock, resulting from the rounding up of the fractional shares at the one- for- fifteen reverse stock
split effected on October 28, 2024. Pre- Funded Warrants Issued for Debt Modification On December 15, 2024, the
Company issued to Mast Hill a common stock purchase warrant for the purchase of up to 150, 000 shares of the
Company’ s common stock. The Pre- Funded Warrants are immediately exercisable at issuance and until the Pre-



Funded Warrants are exercised in full and have an exercise price of $ 888;353-whieh-was-treated-0. 01 per share. The Pre-
Funded Warrants were classified as a eapital-transaetion-due-to-Mr—Ew’srelationship-with-component of permanent equity
as they are freestanding financial instrument that is immediately exercisable, does not embody an obligation for the
Company to repurchase its own shares and permit the holder to receive a fixed number of shares of common stock upon
exercise . F36-The following table summarizes the shares of the Company’ s common stock issuable upon exercise of options
outstanding at December 31, 2623-2024 : Options Outstanding Options Exercisable Range of Exercise Price Number
Outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (Years) Weighted Average Exercise
Price Number Exercisable at December 31, 2623-2024 Weighted Average Exercise Price $ 6-2 . 59-93 — 31. 20 20, 198 3. 54 $
14.76 14,591 $ 16. 38 48. 75 — 123. 00 20, 517 2. 04 78 681490664~ 6+91 20, 517 78. 91 154. 50 — 289. 50 11, 764 3. 44
218.21 11, 764 218. 21 S +2 . 72-69-93 — 289. 50 52 , 333479 2. 93 § +85 . 45 46 88-3-25—=8-20-307, 872 863304526
Wm% B-59—20-00-853;:3632-75-$9-94 F73-636-516-. 86-41
F- 38 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Options (continued) Stock option activity for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was and-20622-were-as follows: Number of Options Weighted Average Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 20222023 772-53 , 566-357 $ +4-195 . 4845 Granted 86-12 , 660-6-452 35 . 59-25 Expired (588,
666-929 ) (22-267 . 79-90 ) Outstanding at December 31, 2022-2023 §66-56 , 566-13-880 149 . 03 Granted +86-10 , $632-265 4
.35-13 Expired (43414 ,860-666 ) (+7275 . 86-14 ) Outstanding at December 31, 2623-2024 §53-52 , 363479 § 9-85 . 9445
Options exercisable at December 31, 2623-2024 773-46 , 636-872 $ 94. 41 Options expected to vest 5, 607 $ 10. 56 86-Optiens
expeeted-to-vest79-667-$1--5FThe aggregate intrinsic value of bethstock options outstanding and stock options exercisable at
December 31, 2623-2024 was approximately $ 6-1, 900 an $ 900, respectively . The fair values of options granted during the
year ended December 31, 2024 were estimated at the date of grant using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the
following assumptions: volatility of 83. 10 %- 96. 36 %, risk- free rate of 3. 47 %- 4. 79 %, annual dividend yield of 0 %,
and expected life of 3. 00- 5. 00 years. The aggregate fair value of the options granted during the year ended December
31, 2024 was $ 28, 694. The fair values of options granted during the year ended December 31, 2023 were estimated at the
date of grant using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions: volatility of 79. 76 %- 96. 37 %,
risk- free rate of 3. 58 %- 4. 76 %, annual dividend yield of 0 %, and expected life of 3. 00- 5. 00 years. The aggregate fair value

of the options granted during the year ended December 3 , 2023 was b 319, 380. For?he—fa-rﬁa-lﬁeshe%epﬁeﬂs—gfaﬂfed-&tmg
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vas—d 0 5 2072 ﬁﬂd—292—2— stod( dsed compematlon expense
assouated w 1th stod( optlons Granted dmounted to $ 51, 159 and $ 284, 977 and-, of which, $ 358-19 , 878 and H3;-efwhieh;-$
172, 943 and-$234;-856-was recorded as compensation and related benefits, $ 31,281 and $ 106, 565 ﬁﬂd—$-84—964-\x as
recorded as professional fees, and $ 0 and $ 5, 469 and-$-39,493-was recorded as research and development expenses,
respectively. F—37-Options{eontinted)-A summary of the status of the Company’ s nonvested stock options granted as of
December 31, 2023-2024 and changes during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-is presented below:
Number of Options Weighted Average Exercise Price Nonvested at January 1, 2022-2023 26-1 , 583-334 $ +6-64 . 39-35
Granted 86-12 , 666-6-452 35 . 59-25 Vested ( 86;583H+8 , 475) (47 . 63-14 ) Nonvested at December 31, 2622-2023 26-5 , 666
311 23. 55 Granted 10, 265 4. 13 29-Granted186;-803235-Vested (1279 , 436969 ) ( 3-10 . +4-90 ) Nonvested at December
31,2623-2024 79-5 , 667607 $ +10 . 5756 F- 39 Warrants (Except Pre- Funded Warrants) The following table summarizes
the shares of the Company’ s common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 :
Warrants Outstanding Warrants Exercisable Range of Exercise Price Number Outstanding at December 31, 2623-2024
Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (Years) Weighted Average Exercise Price Number Exercisable at December 31,
2623-2024 Weighted Average Exercise Price $ 47 . 86-50 — 37. 50 165, 510 4. 40 $ 10. 50 85, 510 $ 13. 31 67. 50 9, 222 3. 40
67.509,222 67.50 187.50 8,264 2. 30 187. 50 2066-8 , 264 187 960-4—78-$220-H3;460-$2-50-320—4-50-320,663 443
3—93—1—7-9—9984%9—1—2%9—1—2—3—964—3—34—1—2%9—1—2—3—96‘% 50 $+7 .86-50 - +2-187 . 50 645-182 , 527996 4. 25 $ 21. 37
102, 996 $ 32 $5-. 13 94-417362-$-6-33-Stock warrant activity for the years ended December 31 2024 and 2023 was and
2022-were-as follows: Number of Warrants Weighted Average Exercise Price Outstanding at Jdnuary 1,2622-2023 8,264 $ -
187. 50 Issued 4+23-34 , 964142-771 48 . 56-90 Outstanding at December 31, 2022-2023 43, 035 75. 53 Issued 169, 527 10. 28
Cancelled (*) (423— 23 , 96412-288) (32 . 85) Exercised (6, 278) ( 50 Issted-5245-5633- 26-77) Outstanding at December 31,
2023-2024 645-182 , 527996 $ 5-21 . 6437 Warrants exercisable at December 31, 2623-2024 447102 , 362996 $ 6-32 . 33-13
Warrants expected to vest 228-80 , +65-000 $ 2-7 . 66-50 * Second Warrant, which was issued on May 23, 2023, July 6,
2023, October 9, 2023, and March 7, 2024, was cancelled in June 2024. Second Warrant, which was issued on June 5,
2024, is still outstanding as of December 31, 2024. The aggregate intrinsic value of both stock warrants outstanding and stock
warrants exercisable at December 31, 2623-2024 was § 0. F—38-Warrants-(eentinged)-Warrants [ssued in May OaMareh28;
2622-2023 In connection —ﬂ%e—Gemp&f@Leﬂfefed—rr&e—Seeﬂﬂ&es—Pﬁfehaseﬁgfeemefﬁ—w ith the issuance of May an-aeereditec
vestorwhich-was-amended-ontune82022-2023 5 o-for-the s Any . efa-Convertible
Note Hrthe-ameunt-of $3748;943-( See %GQ%Geﬁveﬂ-tb}e—Note )—}ﬂ—&édtﬁeﬁ—te—t-heéea%eeﬁvef&b}e—Ne’fe— the
vestor-alsereeetved-Company issued (i) a Steelk-warrant to Pufehase—purchase 8 Warrant-(“2022-Warrant-)-to-aequire-an
aggregate-of 123-, 964-333 shares of common stock with —Fhe-2022-Warrantis-exereisableforfive-years-at-an exercise price of
$ 42-67 . 5-50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023, and (ii) a warrant to purchase 7, 033 shares of
common stock with an exercise price of $ 48. 00 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023, which
warrant was never fair valued and was cancelled and extinguished against payment of the May 2023 Convertible Note,
to Mast Hill; and issued a warrant to purchase 667 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 67. 50 exercisable




until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023 to a third party as a finder’ s fee. Based upon the Company’ s analysis of
the criteria contained in ASC 815, the Company determined that all the warrants issued to Mast Hill and a third party
as a finder’ s fee meet the definition of derivative liability, as the Company cannot avoid a net cash settlement under
certain circumstances. Accordingly, the fair value of the 9, 000 warrants with an exercise price of $ 67. 50 exercisable
until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023 was classified as derivative liability on May 23, 2023 . The fair values of
the 9, 000 warrants with an exercise price of $ 67. 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23, 2023 issued on
May 23, 2023 to-the-inrvestor-with-this-private-plaecement-were computed using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with
the following assumptions: stock price of $ 29. 40, volatility of H44-88 . 94-80 %, risk- free rate 0f 2-3 . 76 H-%—2-92-%,
annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. F- 40 Warrants (Except Pre- Funded Warrants) (continued)
Warrants Issued in May 2023 (continued) The warrants with an exercise price of $ 67. 50 exercisable until the five- year
anniversary of May 23, 2023 issued to the-rvestor-Mast Hill to purchase 423-8 , 964-333 shares of the Company’ s common
stock were treated as a dlqcount on the convertlble note payable and were Valued at § 498-127 , 599—654 and were had—beeﬁ
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fee—to—pttreh&se—l—@—@@@—%harei of the Company s common qtock were treated as Convertlble debt issuance costs and were valued
at $ 11, 162 and were willbe-amortized over the term of the May 2023 Convertible Note. Warrants Issued in July 2023 In
connection with the issuance of July 2023 Convertible Note (See Note 9-10 ), the Company issued (i) a warrant to purchase 442
, 665-778 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6,
2023, and (ii) a warrant to purchase 35-2 , +65-344 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 3-48 . 26-00 exercisable
until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023, which warrant shalt-be-was never fair valued and was cancelled and
extinguished against payment of the July 2023 Convertible Note, to Firstfire; and issued a warrant to purchase 222 3;333-shares
of common stock with an exercise price of $ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023 to a third party
as a finder’ s fee. F—39-WarrantsIssuedindualy2023(eontinted)-Based upon the Company’ s analysis of the criteria contained
in ASC 815, the Company determined that all the warrants issued to Firstfire and a third party as a finder’ s fee meet the
dehmtlon of denvatlve hablhty, as the Company cannot avoid a net ca@h settlement under certain circumstances. Accordlngly,
§ steh-the fair

anmversaly of July 6 2023 was claiqmed as denvatlve 11ab111ty on July 6, 2023 The fair Valueq ofthe 44-3 ,998-000 warrants
with an exercise price of $ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023 issued on July 6, 2023 were
computed using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 421 . 4230,
volatility of 88. 52 %, risk- free rate of 4. 37 %, annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. The warrants with an
exercise price of $ 4-67 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023 issued to Firstfire to purchase 442 , 665
778 shares of the Company’ s common stock were treated as a discount on the convertible note payable and were valued at $ 28,
691 and were willbe-amortized over the term of the July 2023 Convertible Note. The warrants with an exercise price of $ 4-67 .
50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of July 6, 2023 issued to a third party as a finder’ s fee to purchase 222 3;333
shares of the Company’ s common stock were treated as convertible debt issuance costs and were valued at $ 2, 435 and were
sybe-amortized over the term of the July 2023 Convertible Note. Warrants Issued in October 2023 In connection with the
issuance of October 2023 Convertible Note (See Note 9-10 ), the Company issued (i) a warrant to purchase +85-7 , 000 shares of
common stock with an exercise price of $ 2-37 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023, (ii) a warrant
to purchase 87-5 , 500-834 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 427 . 88-00 exercisable until the five- year
anniversary of October 9, 2023, which warrant shal-be-was never fair valued and was cancelled and extinguished against
payment of the October 2023 Convertible Note, to Mast Hill and Firstfire; and issued a warrant to purchase 560 8;486-shares of
common stock with an exercise price of $ 237 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 to a third
party as a finder’ s fee. Based upon the Company’ s analysis of the criteria contained in ASC 815, the Company determined that
all the warrants issued to Mast Hill and Firstfire and a third party as a finder’ s fee meet the defmltlon of a derivative liability, as
the Company cannot avoid a net cash %ettlement under certain circumstances. Accordmgly,Man&gemeﬁt—&e’eefnﬂﬂed—ﬂ&e
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of October 9 2023 was claiqlﬁed asa derlvatlve hablhty on October 9 2023 The fair Valueq of the H3-7 , 499—560 Warrant%
with an exercise price of $ 237 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 issued on October 9, 2023
were computed using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions: stock price of $ 8-11 . 755,



volatility of 89. 70 %, risk- free rate of 4. 75 %, annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years. The warrants with an
exercise price of § 2-37 . 50 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of October 9, 2023 issued to Mast Hill and Firstfire to
purchase +85-7 , 000 shares of the Company’ s common stock were treated as a discount on the convertible note payable and
were valued at $ 39, 848 and were willtbe-amortized over the term of the October 2023 Convertible Note. F- 41 Warrants
Issued in October 2023 (continued) The warrants with an exercise price of $ 2-37 . 50 exercisable until the five- year
anniversary of October 9, 2023 issued to a third party as a finder’ s fee to purchase 560 $;488-shares of the Company’ s
common stock were treated as convertible debt issuance costs and were valued at $ 3, 380 and .Based upon the Company’ s
analysis of the criteria contained in ASC 815,the Company determined that all the warrants issued to Mast Hill and a third party
as a finder’ s fee meet the definition of a-derivative liability,as the Company cannot avoid a net cash settlement under certain
circumstances.Management determined the probability of failing to make an amortization payment when due to be remote and
as such the fair value of the 88-105 , 800-warrants-with-anexereisepriee-of$750-500 warrants with an exeretsable—--

exercise price unti-the-five—year-anniversary-of June-5-$ 3.20 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of May 23 | 2624
2023 ,which warrant shall be cancelled and extinguished against payment of the Fane-May 2624-2023 Convertible Note haq
been estimated to be zero.Accordingly,the fair value of the #2-135 ,000 warrants with an exercise price of $ 9-4 . #5-50
exercisable until the five- year anniversary of Jane-5-May 23 , 2624-2023 was classified as a-derivative liability on Jare-5-May
23 ,2024-2023 .The fair values of the 72-135 ,000 warrants with an exercise price of $ 94 . #5-50 exercisable until the five- year
anniversary of Jane-5-May 23 , 2624-2023 issued on June-5-May 23 | 2624-2023 were computed using the Black- Scholes
option- pricing model with the following assumptions:stock price of $ +8-1 . 39-96 ,volatility of 85-88 . 72-80 %,risk- free rate of
43 . 3176 %,annual dividend yield of 0 % and expected life of 5 years.The warrants with an exercise price of $ 9-4 . 75-50
exercisable until the five- year anniversary of Fare-5-May 23 , 2624-2023 issued to Mast Hill te-will be amortized over the term
of the June 2024 Convertible Note. F- 42 Warrants Issued in June 2024 (continued) The warrants with an exercise price
of $ 9. 75 exercisable until the five- year anniversary of June 5, 2024 issued to a third party as a finder’ s fee to purchase
5, 333 shares of the Company’ s common stock were treated as convertible debt issuance costs and were valued at $ 39,
221 and will be amortized over the term of the June 2024 Convertible Note. Warrants Cancelled in June 2024 As of June
5, 2024, the Company paid in full of its outstanding May 2023 Convertible Note, July 2023 Convertible Note, October
2023 Convertible Note , and March 2024 Convertible Note and cancelled 23, 288 warrants since these convertible notes
were fully extinguished . F46-Warrants Issued-Exercised in Oetober-November 2623-2024 teontinted)-On November 18,
2024, 6, 278 warrants were cashless exercised. A summary of the status of the Company’ s nonvested stock warrants issued as
of December 31, 2023-2024 and changes during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was and-2022-4s-presented
below: Number of Warrants Weighted Average Exercise Price Nonvested at January 1, 20222023 - § - Issued 423-34 , 96412
771 48 . 5690 Vested (423-19 , 964-(12--56-560 ) 55. 95 Nonvested at December 31, 2622-2023 —$-15, 211 39. 90 Issued 52+
169 . 563-3-527 10 . 26-28 Cancelled (23, 288) (32. 85) Vested (293-81 , 398450 ) (3-12 . 73-10 ) Nonvested at December 31,
2023-2024 228-80 , +65-000 $ 2-7 . 66-50 NOTE +5—16- STATUTORY RESERVE AND RESTRICTED NET ASSETS The
Company’ s PRC subsidiary, Avalon Shanghai, is restricted in its ability to transfer a portion of its net asset to the Company.
The payment of dividends by entities organized in China is subject to limitations, procedures and formalities. Regulations in the
PRC currently permit payment of dividends only out of accumulated profits as determined in accordance with accounting
standards and regulations in China. The Company is required to make appropriations to certain reserve funds, comprising the
statutory surplus reserve and the discretionary surplus reserve, based on after- tax net income determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles of the PRC (“ PRC GAAP 7). Appropriations to the statutory surplus reserve are
required to be at least 10 % of the after- tax net income determined in accordance with PRC GAAP until the reserve is equal to
50 % of the entity’ s registered capital. Appropriations to the discretionary surplus reserve are made at the discretion of the
Board of Directors. The statutory reserve may be applied against prior year losses, if any, and may be used for general business
expansion and production or increase in registered capital, but are not distributable as cash dividends. The Company did not
make any appropriation to statutory reserve for Avalon Shanghai during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022-as it incurred net loss in the periods. As of both December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, the restricted amount as
determined pursuant to PRC statutory laws totaled $ 6, 578. Relevant PRC laws and regulations restrict the Company’ s PRC
subsidiary, Avalon Shanghai, from transferring a portion of its net assets, equivalent to its statutory reserve and its share capital,
to the Company’ s shareholders in the form of loans, advances or cash dividends. Only PRC entity’ s accumulated profit may be
distributed as dividend to the Company’ s shareholders without the consent of a third party. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022-, total restricted net assets amounted to $ 1, 486206, 578 and $ 1, 886-106 , 578, respectively. F-43 NOTE +6-17 -
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST As of December 31, 2023-2024 , Dr. Yu Zhou, former director and former co- chief
executive officer of Genexosome, who owns 40 % of the equity interests of Genexosome, which is not under the Company’ s
control. During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2622-, the Company did not allocate any net loss and foreign
currency translation adjustment to the noncontrolling interest holder due to its inability to satisfy these deficits. NOTE +7+18 —
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY Pursuant to the requirements of Rule 12- 04 (a),
5- 04 (c) and 4- 08 (e) (3) of Regulation S- X, the condensed financial information of the parent company shall be filed when
the restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiary exceed 25 pereent-% of consolidated net assets as of the end of the most
recently completed fiscal year. For purposes of this test, restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiary shall mean that amount
of the Company’ s proportionate share of net assets of consolidated subsidiary (after intercompany eliminations) which as of the
end of the most recent fiscal year may not be transferred to the parent company by subsidiary in the form of loans, advances or
cash dividends without the consent of a third party. The Company performed a test on the restricted net assets of consolidated
subsidiary in accordance with such requirement and concluded that it was not applicable to the Company as the restricted net
assets of the Company’ s PRC subsidiary did not exceed 25 % of the consolidated net assets of the Company, therefore, the



condensed financial statements for the parent company have not been required. F=<4+NOTE +§—19- CONCENTRATIONS
Customers The following table sets forth information as to each customer that accounted for 10 % or more of the Company’ s
revente-revenues for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022-. Years Ended December 31, Customer 2024
2023 2022-A 29 % 30 % 3+B 17 % B-18 % 49-C 11 % €-12 % One 3-%TFwo-eustomers— customer , ef=which -enetsa
related-party-and-the-other-is a third party, whose outstanding receivable accounted for 10 % or more of the Company’ s total
outstanding rent receivable at December 31, 2623-2024 , accounted for 86-76 . 69 % of the Company’ s total outstanding rent
receivable at December 31, 2623-2024 . Two customers, of which sone is a related party and the other is a third party, whose
outstanding reeetvable-receivables accounted for 10 % or more of the Company’ s total outstanding rent receivable at
December 31, 2622-2023 , accounted for $+80 . 4-6 % of the Company’ s total outstanding rent receivable at December 31,
%92—2—2023 Suppliers No supplier accounted for 10 % or more of the Company’ s purchase during the years ended December

1,2024 and 2023 a-nd%@%%— NOTE -1-9—20 SEGMENT INFORMATION The For-the-year-ended-Deeember 31,2622 the

y 3 y ating-scgment reporting structure uses sane

(—29—the medieal—fe}aﬁd-eeﬁst&&ﬂg—seﬁ‘iees—segfneﬂ-t—?he{ ompany’ s fepeﬁab-}e—segmeﬁts—afe—management reporting
structure as its foundation to reflect how the Company manages the businesses internally. The management reporting
structure is composed of two strategic business umts fh&t—effefdtffefeﬂt— mamly orgamzed by serv ices a-nd—pfe&uefs.—’llhey

Pres1dent and ehtef—Chlef Executlve Ofﬁcer, who is 1ts Chlef Operatmg Declslon Maker. Usmg the accountlng guidance
on segment reporting, the Company determined that its two opcrating deeiston-makernotongerreviews-mediealrelated
eonsultingserviees-operating results-segments are aligned with its two reportable segments corresponding to its strategic
business units . F- 44 NOTE 20 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) On February 9, 2023, the Company purchased
40 % of Lab Services MSO. Commencing from the purchase date, February 9, 2023, the Company is-was active in the
management of Lab Services MSO. During the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company operated in two
reportable business segments: (1) the real property operating segment, and (2) laboratory testing services segment (which
commenced with the purchase date, February 9, 2023) since Lab Services MSO’ s operating results are regularly reviewed by
the Company’ s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance. The Company regularly reviews the operating results and performance of Lab Services MSO, which is the
Company’ s an-equity method investee. F—42-NOTE+9-See Note 22 — Subsequent Events — Redemption Agreement. The
accounting policies for the segments are the same as those described in Note 3. Our reportable segments are aligned
principally around the differences in services. Real property operating income is calculated by subtracting real property
operating expenses from real property rental revenue; loss from equity method investment - SEGMENT
INFORMATON|eontined)-Lab Services MSO is calculated by subtracting amortization of intangible assets acquired
from acquisition and impairment of goodwill acquired from acquisition and distribution of earnings from equity
investment from the Company’ s share of Lab Services MSO’ s net income. The assets and certain expenses related to
corporate activities are not allocated to the segments. [nformation with respect to these reportable business segments for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-was as follows: Year Ended December 31, 2024 Real Property
Operations Lab Services MSO Corporate / Other Total Real property rental revenue $ 1, 333, 403 $- $- $ 1, 333, 403 Real
property operating expenses (1, 065, 574)-- (1, 065, S74) Real property operating income 267, 829-- 267, 829 Loss from
equity method investment- Lab Services MSO- (846, 588)- (846, 588) Other operating expenses (354, 311)- (3, 994, 662)
(4, 348, 973) Other (expense) income: Interest expense (777, 228)- (1, 659, 745) (2, 436, 973) Other expense (80)- (538, 609)
(538, 689) Net loss $ (863, 790) $ (846, 588) $ (6, 193, 016) $ (7, 903, 394) Year Ended December 31, 2023 Real Property
Operations Lab Services MSO Corporate / Other Total Real property rental revenue $ 1, 255, 681 $- $-$ 1, 255, 681 Real
property operating expenses (1, 017, 493)-- (1, 017, 493) Real property operating income 238, 188-- 238, 188 Loss from equity
method investment- Lab Services MSO- (8, 571, 647)- (8, 571, 647) Other operating expenses (347, 356)- (7, 072, 868) (7, 420,
224) Other (expense) income: Interest expense (918, 885)- (432, 617) (1, 351, 502) Other income 15- 398, 160 398, 175 Net loss
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December 31, 2023 Real plopelty operatlons $7, 2—1—1—034 641335 5 7, 367211 . 641

468-Corporate / Other 1,298 17, 846 430;-6143-Total § 7, 229035 , 487633 § 7, 498-229 , 38+487 Identifiable long- lived
tangible assets at December 31, 2023-2024 and 2022 Beeember34,-2023 December 31, 2022-2024 December 31, 2023 United
States § 7, 227034 , 533-335 § 7,393-227 , 367533 China 1, 298 1, 954 +65;074-Total $ 7, 229-035 , 487633 § 7, 498-229 ,
487 38+F-43-NOTE 26-21 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINCENGIES-CONTINGENCIES From time to time, the
Company is subject to ordinary routine litigation incidental to its normal business operations. The Company is not
currently a party to, and its property is not subject to, any material legal proceedings, except as set forth below. On
October 25, 2017, Genexosome entered into and closed a Stock Purchase Agreement with Beijing Genexosome and Yu
Zhou, MD, PhD, the sole shareholder of Beijing Genexosome, pursuant to which Genexosome acquired all of the issued
and outstanding securities of Beijing Genexosome in consideration of a cash payment in the amount of $ 450, 000, of
which §$ 100, 000 is still owed. Further, on October 25, 2017, Genexosome entered into and closed an Asset Purchase



Agreement with Dr. Zhou, pursuant to which the Company acquired all assets, including all intellectual property and
exosome separation systems, held by Dr. Zhou pertaining to the business of researching, developing and commercializing
exosome technologies. In consideration of the assets, Genexosome paid Dr. Zhou $ 876, 087 in cash, transferred 3, 333
shares of common stock of the Company to Dr. Zhou and issued Dr. Zhou 400 shares of common stock of Genexosome.
Further, the Company had not been able to realize the financial projections provided by Dr. Zhou at the time of the
acquisition and has decided to impair the intangible asset associated with this acquisition to zero. Dr. Zhou was
terminated as Co- CEO of Genexosome on August 14, 2019. Further, on October 28, 2019, Research Institute at
Nationwide Children’ s Hospital (“ Research Institute ”) filed a Complaint in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Ohio Eastern Division against Dr. Zhou, Li Chen, the Company and Genexosome with various
claims against the Company and Genexosome. The criminal proceedings against Dr. Zhou and Li Chen have been
concluded. The Company, Genexosome and the Research Institute entered into a Settlement Agreement dated June 7,
2022 (the “ Settlement Date ”’) whereby the Company agreed to pay the Research Institute $ 450, 000 on each of the
sixty- day, one year and two- year anniversaries of the Settlement Date. In addition, the Company agreed to pay the
Research Institute 30 % of the Company’ s initial pre- tax profit of $ 3, 333, 333, 20 % of the Company’ s second pre- tax
profit of $ 3, 333, 333 and 10 % of the Company’ s third pre- tax profit of $ 3, 333, 333. The parties provided a mutual
release as well. As of December 31, 2024, the accrued litigation settlement amounted to $ 373, 450. F- 46 NOTE 21 —
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) Operating Leases Commitment The Company is a party to leases
for office space. These lease agreements wil-expire-expired through February 2025. Rent expense under all operating leases
amounted to approximately $ 127, 000 and $ 129 98088-ard-$+4- 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2622, respectively. Supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022-is as follows: Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities: Operating cash flows paid for operating lease $ 125, 076 $ 125, 929 $356,577-Right- of- use assets obtained in
exchange for lease obligation: Operating lease $ - $ 235, 893 $—The following table summarizes the lease term and discount rate
for the Company’ s operating lease as of December 31, 2623-2024 : Operating Lease Weighted average remaining lease term (in
years) +0 . 08 Weighted average discount rate 11. 0 % The following table summarizes the maturity of lease liabilities under
operating lease as of December 31, 2623-2024 : For the Year Ending December 31: Operating Lease 2024-2025 § 136-10 , 863
753 2625-2026 4;-966-and thereafter- Total lease payments +4+10 , 763-753 Amount of lease payments representing interest (
44 7:452-) Total present value of operating lease liabilities (current liability) $ +34-10 , 709 F 251-Currentportion$129,396
Fong—- 47 termporton4,-855Fetal- $134,251-Joint Venture — Avactis Biosciences Inc. On July 18, 2018, the Company formed

a Wholly owned subsidiary, Avactis Biosciences Inc. (* Avactis ”’), a Nevada corporation, which focuses on accelerating
commercial activities related to cellular therapies as well as cellular immunotherapy including CAR- T, CAR- NK, TCR- T and
others. When formed, Avactis was designed to integrate and optimize the Company’ s global scientific and clinical resources to
further advance the use of cellular therapies to treat certain cancers, however the Company is no longer pursuing any
commercial activities with respect to cellular immunotherapy and CAR- T, in particular. As of April 6, 2022, the Company owns
60 % of Avactis and Arbele Biotherapeutics Limited (“ Arbele Biotherapeutics ) owns 40 % of Avactis. Avactis owns 100 % of
the capital stock of Avactis Nanjing Biosciences Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC on May 8, 2020 (“ Avactis Nanjing
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Ob 0 dh-Jotn siae e At The Company is required to contribute $
10 mlll1on (01 equivalent in RMB) in cash and / or services, which shall be contributed in tranches based on milestones to be
determined jointly by Avactis and the Company in writing subject to the Company’ s cash reserves. Within 30 days, Arbele
Biotherapeutics shall make contribution of $ 6. 66 million in the form of entering into a License Agreement with Avactis
granting Avactis an exclusive right and license in China to its technology and intellectual property pertaining to CAR- T / CAR-
NK / TCR- T / universal cellular immunotherapy technology and any additional technology developed in the future with terms
and conditions to be mutually agreed upon the Company and Avactis and services. As of the date hereof, the License
Agreement has not been finalized by the parties. In addition, the Company is responsible for contributing registered capital of
RMB 5, 000, 000 (approximately $ 0. 7 million) for working capital purposes as required by local regulation, which is not
required to be contributed immediately and will be contributed subject to the Company’ s discretion. As of the date hereof,
Avactis’ activities have been limited to that of a patent holding company and there is no other activity or planned contributions
in 2624-2025 or into the foreseeable future . NOTE 2422 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS The Company evaluated subsequent
events and transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date up to the date that the financial statements were issued. Based
upon this review, other than as described below, the Company did not identify any subsequent events that would have required
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. Ia-Mareh-On January 6, 2024-2025 |, the Company entered-into-seenrity
purchase-agreementfiled a certificate of designations of preferences, rights, and limitations of Series D Convertible

Preferred Stock (the “ Series D Certlﬁcate of Desngnatlons ”) with a—leﬁdeieﬁhe Department %eh%@%—]:eﬂderi)-aﬁé
elosed-on-the-issuanee-of State 3501 ROt . Division

f+9§—C0rp0rat10ns, of the State of Delaware, whlch pr0v1des for the
designation of 5 , 000 shares of eommotrSeries D Preferred steek-Stock of the Company, par value $ 0. 0001 per share,
upon the terms and conditions as set forth in the Series D Certificate of Designations. Each share of Series D Preferred
Stock has a stated value eommitmentfee-and-warrants-for-the-purehase-of § 1 up-te252-, 464-shares-of000 (the « Stated
Value ”). The Series D Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company’ s common stock —Fhe-(the “ Common Stock
”) and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company and-created hereafter, the terms of which specifically
provide that such class or series shall rank junior to the Series D Preferred Stock, (ii) pari passu with any class or series
of capital stock of the Company created hereafter specifically ranking, by its subsidiaries-terms, on par with the Series D



Preferred Stock, (iii) pari passu with the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the “ Series B Preferred
Stock ) with respect to its rights, preferences and restrictions, and (iv) pari passu with the Series C Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company (the “ Series C Preferred Stock ). Holders of the Series D Preferred Stock also-no
voting power except as otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law. Upon any liquidation, dissolution
or winding- up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a “ Liquidation ), the holders of the Series D
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders, (i) after and
subject to the payment in full of all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or series of stock of
the Company ranking on liquidation prior and in preference to the Series D Preferred Stock, including the Series A
Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series D Preferred
Stock and (iii) in preference and priority to the holders of the shares of Common Stock, an amount equal to 100 % of the
Stated Value of the Series D Preferred Stock, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the
Series D Preferred Stock are entitled to receive. F- 48 NOTE 22 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued) Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock (continued) Each share of Series D Preferred Stock shall be convertible into Common Stock
(the “ Conversion Shares ) at a conversion per share equal to $ 2. 41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the
Company has obtained shareholder approval for the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the
Nasdaq Stock Market. In addition, the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series D Preferred
Stock if, after giving effect to the conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of
4. 99 % of the number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the
respective Conversion Shares. On January 9, 2025 the Company seenrrt-y—an exchange agreenaenfs—
agreementw1thWenzhaoLu ereating-a-seet AH-PrOPerty—o bsidiarieste

. ek et chalrman of the Board 0f Dlrectors, pursuant to
whlch Mr Lu exchanged 9, 000 shares 0f Serles A Preferred Stock of the Company for 5, 000 shares of Series D
Preferred Stock of the Company. During 2025, to preserve cash, the Company entered into discussions with Lab
Services MSO for the potential redemption of our investment and on February 26, 2025, the Company and Lab Services
MSO entered into a Redemption and Abandonment Agreement (the “ Redemption Agreement ), whereby Lab Services
MSO redeemed the 40 % equity interest in Lab Services MSO held by the Company for cash and the surrender of its
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock having a carrying value of $ 11, 000, 000. The aggregate cash amount to the
Company for the redemption was $ 1, 745, 000, to be paid as follows: one payment of $ 95, 000 at the closing of the
redemption and, beginning in March 2025, monthly payments of § 75, 000 until December 2026. In addition, pursuant to
the terms of the Redemption Agreement, all shares of the Company’ s Series B Convertible Preferred Stock previously
issued to SCBC Holdings LL.C as partial consideration for the equity interests of Laboratory Services MSO, were
permanently surrendered and relinquished to the Company for no additional consideration. Accordingly, beginning in
February 2025, the Company no longer offers laboratory services. Agreement and Plan of Merger On March 7, 2025, the
Company, Nexus MergerSub Limited, a business company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (“ Merger Sub ”), and YOOV Group Holding Limited, a business company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“ YOOV ), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “ Merger
Agreement ) pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into YOOV, with YOOV surviving the merger and
becoming a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the “ Merger ). The Merger is expected to be completed in
the third quarter of 2025, subject to customary closing conditions. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger
Agreement, immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger (the « Effective Time ), each then- outstanding share
of YOOV preferred shares, par value $ 0. 10 per share, will either automatically be converted into shares of YOOV
ordinary shares, par value $ 0. 10 per share (the “ YOOV Ordinary Shares ”) or canceled and cease to exist in
accordance with their terms. At the Effective Time, each then- outstanding YOOV Ordinary Share (other than any
shares held in treasury and Dissenting Shares (as defined in the Merger Agreement)) will be automatically converted
into a number of shares of the Company’ s common stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share (the “ Avalon Common Stock ”),
equal to the Exchange Ratio. The “ Exchange Ratio ” will be the ratio (rounded to four decimal places), determined as
follows: if the closing price of the Avalon Common Stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“ Nasdaq ”) on the second
trading day immediately preceding the Effective Time is (x) less than or equal to $ S. 00, the Exchange Ratio shall be 60,
000, 000 divided by YOOV Outstanding Shares (as defined in the Merger Agreement); or (y) greater than $ 5. 00, the
Exchange Ratio shall be 54, 000, 000 divided by YOOV Outstanding Shares. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger
Agreement, (i) each then- outstanding share of Avalon Common Stock will remain issued and outstanding after the
Effective Time and (ii) each then- outstanding option to purchase Avalon Common Stock, whether or not vested, will
remain issued and outstanding after the Effective Time. The then- outstanding shares of Series C Convertible Preferred
Stock of the Company and Series D Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company will remain outstanding in accordance
with their terms. Additionally, at the Effective Time, the name of the Company will be changed to “ YOOV, Inc. ” In
connection with the Merger, the Company will seek approval of its stockholders to, among other things, (i) approve the
issuance of the shares of Avalon Common Stock to be issued to YOOV shareholders in connection with the Merger
pursuant to the rules of Nasdaq and (ii) amend the Company’ s certificate of incorporation to effect a reverse stock split
of the Avalon Common Stock to the extent the Company and YOOV mutually agree implementing such reverse stock
split is necessary to meet Nasdaq’ s listing requirements (collectively, the “ Avalon Stockholder Matters ). Each of the
Company and YOOV have made customary representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement,
including, among other things, covenants relating to (i) obtaining the requisite approval of its respective stockholders, (ii)
non- solicitation or facilitation of any Takeover Proposal or Superior Proposal (as each is defined in the Merger



Agreement), (iii) the conduct of its respective business during the period between the signing of the Merger Agreement
and the closing of the Merger, and (iv) the Company filing with the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the *
SEC ”) and causing to become effective a registration statement on Form S- 4 (the “ Registration Statement ) to register
the shares of Avalon Common Stock to be issued in connection with the Merger. F- 49 Agreement and Plan of Merger
(continued) Consummation of the Merger is subject to certain closing conditions, including, among other things, (i)
approval of the Avalon Stockholder Matters by the requisite the Company stockholders, (ii) adoption and approval of
the Merger Agreement, and the transactions contemplated thereby, by the requisite YOOV shareholders, (iii) the
effectiveness of the Registration Statement and (iv) the listing of the Avalon Common Stock issuable in connection with
the Merger on Nasdaq. Each party’ s obligation to consummate the Merger is also subject to other specified customary
conditions, including regarding the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the other party, subject to the
applicable materiality standard, and the performance in all material respects by the other party of its

Merger Agreement required to be performed on or prior to the Effective Time. The Merger Agreement contains
certain termination rights for both the Company and YOOV, including the right to terminate the Merger Agreement at
any time before the Effective Time, whether before or after the Avalon Stockholder Matters have been approved, by
mutual written consent of the parties. In addition, the Merger Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party
if the Merger is not consummated on or before 7, 2026 (the “ End Date ), provided that the End Date may be
extended by either party for up to 60 days in the event that the SEC has not declared effective the Registration Statement
by the date which is 60 days prior to the End Date. Upon termination of the Merger Agreement under specified
circumstances, the Company may be required to pay YOOV a termination fee of $ 1. 0 million; however, YOOV is not
required to pay the Company a termination fee. At the Effective Time, the board of directors of the Company (the “
Avalon Board ”) is expected to consist of seven (7) members, five (5) of whom will be designated by YOOV and two (2) of
whom will be designated by the Company, as provided in the Merger Agreement. Voting and Support Agreements
Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, (i) the officers, directors and certain shareholders of YOOV
(solely in their respective capacities as YOOV shareholders) have entered into voting and support agreements with the
Company and YOOV, pursuant to which such YOOV shareholders agree, among other things to, (a) not transfer their
capital stock of YOOV, subject to certain limited exceptions and (b) vote all of their shares of capital stock of YOOV in
favor of the adoption and approval of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and against,
among other things, any Takeover Proposals (the “ YOOV Voting Agreement ”) and (ii) the officers, directors and
certain stockholders of the Company (solely in their respective capacities as Avalon Stockholders) have entered into
voting and support agreements with the Company and YOOV, pursuant to which such the Company stockholders agree,
among other things to, (a) not transfer their capital stock of the Company, subject to certain limited exceptions and (b)
vote all of their shares of capital stock of the Company in favor of, among other things, the Avalon Stockholder Matters
and against, among other things, any Takeover Proposals (the “ Avalon Voting Agreement ). Lock- Up Agreements
Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, certain directors, officers and stockholders of each of the
Company and YOOV have entered into lock- up agreements (the “ Lock- Up Agreement ), pursuant to which, subject
to specified exceptions, they have agreed not to transfer their shares of Avalon Common Stock, during the 180- day
period following the Effective Time. Certificates of Elimination The Company previously designated (i) 15, 000 shares of
preferred stock as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the « Series A Preferred Stock ), of which no shares remain
outstanding as a result of the exchange agreement entered with Wenzhao Lu on January 9, 2025 and (ii) 15, 000 shares
of Series B Preferred Stock, of which no shares remain outstanding as a result of the surrender of the Series B Preferred
Stock in connection with the redemption and abandonment agreement with the Company, Avalon Laboratory Services,
Inc., Laboratory Services MSO, LL.C and the other parties signatory thereto on February 26, 2025. On March 7, 2025,
the Company filed a Certificate of Elimination relating to each of the Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B
Preferred Stock (the “ Eliminations of Designation ) with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, thereby
terminating the designations of the Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock. The Eliminations of
Designation were effective upon filing and eliminated from the Company’ s Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation (as amended and / or restated from time to time, the “ Avalon Charter ) all matters set forth in the
previously- filed Certificates of Designations with respect to the previously designated Series A Preferred Stock and
Series B Preferred Stock. Bylaws Amendment On March 7, 2025, the Avalon Board approved and adopted an
amendment (the “ Amendment ) to the Company’ s Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “ Avalon Bylaws ). The
Amendment reduces the quorum at any meeting of stockholders, except as otherwise required by law or by the Avalon
Charter or the Avalon Bylaws, to one- third of the voting power of the shares of capital stock outstanding and entitled to
vote at the meeting, present in person, present by remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy.
Common Shares Issued for Warrant Exercise In March 2025, the Company issued 186, 877 shares of its common stock
upon cashless exercise of warrants to purchase 11, 833 shares of common stock. In March 2025, the Company issued a
total of 22, 278 shares of its common stock for services rendered and to be rendered. These shares were valued at $ 113,
847, the fair market values on the grant dates using the reported closing share prices on the dates of grant. F- S0false
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THE REGISTRANT’ S SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF The following summary, which includes applicable provisions of the Delaware General
Corporation Law (the “ DGCL ”), describes material provisions of the capital stock of Avalon GloboCare Corp., a
Delaware corporation (“ we ”, “ us ” or the “ Company ”), and is intended as a summary only and therefore is not a
complete description of our capital stock. The description of our capital stock and provisions of our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation, as amended (the “ Certificate of Incorporation ), and our amended and restated
bylaws, as amended (the “ Bylaws ), are summaries and are qualified entirely by reference to the Certificate of
Incorporation and Bylaws, which are included as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10- K, of which this Exhibit 4.
9 is a part. You should review these documents for a description of the rights, restrictions and obligations relating to our
capital stock. We have one class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “ Exchange Act ), which is our common stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share. Our Certificate of
Incorporation authorizes us to issue 110, 000, 000 shares of capital stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share, of which (i) 100,
000, 000 shares are designated as common stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share, and (ii) 10, 000, 000 shares are
designated as preferred stock. Of the 10, 000, 000 shares of preferred stock, (x) 10, 000 shares have been designated as
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, at a stated value equal to $ 1, 000 per share, and (y) S, 000 shares have been
designated as Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, at a stated value equal to $ 1, 000 per share. Dividends may be
declared and paid or set apart for payment upon the common stock out of any assets or funds of the Company legally
available for the payment of dividends, but only when and as declared by our board of directors or any authorized
committee of thereof, subject to any preferential dividend or other rights of the then outstanding preferred stock. Each
share of common stock entitles the holders of our common stock to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote
by our stockholders, including the election of directors; provided, that, unless otherwise required by law, holders of our
common stock are not entitled to vote on any amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation (or on any amendment to a
certificate of designations of any series of undesignated preferred stock) that relates solely to the terms of one or more
outstanding series of our preferred stock, if the holders of such affected series are entitled, either separately or together
as a class with the holders of one or more other such series, to vote thereon pursuant to our Certificate of Incorporation.
Holders of our common stock do not have cumulative voting rights. Rights Upon Liquidation and Dissolution Upon the
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the net assets of the Company shall be
distributed pro rata to the holders of the common stock. Other Rights Holders of our common stock have no preemptive,
subscription, redemption or conversion rights. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of common stock are
subject to and may be adversely affected by the rights of the holders of shares of any series of preferred stock that we
may designate and issue in the future. In accordance with our Certificate of Incorporation, our board of directors is
authorized to direct us to issue shares of undesignated preferred stock in one or more series without stockholder
approval. Our board of directors has the discretion to determine the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions,
including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, repurchase rights, redemption privileges and liquidation
preferences, of each series of preferred stock. The purpose of authorizing our board of directors to issue preferred stock
and determine its rights and preferences is to eliminate delays associated with a stockholder vote on specific issuances.



The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions, future financings
and other corporate purposes, could have the effect of making it more difficult for a third- party to acquire, or could
discourage a third- party from seeking to acquire, a majority of our outstanding voting stock. Holders of the Series C
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Company shall pay, dividends on shares of Series C Preferred Stock
equal (on an as- if- converted- to- common- stock basis, disregarding for such purpose any conversion limitations
hereunder) to and in the same form as dividends actually paid on shares of the common stock when, as and if such
dividends are paid on shares of the common stock. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding- up of the Company,
whether voluntary or involuntary (a “ Liquidation ), the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to
receive out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders, (i) after and subject to the payment in full of all
amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or series of stock of the Company ranking on
liquidation prior and in preference to the Series C Preferred Stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably
with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series C Preferred Stock and (iii) in preference
and priority to the holders of the shares of common stock, an amount equal to 100 % of the Stated Value of the Series C
Preferred Stock, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the Series C Preferred Stock are
entitled to receive. Each share of Series C Preferred Stock shall be convertible into common stock (the “ Conversion
Shares ”) at a conversion per share equal to $ 2. 41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the later of (i) the date of
the shareholder approval of the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and
(ii) the one year anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of the Series C Preferred Stock. In addition,
the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series C Preferred Stock if, after giving effect to the
conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 19. 99 % of the number of shares
of the common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the respective Conversion Shares. The
Series D Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company’ s common stock and any other class or series of capital
stock of the Company created hereafter, the terms of which specifically provide that such class or series shall rank junior
to the Series D Preferred Stock, (ii) pari passu with any class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter
specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series D Preferred Stock, (iii) pari passu with the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company (the “ Series B Preferred Stock ) with respect to its rights, preferences and
restrictions, and (iv) pari passu with the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the “ Series C Preferred
Stock ). Each share of Series D Preferred Stock shall be convertible into common stock (the “ Conversion Shares ) at a
conversion per share equal to $ 2. 41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the Company has obtained
shareholder approval for the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. In
addition, the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series D Preferred Stock if, after giving effect
to the conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 4. 99 % of the number of
shares of the common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the respective Conversion
Shares. Effects of Authorized but Unissued Stock Our authorized but unissued shares of common stock and preferred
stock are available for future issuance without stockholder approval, subject to any limitations imposed by the listing
requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market. These additional shares may be used for a variety of corporate finance
transactions, acquisitions and employee benefit plans. The existence of authorized but unissued and unreserved common
stock and preferred stock could make it more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a
proxy contest, tender offer, merger or otherwise. In addition, if we issue preferred stock in the future, the issuance could
adversely affect the voting power of holders of our common stock and the likelihood that such holders will receive
dividend payments and payments upon liquidation. Anti- Takeover Provisions The DGCL, our Certificate of
Incorporation and our Bylaws contain provisions that could have the effect of delaying, deferring or discouraging
another party from acquiring control of us. The purpose of these provisions, which are summarized below, is to
discourage coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids. These provisions are also designed to encourage
persons seeking to acquire control of the Company to first negotiate with our board of directors. Special Meetings.
Except as otherwise required by statute and subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of any series of our undesignated
preferred stock, special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by the board of directors acting pursuant to a
resolution approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office. The order of business and all
other matters of procedure at any meeting of the stockholders will be determined by a presiding officer designated by
our board of directors. Removal of Directors. Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that our directors may be
removed only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of capital stock then
entitled to vote at an election of directors. In addition, at least 45 days prior to any annual or special meeting of
stockholders at which it is proposed that a director be removed from office, written notice of such proposed removal and
the alleged grounds thereof must be sent to the director whose removal will be considered at the meeting. Stockholder
Action by Written Consent. Any action that is permitted to be taken by our stockholders by written consent without a
meeting must first satisfy the requirements and procedures set forth in our Certificate of Incorporation and our Bylaws.
Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals. Our Bylaws establish an advance notice procedure for
stockholder proposals to be brought before an annual meeting of stockholders, including proposed nominations of
persons for election to our board of directors. Stockholders at an annual meeting are only able to consider proposals or
nominations specified in the notice of meeting or brought before the meeting by or at the direction of our board of
directors or by a stockholder of record on the record date for the meeting who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who
has delivered timely written notice in proper form to our secretary of the stockholder’ s intention to bring such business
before the meeting. These provisions could have the effect of delaying until the next stockholder meeting stockholder



actions that are favored by the holders of a majority of our outstanding shares entitled to vote. Delaware Business
Combination Statute. We are subject to Section 203 of the DGCL. Subject to certain exceptions, Section 203 of the
DGCL prevents a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a “ business combination ” with any “ interested
stockholder ” for three (3) years following the date that the person became an interested stockholder, unless the
interested stockholder attained such status with the approval of our board of directors or unless the business
combination is approved in a prescribed manner. A “ business combination ” includes, among other things, a merger or
consolidation involving us and the “ interested stockholder ” and the sale of more than 10 % of our assets. In general, an
“ interested stockholder ” is any entity or person beneficially owning 15 % or more of our outstanding voting stock and
any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by such entity or person. Amendment of Certificate of
Incorporation and Bylaws. The DGCL provides generally that the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares entitled to
vote on any matter is required to amend a corporation’ s certificate of incorporation or by- laws, unless a corporation’ s
certificate of incorporation or by- laws, as the case may be, requires a greater percentage. Our Bylaws may be amended
or repealed by the affirmative vote of a majority vote of our board of directors then in office or the affirmative vote of the
holders of at least 75 % of the voting power of the outstanding shares entitled to vote on such amendment or repeal,
voting as a single class; provided, however, that if our board of directors recommends that stockholders approve such
amendment or repeal at such meeting of stockholders, such amendment or repeal will only require the affirmative vote
of the majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares entitled to vote on such amendment or repeal, voting
together as a single class. In addition, the Company reserves the right to amend or repeal the Certificate of
Incorporation in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute and by the Certificate of Incorporation, and any
rights conferred upon the stockholders in the Certificate of Incorporation are granted subject to this reservation.
Whenever any vote of the holders of our capital stock is required to amend or repeal any provision of the Certificate of
Incorporation, and in addition to any other vote of holders of capital stock that is required by the Certificate of
Incorporation or by law, such amendment or repeal will require the affirmative vote of the majority of the voting power
of the outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote on such amendment or repeal, and the affirmative vote of the
majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of each class entitled to vote thereon as a class, at a duly
constituted meeting of stockholders called expressly for such purpose. Exclusive Forum Selection. Our Bylaws provide
that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery in the State of
Delaware shall be the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the
Company, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer, stockholder or
other employee of the Company to the Company or the Company’ s stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim
arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or the Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, or (iv) any action
asserting a claim against the Company governed by the internal affairs doctrine. Any person or entity purchasing or
otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of the Company shall be deemed to have notice of and
consented to the provisions of our exclusive forum selection as set forth in our Bylaws under “ Exclusive Jurisdiction of
Delaware Courts. ” Although our Bylaws contain the choice of forum provision described above, it is possible that a
court could rule that such a provision is inapplicable for a particular claim or action or that such provision is
unenforceable. Transfer Agent and Registrar Vstock Transfer LLC is the transfer agent and registrar for our common
stock. Statement of Company POLICY on Insider Trading and Disclosure This memorandum sets forth the policy of
Avalon GloboCare Corp. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “ Company ”) regarding trading in the Company’ s
securities as described below and the disclosure of information concerning the Company. This Statement of Company
Policy on Insider Trading and Disclosure (the “ Insider Trading Policy ) is designed to prevent insider trading or the
appearance of impropriety, to satisfy the Company’ s obligation to reasonably supervise the activities of Company
personnel, and to help Company personnel avoid the severe consequences associated with violations of insider trading
laws. It is your obligation to understand and comply with this Insider Trading Policy. Please contact Luisa Ingargiola,
the Chief Financial Officer at 732- 780- 4400, if you have any questions regarding the policy. A. To Whom does this
Insider Trading Policy Apply? This Insider Trading Policy is applicable to the Company’ s directors, officers,
employees, consultants and contractors, and continues to apply following the termination of any such individual’ s
service to or employment with the Company until any material, nonpublic information possessed by such individual has
become public or is no longer material. The same restrictions that apply to you also apply to your spouse, significant
other, child, parent or other family member, in each case, living in the same household, and to any investment fund,
trust, retirement plan, partnership, corporation or other entity over which you have the ability to influence or direct
investment decisions concerning securities. You are responsible for ensuring compliance with this Insider Trading Policy
by all such persons affiliated with you. All members of the Board of Directors, officers and all employees also must
comply with the Company’ s Special Trading Procedures for Insiders (the “ Trading Procedures ), which supplement
and shall be deemed a part of this Insider Trading Policy. 1 Generally, the Trading Procedures establish trading
windows outside of which the persons covered by the Trading Procedures will be restricted from trading in the
Company’ s securities and also require the pre- clearance of all transactions in the Company’ s securities by such
persons. You will be notified if you are required to comply with the Company’ s Trading Procedures. B. What is
Prohibited by this Insider Trading Policy? It is generally illegal for any director, officer or employee of the Company to
trade in the securities of the Company while in the possession of material, nonpublic information about the Company. It
is also generally illegal for any director, officer or employee of the Company to disclose material, nonpublic information
about the Company to others who may trade on the basis of that information. These illegal activities are commonly
referred to as “ insider trading. ” 1Please refer to the Special Trading Procedures for Insiders. Prohibited Activities



When you know or are in possession of material, nonpublic information about the Company, you generally are
prohibited from the following activities: e trading in the Company’ s securities, which includes common stock, options to
purchase common stock, any other type of securities that the Company may issue (such as preferred stock, convertible
debentures, warrants, exchange- traded options or other derivative securities), and any derivative securities that provide
the economic equivalent of ownership of any of the Company’ s securities or an opportunity, direct or indirect, to profit
from any change in the value of the Company’ s securities; ® having others trade for you in the Company’ s securities; ®
giving trading advice of any kind about the Company except that you should, when appropriate, advise others not to
trade if doing so might violate the law or this Insider Trading Policy; and e disclosing the material, nonpublic
information about the Company to anyone else who might then trade, or recommending to anyone that they purchase or
sell the Company’ s securities when you are aware of material, nonpublic information (these practices are known as *
tipping ”). As noted above, these prohibitions also apply to your spouse, significant other, child, parent or other family
member, in each case, living in the same household; and any investment fund, trust, retirement plan, partnership,
corporation or other entity over which you have the ability to influence or direct investment decisions concerning
securities. This Insider Trading Policy does not apply to an exercise of an employee stock option when payment of the
exercise price is made in cash. The policy does apply, however, to the use of outstanding Company securities to constitute
part or all of the exercise price of an option, any sale of stock as part of a broker- assisted cashless exercise of an option,
or any other market sale for the purpose of generating the cash needed to pay the exercise price of an option. These
prohibitions continue whenever and for as long as you know or are in possession of material, nonpublic information.
Remember, anyone scrutinizing your transactions will be doing so after the fact, with the benefit of hindsight. As a
practical matter, before engaging in any transaction, you should carefully consider how enforcement authorities and
others might view the transaction in hindsight. Definition of Material, Nonpublic Information This Insider Trading
Policy prohibits you from trading in the Company’ s securities if you are in possession of information about the
Company that is both “ material ” and “ nonpublic. ” What is “ Material ” Information? Information about the
Company is “ material ” if it could reasonably be expected to affect the investment or voting decisions of a stockholder
or investor, or if the disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to significantly alter the total mix of
information in the marketplace about the Company. In simple terms, material information is any type of information
that could reasonably be expected to affect the market price of the Company’ s securities. Both positive and negative
information may be material. While it is not possible to identify all information that would be deemed “ material, ” the
following items are types of information that should be considered carefully to determine whether they are material: o
projections of future earnings or losses, or other earnings guidance; ® earnings or revenue that are inconsistent with the
consensus expectations of the investment community; e potential restatements of the Company’ s financial statements,
changes in auditors or auditor notification that the Company may no longer rely on an auditor’ s audit report;
pending or proposed mergers, acquisitions, tender offers, joint ventures or dispositions of significant assets; ® changes in
management or the Board of Directors; e actual or threatened litigation or governmental investigations or major
developments in such matters; e developments regarding products, customers, suppliers, orders, contracts or financing
sources (e. g., the acquisition or loss of a contract); e changes in dividend policy, declarations of stock splits, or public or
private sales of additional securities; ® potential defaults under the Company’ s credit agreements or indentures, or the
existence of material liquidity deficiencies; ® bankruptcies or receiverships; e developments regarding any programs in
clinical development, including recent regulatory interaction and / or data that have been recently generated from
ongoing or recently completed clinical trials; and e developments regarding the intellectual property and / or freedom to
operate for any of the current programs or product candidates under development. The Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “ SEC ”) has stated that there is no fixed quantitative threshold amount for determining materiality,
and that even very small quantitative changes can be qualitatively material if they would result in a movement in the
price of the Company’ s securities. What is “ Nonpublic ” Information? Material information is “ nonpublic ” if it has
not been disseminated in a manner making it available to investors generally. To show that information is public, it is
necessary to point to some fact that establishes that the information has become publicly available, such as the filing of a
report with the SEC, the distribution of a press release through a widely disseminated news or wire service, or by other
means that are reasonably designed to provide broad public access. Before a person who possesses material, nonpublic
information can trade, there also must be adequate time for the market as a whole to absorb the information that has
been disclosed. For the purposes of this Insider Trading Policy, information will be considered public after the close of
trading on the second full trading day following the Company’ s public release of the information. For example, if the
Company announces material information of which you are aware before trading begins on a Tuesday, the first time you
can buy or sell Company securities is the opening of the market on Thursday. However, if the Company announces this
material information after trading begins on that Tuesday, the first time that you can buy or sell Company securities is
the opening of the market on Friday. C. Are there any Restrictions on the Use of Electronic Bulletin Boards, Internet
Chat Rooms or Websites? While the Company encourages its stockholders and potential investors to obtain as much
information as possible about the Company, the Company believes that information should come from its publicly- filed
SEC reports, press releases and external website or from a designated Company spokesperson, rather than from
speculation or unauthorized disclosures by the Company’ s directors, officers or employees. For this reason, the
Company has designated certain members of management to respond to inquiries regarding the Company’ s business
and prospects. This centralization of communication is designed to ensure that the information the Company discloses is
accurate and considered in light of previous disclosures. Formal announcements are generally reviewed by management
and legal counsel before they are made public. Any communications that do not go through this review process create an



increased risk to the Company, as well as to the individual responsible for the communication, of civil and criminal
liability. In addition, with the advent of the Internet, and the emergence of electronic bulletin boards and chat rooms,
electronic discussions about companies and their business prospects have become common. Inappropriate
communications disseminated on the Internet may pose an inherently greater risk due to the size of the audience they
can reach. These forums have the potential to move a stock price significantly, and very rapidly — yet the information
disseminated through electronic bulletin boards and chat rooms often is unreliable, and in some cases, may be
deliberately false. The SEC has investigated and prosecuted a number of fraudulent schemes involving electronic
bulletin boards and chat rooms. You may encounter information about the Company on the Internet that you believe is
harmful or inaccurate, or other information that you believe is true or beneficial for the Company. Although you may
have a natural tendency to deny or confirm such information on an electronic bulletin board or in a chat room, any sort
of response, even if it presents accurate information, could be considered improper disclosure and could result in legal
liability to you and / or to the Company. The Company is committed to preventing inadvertent disclosures of material,
nonpublic information, preventing unwitting participation in Internet- based securities fraud, and avoiding the
appearance of impropriety by persons associated with the Company. Accordingly, this Insider Trading Policy prohibits
you from discussing material, nonpublic information about the Company with anyone, including other employees, except
as required in the performance of your duties. You should not under any circumstances provide information or discuss
matters involving the Company with the news media, any broker- dealer, analyst, investment banker, investment
advisor, institutional investment manager, investment company or stockholder, even if you are contacted directly by
such persons, without express prior authorization. This restriction applies whether or not you identify yourself as
associated with the Company. You should refer all such contact or inquiries to the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer. This Insider Trading Policy also prohibits you from making any comments or postings about the
Company on any Internet bulletin boards, chat rooms or websites, or responding to comments or postings about the
Company’ s business made by others. This restriction applies whether or not you identify yourself as associated with the
Company. D. What are the Penalties for Insider Trading and Noncompliance with this Insider Trading Policy? Both the
SEC and the national securities exchanges, through the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), investigate
and are very effective at detecting insider trading. The SEC, together with the U. S. Attorneys, pursue insider trading
violations vigorously. For instance, cases have been successfully prosecuted against trading by employees in foreign
accounts, trading by family members and friends, and trading involving only a small number of shares. The penalties for
violating insider trading or tipping rules can be severe and include: e disgorgement of the profit gained or loss avoided
by the trading; e payment of the loss suffered by the persons who, contemporaneously with the purchase or sale of
securities that are subject of such violation, have purchased or sold, as applicable, securities of the same class; ®
payment of criminal penalties of up to $ 5, 000, 000; e payment of civil penalties of up to three times the profit made or
loss avoided; and e imprisonment for up to 20 years. The Company and / or the supervisors of the person engaged in
insider trading may also be required to pay civil penalties of up to the greater of $ 1, 525, 000 (subject to periodic
inflation adjustments) 2 or three times the profit made or loss avoided, as well as criminal penalties of up to $ 25, 000,
000, and could under certain circumstances be subject to private lawsuits. 2The civil penalty for a control person’ s
involvement in insider trading violations is listed in Section 21A (a) (3) of the Exchange Act (15 U. S. Code 78u- 1 (a) (3))
as $ 1, 000, 000. The SEC adjusts this number for inflation at least every 4 years, as required by the Federal Civil
Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, as amended by the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996. The civil
penalty amount was last increased to $ 1, 525, 000 in 2013. See 17 CFR Part 201, Subpart E — Adjustment of Civil
Monetary Penalties; see also the accompanying SEC Final Rule release, particularly pages 4- 5 and 10, found at: https: /
/ www. sec. gov / rules / final / 2013 / 33- 9387. pdf. Please refer to 17 CFR Part 201, Subpart E prior to using this Insider
Trading Policy to check whether the civil penalty amount has subsequently been adjusted. also that the criminal
penalties described in this section of the Insider Trading Policy are listed in Section 32 of the Exchange Act and are not
subject to periodic inflation adjustments. Violation of this Insider Trading Policy or any federal or state insider trading
laws may subject the person violating such policy or laws to disciplinary action by the Company up to and including
termination. The Company reserves the right to determine, in its own discretion and on the basis of the information
available to it, whether this Insider Trading Policy has been violated. The Company may determine that specific conduct
violates this Insider Trading Policy, whether or not the conduct also violates the law. It is not necessary for the Company
to await the filing or conclusion of a civil or criminal action against the alleged violator before taking disciplinary action.
E. Does the Company have any Other Policies Regarding Confidential Information? The Company also has strict
policies relating to safeguarding the confidentiality of its internal, proprietary information and the use of social media
and other online platforms. These policies include procedures regarding identifying, marking and safeguarding
confidential information and employee confidentiality agreements. You should comply with these policies at all times
How Do You Report a Violation of this Insider Trading Policy? If you violate this Insider Trading Policy or any federal
or state laws governing insider trading, or know of any such violation by any director, officer or employee of the
Company, you must report the violation immediately to Luisa Ingargiola, the Chief Financial Officer at 732 - 45-780-
4400. However, if the conduct in question involves the Chief Financial Officer, or if you have reported such conduct to
the Chief Financial Officer and you do not believe that she has dealt with it properly, or if you do not feel that you can
discuss the matter with Chief Financial Officer, you may raise the matter with David K. Jin, the Chief Executive Officer
and President. G. Is This Insider Trading Policy Subject to Modification? The Company may at any time change this
Insider Trading Policy or adopt such other policies or procedures which it considers appropriate to carry out the
purposes of its policies regarding insider trading and the disclosure of Company information. Notice of any such change



will be delivered to you by regular or electronic mail (or other delivery option used by the Company) by the Company.
You will be deemed to have received, be bound by and agree to revisions of this Insider Trading Policy when such
revisions have been delivered to you, unless you object to any revision in a written statement received by Luisa
Ingargiola, the Chief Financial Officer, within two (2) business days of such delivery. Exhibit 23. 1 CONSENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM We consent to the incorporation by reference in the
Registration Statement on Forms S- 3 (File No. 333- 272736) and S- 8 (File No. 333- 251196) of our report dated March
31, 2025, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Avalon GloboCare Corp. included in this Annual
Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the reference to our firm under the caption “ Experts
” in the Registration Statement. /s / M & K CPA’ s, PLLC Houston, TX Exhibit 23. 2 We consent to the incorporation by
reference in the Registration Statement on Forms S- 3 (File No. 333- 272736) and S- 8 (File No. 333- 251196) of our
report dated April 15, 2024, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Avalon GloboCare Corp. included in
this Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2024. Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION OF THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13A- 14 (A) AND 15D- 14
(A), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, David K. Jin,
hereby certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of Avalon GloboCare Corp.; 2. Based on my
knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations,
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying
officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or
caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b) designed such internal control over
financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; andd)
disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting;
5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions): a) all significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s
ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial information; andb) any fraud, whether or not material, that
involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial
reporting. / s / David K. Jin David K. Jin Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Exhibit 31. 2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
RULES 13A- 14 (A) AND 15D- 14 (A), I, Luisa Ingargiola, hereby certify that: / s / Luisa Ingargiola Luisa Ingargiola
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with the Annual Report of
Avalon GloboCare Corp. (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2024, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ Report ), David K. Jin, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and
Luisa Ingargiola, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0of 2002 (18 U. S. C. Section 1350), to his of her knowledge: 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13 (a) or Section 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and2. The information contained in the Report
fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. March 31, 2025
/s / David K. Jin David K. Jin Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) March 31, 2025 / s / Luisa Ingargiola
Luisa Ingargiola Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) This certification accompanies the Form 10- K to
which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10- K), irrespective of any general incorporation
language contained in such filing.



